Corporate, Customer and Community Services Directorate
Legal and Democratic Services  Cumbria House  117 Botchergate 
Carlisle  CA1 1RD 
Tel 01228 606060  Email democratic.services@cumbria.gov.uk

1 November 2021

To:

The Chair and Members of the County
Council Local Committee for Carlisle

Agenda
COUNTY COUNCIL LOCAL COMMITTEE FOR CARLISLE
A meeting of the County Council Local Committee for Carlisle will be held as follows:
Date:
Time:
Place:

Tuesday 9 November 2021
10.00 am
Conference Room A/B, Cumbria House, Botchergate,
Carlisle, CA1 1RD

Dawn Roberts
Executive Director – Corporate, Customer and Community Services
NB

THERE WILL BE A PRIVATE MEMBER BRIEFING ON THE RISING OF LOCAL
COMMITTEE REGARDING THE CARLISLE LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING
INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN

Group Meetings:
Labour:
Conservative:

9.00 am
9.00 am

Cabinet Meeting Room
Conservative Group Office

Enquiries and requests for supporting papers to: Lynn Harker
Direct Line:
07825340229
Email:
lynn.harker@cumbria.gov.uk
This agenda is available on request in alternative formats

Serving the People of Cumbria

MEMBERSHIP
Conservative (7)

Labour (8)

Independent
Councillor
(Non Aligned) (1)

Mr GM Ellis
Dr S Haraldsen
Mrs EA Mallinson
Mr J Mallinson (Vice-Chair)
Mr NH Marriner
Mr M Mitchelson
Mrs V Tarbitt

Mr J Bell
Mrs C Bowditch
Ms D Earl
Dr K Lockney
Mr A McGuckin
Mr R Watson
Mr SF Young
Mr C Weber (Chair)

Mr RW Betton

Liberal Democrat (2)
Mr T Allison
Mr R Dobson

ACCESS TO INFORMATION
Agenda and Reports
Copies of the agenda and Part I reports are available for members of the public to inspect
prior to the meeting. Copies will also be available at the meeting.
The agenda and Part I reports are also available on the County Council’s website –
www.cumbria.gov.uk
Background Papers
Requests for the background papers to the Part I reports, excluding those papers that
contain exempt information, can be made to Legal and Democratic Services at the
address overleaf between the hours of 9.00 am and 4.30 pm, Monday to Friday.

AGENDA
PART 1:

1

ITEMS LIKELY TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS
AND PUBLIC

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence.
2

DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

Members are invited to disclose any disclosable pecuniary interest they have in any item
on the agenda which comprises
1

Details of any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for
profit or gain.

2

Details of any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from
the authority) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any
expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your
election expenses. (This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade
union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations
(Consolidation) Act 1992.

3

Details of any contract which is made between you (or a body in which you have
a beneficial interest) and the authority
(a)

Under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be
executed; and

(b)

Which has not been fully discharged.

4

Details of any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the authority.

5

Details of any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of
the authority for a month or longer.

6

Details of any tenancy where (to your knowledge)

7

(a)

The landlord is the authority; and

(b)

The tenant is a body in which you have a beneficial interest.

Details of any beneficial interest in securities of a body where
(a)

That body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area
of the authority; and

(b)

Either –
(i)

The total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or

(ii)

If that share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant
person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total
issued share capital of that class.

In addition, you must also disclose other non-pecuniary interests set out in the Code of
Conduct where these have not already been registered.
Note
A “disclosable pecuniary interest” is an interest of a councillor or their partner
(which means spouse or civil partner, a person with whom they are living as
husband or wife, or a person with whom they are living as if they are civil
partners).
3

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

To consider whether the press and public should be excluded from the meeting during
consideration of any item on the agenda.
4

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

There are no public questions, statements or petitions to be considered at this meeting.
5

MINUTES

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Local Committee held
on 13 September 2021 (copy enclosed).
(Pages 7 - 20)
6

REVISED TERMS OF REFERENCE

[Electoral Divisions: All Carlisle]
To note the revised Terms of Reference (copy enclosed).
(Pages 21 - 28)

7

CARLISLE LIBRARY AND CUSTOMER MANAGER UPDATE

[Electoral Divisions: All Carlisle]
To receive a presentation from the Executive Director – Corporate, Customer and
Community Services (copy enclosed).
(Pages 29 - 34)
8

AREA PLANNING REPORT

[Electoral Divisions: All Carlisle]
To consider a report by the Executive Director – Corporate, Customer and Community
Services (copy enclosed).
This report provides an update on its agreed activity, a financial statement in support of
these activities and requests decisions on a range of issues.
(Pages 35 - 50)
9

2021/22 HIGHWAYS BUDGET/PROGRAMME PROGRESS REPORT

[Electoral Divisions: All Carlisle]
To consider a report by the Executive Director – Economy and Infrastructure (copy
enclosed).
This report presents the Highways Revenue, Devolved Capital and Non-Devolved
Capital budget finance reports, combined with the highways programme progress
information, as detailed in the attached appendices.
(Pages 51 - 72)
10

HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORT WORKING GROUP

[Electoral Divisions: All Carlisle]
To consider a report by the Executive Director – Economy and Infrastructure (copy
enclosed).
This report provides details of the meeting of the Highways and Transport Working
Group held on 7 October 2021 and presents recommendations for the Local Committee
to consider.
(Pages 73 - 222)
11

LOCAL COMMITTEE CHAIRS AND LEADERSHIP MEETING

To note the minutes of the meeting of the Local Committee Chairs and Leadership
meetings held on 27 September 2021 (copy enclosed).
(Pages 223 - 228)

12

MEMBER CHAMPION UPDATES

To receive verbal updates from Carlisle Member Champions as follows:(a)
(b)
(c)

Children in Care
Autism
Armed Forces

13

LOCAL COMMITTEE FOR CARLISLE - FORWARD PLAN

[Electoral Divisions: All Carlisle]
The Forward Plan of items for meetings of the Local Committee for Carlisle is attached
for information.
(Pages 229 - 234)
14

DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

To note that the next meeting of Carlisle Local Committee will be held on Wednesday
5 January 2022 at 10.00 am in Conference Room A/B, Cumbria House, Botchergate,
Carlisle.

Agenda Item 5
COUNTY COUNCIL LOCAL COMMITTEE FOR CARLISLE
Minutes of a Meeting of the County Council Local Committee for Carlisle held on
Monday, 13 September 2021 at 10.00 am at Conference Room A/B, Cumbria
House, Botchergate, Carlisle, CA1 1RD

PRESENT:
Mr C Weber (Chair)
Mr J Bell
Mr RW Betton
Mrs C Bowditch
Mr R Dobson
Ms D Earl
Mr GM Ellis
Dr S Haraldsen
Dr K Lockney

Mrs EA Mallinson
Mr J Mallinson (Vice-Chair)
Mr A McGuckin
Mr NH Marriner
Mr M Mitchelson
Mrs V Tarbitt
Mr R Watson
Mr SF Young

Also in Attendance:Ms J Coleman
Ms A Dodds
Ms A Grant

-

Mrs L Harker
Ms A Hutson
Mr P Musgrave

-

Public Health Locality Manager (Carlisle)
Traffic Management Team Leader
Locality Development Officer – Carlisle and County
Walking for Health Lead
Senior Democratic Services Officer
Local Area Highways Network Manager - Carlisle
Area Manager - Carlisle

PART 1 – ITEMS CONSIDERED IN THE
PRESENCE OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS

Temporary Superintendent Richard Quinn, Cumbria Constabulary attended for
agenda item 6 (referred to at minute 20).
The Chair, on behalf of members, welcomed Roger Dobson to his first meeting of
the Committee.
15

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

An apology for absence was received from Mr T Allison.

7

16

DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

(1)

Ms D Earl declared a non-pecuniary interest in agenda item 8 – Area
Planning Report (minute 22 refers) as she was employed by Carlisle Key.

(2)

Mrs E Mallinson declared a non-pecuniary interest in agenda item 8 – Area
Planning Report (minute 22 refers) as she was the Local Committee’s
representative for Carlisle Key.

17

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

RESOLVED, that the press and public be not excluded from the meeting for any
items of business on this occasion.
18

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

(1)

There were no public questions or statements to be considered at this
meeting.

(2)

The Committee received petitions regarding the following matters:(a)

the junction of Dykes Terrace and Brampton Road, Carlisle.
Christine Raphael presented members with a petition regarding the
junction of Dykes Terrace and Brampton Road, Carlisle. Members
were informed that Dykes Terrace comprised of 16 houses (including
St Michael’s Vicarage), five garages which belonged to properties on
Brampton Road and numerous allotment plots which were only
accessible via Dykes Terrace. The Committee was informed of the
close proximity of a number of junctions on Brampton Road and
emphasised the petitioners safety concerns when exiting
Dykes Terrace due to the lack of vision of speeding vehicles, blocked
view due to parked vehicles, lack of warning signs to alert drivers to
the sharp bend in the road, the lack of information on the sign in front
of the University whilst also highlighting that this was obscured by
foliage.
Members noted that due to the dangers on the road a number of
residents only turned left when exiting Dykes Terrace and made a
detour through Croft Road or Longlands Road making those roads
busier than necessary.
The petitioners asked that the following suggestions be taken into
consideration by officers when they were considering safety
improvements at the junction:

installation of a two speed monitors before Well Lane and
Vallum Close;

8







double yellow lines in front of the house to the left of Dykes
Terrace junction;
installation of a sign to warn of the sharp bend and junctions;
the trees in the grounds of the University be cut-back and
maintained;
traffic calming measures installed on Brampton Road before
Vallum Close;
installation of mirrors to allow drivers to see vehicles travelling
along Brampton Road from the town.

The local Member spoke in support of the petition highlighting the
issues raised had been a concern for a number of years.
Mrs Mallinson highlighted the volume and speed of traffic emphasising
her concerns regarding safety for both drivers and pedestrians. During
the course of discussion the local Member suggested that relevant
officers of the County Council liaise with the Police, CRASH Group,
local residents and herself to investigate the matter further.
The Chair thanked Ms Raphael for her petition and gave the following
response:You have been liaising with Amy Hutson, Highways Network Manager
to address some safety concerns at the junction of Dykes Terrace with
Brampton Road.
To date some of those issues have been addressed. The overhanging
tree outside the University building has been cut back to improve
visibility and safe passage for pedestrians and the damaged warning
sign has been replaced with the inclusion of a junction leg.
The speeding issues and subsequent traffic safety request has been
submitted to the Police CRASH Group for discussion. Abigail Dodds,
the Traffic Team Leader will be able to update the outcome of this
when the investigations have taken place; this will raise discussion
around speed indicators, warning signs, mirrors and traffic calming.
There is already a No Waiting At Any Time restriction at the junction.
An option that may be considered is a realignment of the kerbline and
footway on the approach to Dykes Terrace and further investigation is
to be carried out to establish the measurements required to achieve
the desired visibility. At this time there is no accident record at this site
to support a bid for funding such a scheme but following investigation
this may be considered for a Minor Improvement Scheme.
The Local Area Highways Network Manager also agreed to consider
extending the restrictions in front of the house on the corner of
Brampton Road and Dyke Terrace from 5 metres to 10 metres and
relocating the sign outside the University if this continued to be
obscured by the overhanging trees.

9

(b)

Sandsfield Lane/Road/Lonning, Carlisle
Kevin Smith presented the Committee with a petition from residents of
Priorwood Close requesting the County Council to consider installing
traffic calming measures on Sandsfield Lane.
Members were informed the road had become increasingly busy with
many large HGVs missing the Bypass exit from the roundabout on
Moorhouse Road due to poor signs and finding themselves on
Sandsfield Lane. He explained that a number of the HGVs then drove
into Priorwood Close to turn around and highlighted the dangers this
posed to the residents.
The Committee was informed that data which had been collected
indicated that a number of vehicles travel that stretch of the road in
excess of the speed limit making the exit from Priorwood Close
increasingly difficult and dangerous. It was felt that the volume of
traffic on what had become a “rat run” had increased greatly in the past
few years
Mr Smith highlighted the lack of a footpath or protected cycleway along
a major part of the road emphasising the risk to pedestrians. He
explained to members that it was felt this was comparatively narrow
with insufficient room for two vehicles and a pedestrian or cyclist to
pass at the same time, with very few opportunities for pedestrians and
no opportunities for mobility scooters and prams to step off the road to
avoid traffic.
Members were informed that the verges and hedges on Sandsfield
Lane from the bend to Orton Road had become overgrown, therefore,
preventing pedestrians from using them as refuges when cars
approached; it also made the sight lines for drivers exiting Priorwood
Close very poor and increased the dangers.
In conclusion Mr Smith asked that the Authority consider the following
suggestions:

regular programmed verge maintenance near Priorwood Close;



introduction of a footpath to connect Priorwood Close along
Sandsfield Lane to the path near the bend on Sandsfield Lane
and to Orton Road;



implementation of traffic calming measures;



improved signs at the Moorhouse Road roundabout to direct
HGVs onto the Bypass and highlight Sandsfield Lane as being
only suitable for local traffic;

10



introduce a one-way system from Priorwood Close to
Housesteads Road to create space for a footpath/cycleway and
reduce the risks for traffic exiting Priorwood Close.

Mr Smith also informed the Local Committee of data which he had
collected regarding the speed of vehicles on the road. Whilst he
acknowledged that the Authority’s Road Traffic Team had undertaken
a speed survey on the road he suggested that this should have taken
place away from the bend to get a true reflection of the speed vehicles
were travelling.
David Carr, a petitioners, echoed the issues and concerns outlined by
Mr Smith.
The local Member supported the petition and asked that the
maintenance of verges and the sign should be investigated as a matter
of urgency.
The Leader of the Council supported the petition and thanked the
residents for their approach to this matter and welcomed the
suggested solutions. He acknowledged the need for a footpath and
cycleway and suggested this could be considered as part of the
Authority’s Cycling and Walking Strategy.
The Chair thanked Mr Smith for his petition and gave the following
response:You have been liaising with Amy Hutson, Highways Network Manager to
address some safety concerns at Sandsfield Lane/Road/Lonning.
Sandsfield Lane currently has routine verge maintenance carried out by
Cumbria County Council’s framework contractor and this cut is to aid
visibility. On further inspection, some of the vegetation that requires
cutting back was found to be privately owned and following bird nesting
season coming to an end, the Highways Team is in the process of
sending out letters requesting that landowners cut back the vegetation.
Unfortunately the highway at this location is not wide enough for
two-way traffic and a footway and is not suitable for a one-way system.
Following your petition and traffic count data the Traffic Team will revisit
this site and further discuss your request of traffic calming measures.
The further suggestions and concerns which you have raised today will
also be investigated.

11

19

MINUTES

RESOLVED, that the minutes of the meeting of the Local Committee held on
19 July 2021 be confirmed as circulated and thereupon signed by the
Chair.
20

CUMBRIA POLICE AUTHORITY

Members received a verbal update from Temporary Superintendent Richard Quinn
from Cumbria Constabulary which included details of overall crime and disorder
statistics in the Carlisle district and the key challenges over the previous 12 months.
The Committee was informed that issues during the COVID 19 pandemic had been
the most challenging with an increase in domestic-related violence, sextortion and
enforcement of Government rules during the lockdown period. During the course of
discussion Cumbria Constabulary were congratulated on how they had
professionally dealt with the Government’s guidance during lockdown whilst still
maintaining public confidence in them.
Members received an update on the development of the Local Focus Hub and were
also informed of the intention to have two dedicated full-time Police Officers in
Carlisle City Centre and a further full-time Officer situated in the west of Carlisle. It
was confirmed that there was now one dedicated Police Officer and two Police
Community Support Officers (PCSOs) deployed from the Shadygrove Road Police
Station.
A discussion took place regarding PCSOs and concerns were raised regarding the
frequent changes of them in local areas. Temporary Superintendent Quinn
acknowledged the concerns raised and explained that going forward the Force was
looking to maintain the current number of PCSOs.
During discussion a member asked about the possibility to re-introduce police
officers on foot in local areas. The Committee was informed that whilst there was
an aspiration to have this, particularly in the city centre, the resources were not
available to provide this service and no commitment could be made to make this
provision in local areas.
Members raised their concerns regarding domestic abuse and children’s
safeguarding. It was explained that the domestic abuse programme continued after
the lockdown period together with a strong focus on children’s safeguarding.
A discussion took place with regards to the Authority working in collaboration with
Cumbria Constabulary to make improvements to physical risks. Members were
informed there were a number of processes in place where the two organisations
worked together which included a Casualty Reduction Officer and Community
Safety Adviser.

12

A concern was raised regarding the use of sirens in residential areas and whilst this
was acknowledged members were informed that the decision to activate them was
the responsibility of the individual officer and Cumbria Constabulary had no
concerns regarding their use.
The Chair, on behalf of the Committee, thanked Temporary Superintendent
Richard Quinn for an informative update.
21

ACTIVE CUMBRIA

The Committee received a presentation from Active Cumbria which was part of a
national network of 43 active partnerships, The service provided leadership,
expertise, insight and connectivity to improve the health and wellbeing of residents
and included a contribution towards the COVID recovery for Cumbria.
Members were informed of the challenges for Carlisle and received details of the
Five Year Plan 2021-2026 and Outcomes, noting that priorities across the lifecourse
included:

supporting children in early years to improve levels of physical literacy,
ensuring the best start in life;



enabling children, young people and families to develop a positive
relationship with movement;



enabling opportunities for those of working age to develop positive
long-term physical activity habits;



supporting older adults, particularly those with or at risk of long-term
health conditions to be more active.

The Committee noted the national and locally funded programmes, services and
events recognising that tackling inactivity needed to be a top priority as it was
responsible for 1 in 6 UK deaths and for up to 40% of long-term medical conditions.
Members acknowledged the need to explore ways in which resources could be
maximised and used to leverage those available locally.
A discussion took place regarding facilities in the Carlisle area which currently
provided sport and other activities.
It was explained that if their capital
developments could support health inequalities it was possible that funding could be
made available. It was agreed that a separate discussion would take place between
officers and the local Member for Yewdale on this matter.
The Committee asked for further information regarding funding for people with
disabilities. It was explained that further details were being sought with regards to
social events and it was agreed that a further discussion would take place with the
local Member for Belle Vue on this matter.

13

A discussion took place regarding the data taken from the Active Lives Survey and
members asked that the previous year’s survey be circulated to the Committee.
The Chair thanked the Officer for an informative presentation.
22

AREA PLANNING REPORT

The Committee received a report from the Executive Director – Corporate,
Customer and Community Services which provided members with
recommendations and matters to note relating to budget commitments, grant
allocations from the recommendations of its Strategic Grants Panel and other
relevant matters relating to area planning.
Members had previously approved a schedule of works regarding the Contain
Outbreak Management Fund with a proviso that any amendments would come back
to Committee for agreement. The Local Committee was, therefore, requested to
agree a variation to the proposed schedule of works based on greater knowledge of
deliverability since the initial schedule was agreed on 19 July 2021, whilst noting
that the Contain Outbreak Management Fund works must be delivered within the
current financial year.
RESOLVED, that
(1)

the commitments made and the remaining balances within
delegated budgets together with the grants (as detailed in
Appendix 1 of the report) be noted;

(2)

the grant of £3,000 to deliver 12 weeks of MOG in Longtown
Primary School Year 6 KS2 made from the joint Sports
Hardship Fund (as detailed in Appendix 2 of the report) be
noted;

(3)

the following grants from the Local Committee’s Contain
Outbreak Management Fund (as listed below and
summarised in Appendix 3 of the report) be noted:(a)

£5,000 to Carlisle Key to provide drop-in service for
homeless young people (meets the requirements of
the welfare group);

(b)

£2,000 to Cumbria Meals on Wheels towards
volunteer and transport costs;

(c)

£3,000 to Brampton Area Action Group (BAAG) to
provide additional equipment for both their food
project and their hardship project;

14

(4)

(d)

£5,000 to The Parish of 4 Communities (TP4C) to
appoint a youth worker for their four communities
which will be universal provision and open to all;

(e)

£5,000 to Every Life Matters, a suicide prevention
charity, to create a mural to go on the street art trail
themed around suicide prevention and raising
awareness of telephone/text support services
available to those dealing with thoughts of suicide.
The mural will be the launch of Safer Suicide Carlisle
and the funding will be conditional on agreement that
the image is pre-approved;

(f)

£3,000 to Step Together Volunteering to work with
the Armed Forces Co-ordinator at Cumbria CVS and
the Heathlands Project to create a new community
garden.
Step Together will be providing an
opportunity for veterans whilst creating a safe space
that leaves a legacy for years to come;

(g)

£4,000 to Brampton Acting Together (BAT) to
develop a Parkrun at Talkin Tarn;

the following grants over £5,000 from the Local Committee’s
Contain Outbreak Management Fund (as listed below and
detailed in Appendix 3 of the report) be approved:(a)

£9,560 to Carlisle Youth Zone to provide healthy
lifestyle activities as part of a healthy weight pilot
project for the Children and Families group and WHO
Healthy City Group;

(b)

£11,883 to Citizens Advice Carlisle and Eden to
provide Digital Advisor service once original advisors
return to face-to-face support (this meets the
requirements of the welfare group);

(c)

£15,000 to Active Cumbria to roll out the Active Start
Programme to early years settings across Carlisle
(this meets the requirements of the Children &
Families Group);

(5)

the amended schedule of works and budgets associated with
the Contain Outbreak Management Fund to improve outdoor
spaces and hold area based events and activities (attached
as Appendix 4 of the report) be approved;

(6)

the following grants made from the Local Committee’s Grants
Panel Meeting held on 18 August 2021 be noted:-

15

23

(a)

Area Planning Funding

(i)

£1,750 to Feel Good Mama Meets Carlisle towards
improving communities by providing monthly meet
ups in local settings for antenatal and postnatal
women and those with babies under two years old;

(ii)

£2,100 to Carlisle One World Centre towards the
provision of health and wellbeing messages,
including ongoing vaccine promotion, and healthy
living activities particularly to refugee groups and
those who receive support from Carlisle One World
Centre;

(ii)

£1,500 to Yewdale Community Foundation towards
developing more flexible meeting spaces using
technology in the light of the pandemic;

(iv)

£3,625 to North Cumbria University Hospital
Charitable Fund towards a new project 'Music
Medicine' which will be run by Healing Arts. Healing
Arts runs art based projects in the acute and
community hospitals to help aid staff and patient
wellbeing;

(b)

0-19 Funding

(i)

£700 to Morton Community Centre towards an
October half-term holiday Scheme.

INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT PLAN WORKING GROUP

Members received the minutes of the Infrastructure Delivery Plan Working Group
meetings held on 29 April and 10 August 2021.
The Committee noted there were ongoing issues regarding the necessary
infrastructure which was required to deliver the Local Plan with the IDP Funding
Gap report still awaited. Members raised their concerns regarding the increasing
number of additional housing developments which had secured planning permission
and the potential consequences they could have on the infrastructure and future
provision of education.
RESOLVED, that the minutes be noted.

16

24

2021/22 HIGHWAYS BUDGET/PROGRAMME PROGRESS REPORT

The Committee received a report from the Executive Director – Economy and
Infrastructure which presented the Highways Revenue, Devolved Capital and NonDevolved Capital budget finance reports, combined with the highways programme
progress information.
The local Member for Botcherby asked if the funding was still available for the
scheme on Warwick Road, if it would be resurfaced this year and be included on the
next programme progress report. The Local Area Highways Network Manager
confirmed the funding was still available and a report would be considered at a
future meeting of the Carlisle Highways and Transport Working Group.
The local Member for Botcherby asked for further information about the length of the
Eastern Way scheme and clarification regarding the inclusion of the pavement and
drainage works on the Victoria Road, Wood Street to Warwick Road A69 scheme. It
was agreed the Local Area Highways Network Manager would investigate those
matters and report back direct.
RESOLVED,

25

that the following be noted:(1)

the Highways programme progress information (as shown in
Appendices 4 and 5 of the report);

(2)

the various Highways Revenue budget allocations and
headings (detailed in Appendix 1 of the report);

(3)

the various Highways Capital budget allocations and
headings (referred to in Appendix 2 of the report.

EXPERIMENTAL SCHOOL STREETS ORDER - SAFER STREETS

The Committee considered a report from the Executive Director – Economy and
Infrastructure which informed members of the responses to the Statutory
Consultation undertaken for the proposal to introduce two School Streets in Carlisle,
at St Bede’s Catholic School and Inglewood Infants, under an Experimental Order.
It was explained that the School Streets initiative was aimed at reducing traffic levels
outside of schools during the arrival and departure times.
Members welcomed the schools which would be included in the initiative whilst
noting that both sites identified were ‘no through’ roads and asked how officers
would apply the principles to ‘through’ roads. The Traffic Management Team
Leader confirmed that this scheme was being rolled out across the county with the
inclusion of ‘through’ roads in other areas and information would be shared
regarding each scheme.

17

During the course of discussion concerns were raised with regards to moving the
problems to surrounding streets; the Traffic Management Team Leader confirmed
that regular contact would be made with the schools to identify any issues.
RESOLVED,

26

that having taken into consideration the matters contained in
Section 122(2) of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 (more
specifically referred to a paragraph 7.2 of the report), approve the
introduction of an Experimental School Street Order, outside St
Bede’s Catholic School and Inglewood School, on Strathclyde
Avenue and School Road, Carlisle respectively, for a period of 1
hour at either end of the school day, with permitted exemptions, (as
shown on the plans attached as Appendix 1 to the report).

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT TEAM REPORT

Members considered a detailed report from the Executive Director – Corporate,
Customer and Community Services which gave an overview of the work of the
Community Development Team during COVID to date from late March 2020 to end
of August 2021.
The Committee was provided with a summary of partnership work of the Community
Development Team, including case studies showcasing the work they had
undertaken. Members were also provided with a summary of community grant
activity processed by the Team during the same period which crossed two financial
years.
Members welcomed the report and paid tribute to the Team for the outstanding work
they had undertaken during the pandemic.
RESOLVED,

that the report be noted.

27

MEMBER CHAMPION UPDATES

a

Children in Care Council Champion

Members received a verbal update from Elizabeth Mallinson the Committee’s
Children in Care Council Champion who informed the Committee of the positive
engagement which had taken place during the summer period with Looked After
Children.
Mrs Mallinson thanked staff and carers for their valued on-going support and made
particular reference to their positive engagement during the pandemic.
b

Autism Champion

Members received an update from Christine Bowditch, the Local Committee’s
Autism Champion who highlighted that an important aspect of her role was to point
people in the direction of help and support for themselves and their families. The

18

Committee was informed there were at least six organisations offering a range of
valuable help and support for autistic people and their families and carers which
included NHS, third sector organisations, County Council Local Offer as well as the
National Autistic Society who had support services based in Cumbria.
The Committee welcomed the establishment of an autism group by the University of
Cumbria together with the free live one-to-one chats available on the Parent action
website.
Mrs Bowditch explained that in addition to autism people can also have severe/
moderate learning differences, therefore, was considering extending her Champion
role, in line with the excellent County Council Disability and Autism Board, to
support this additional category of people and their families where needed.
In conclusion, Mrs Bowditch suggested that, here today, members promise
themselves that they think of individuals as ‘different‘ and emphasised the need to
start to change the thinking revolution.

c

Armed Forces Champion

The Local Committee’s Armed Forces Champion informed members that due to the
relaxation of lockdown restrictions it was now possible for veterans’ meetings to take
place and welcomed back the Breakfast Club once a venue had been sought.
Mrs Tarbitt explained that the Allotment Project continued at Heathlands and thanks
were received from the Team for the Committee’s funding support.
The Committee noted that Mrs Tarbitt continued to support a number of veterans via
Gateway and encouraged members to seek support from her for veterans in their
Division.

The Chair thanked all of the member champions for their enthusiasm and invaluable
support.
28

LOCAL COMMITTEE CHAIRS AND LEADERSHIP MEETING

RESOLVED, that the minutes of the Local Committee Chairs and Leadership
meeting held on 5 July 2021 be noted.
29

LOCAL COMMITTEE FOR CARLISLE - FORWARD PLAN

The current Forward Plan of business for future meetings of the Local Committee
was noted.

19

30

DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

RESOLVED, that the next scheduled meeting will take place on Tuesday
9 November 2021 at 10.00 am in Cumbria House, Botchergate,
Carlisle.

The meeting ended at 12.00 pm

20

Agenda Item 6
COUNTY COUNCIL LOCAL COMMITTEE FOR
CARLISLE
Meeting date:
From:

9 November 2021

Executive Director – Corporate, Customer and
Community Services

REVISED TERMS OF REFERENCE
1.0

INTRODUCTION

1.1.

This report is to advise of the revised Terms of Reference for Local Committees
which all Members are to note.

1.2

The revised Terms of Reference are set out in the Appendix to this report.

2.0

BACKGROUND

2.1

The recommended changes to the Local Committees Terms of Reference and
the Officers Scheme of Delegation is to clarify and strengthen the role of Local
Committees in decision-making relating to certain placed-based investment
schemes. The funds in question are the Towns Fund, Future High Streets
Fund and District Council Levelling-Up Fund applications and other similar
funds.

2.2

The proposed draft Terms of Reference were considered by the Constitution
Review Group on 28 July 2021 and then reviewed and approved by Council on
7 September and now replace the previous Terms of Reference as Part 2D of
the Council’s Constitution.

3.0

RECOMMENDATION

3.1

That members note the Terms of Reference of the Committee.

21

4.0

CONCLUSION

4.1

This report is to inform members of the Terms of Reference of the Committee.

Dawn Roberts
Executive Director – Corporate, Customer and Community Services
September 2021

APPENDICES
Appendix

Revised Terms of Reference

Electoral Divisions:

All Carlisle

Executive Decision

No

Key Decision

No

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan?
Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency?

N/A
No

If exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant
Overview and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained?
Has this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny?
If so, give details below.

N/A

No

Has an environmental or sustainability impact assessment been
undertaken?

N/A

Has an equality impact assessment been undertaken?

N/A

N.B.

If an executive decision is made, then a decision cannot be implemented until the expiry
of the eighth working day after the date of the meeting – unless the decision is urgent
and exempt from call-in and necessary approvals have been obtained.

PREVIOUS RELEVANT COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS
No previous relevant decisions

22

CONSIDERATION BY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
Not considered by Overview and Scrutiny

BACKGROUND PAPERS
No background papers

REPORT AUTHOR
Contact: Lynn Harker
Tel: 07825 340229
Email: lynn.harker@cumbria.gov.uk

23

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX

PART 2D: Local Committees
1.

Introduction

1.1

The Council has six Local Committees, one for each of the following areas:







Allerdale
Barrow
Carlisle
Copeland
Eden
South Lakeland

1.2

Each covers the area defined by the area boundary of one of Cumbria’s
district councils and exercises its functions in relation to that area.

2.

Membership

2.1

The county councillors elected for electoral divisions wholly or partly within the
area of the Local Committee.

2.2

Local Committees may co-opt an additional member from the relevant District
Council, who shall be a non-voting member of the committee.

3.

Working Groups

3.1

Local committees may establish working groups or sub-groups to progress
key areas of work between meetings of the local committee. Working groups
and sub-groups do not have decision making powers.

4.

Purpose of Local Committees

4.1

The main purpose of Local Committees is to optimise the use of Council
assets and resources in their area; to influence Council policies and strategies
affecting their area; and through the “whole area approach”, to work with
communities and partner organisations to enable public services to be shaped
locally, to achieve the best possible outcomes within available resources.

4.2

Each Local Committee also has specified executive decision making powers,
delegated by the Leader of the Council, which are set out in this Part and
which are subject to call in.

25

4.3

In carrying out their functions, Local Committees must comply with the
Council’s budget and policy framework and the policies of the Council as
adopted by full Council or the Cabinet.

5.

Functions of Local Committees

5.1

The functions of a Local Committee are to:

5.1.1 Area Planning Functions
a)

Review regularly the planned Council activities operating within the
area covered by the committee, to understand and make use of local
knowledge to support the development of natural communities; and to
report annually to Local Committee Chairs and Leadership on progress
and future plans.

b)

Liaise with other bodies delivering services in the area, to seek to coordinate planned activities, and to improve services for the residents of
the area by working together as effectively as possible.

c)

Consider, and where requested provide a response, to reports following
external inspections, including by OFSTED, CQC and HMICFRS.

d)

Make representations to the relevant decision maker on:
(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)
(vi)

e)

matters requiring formal school organisation proposals;
community regeneration and infrastructure development;
service provision within the Local Committee’s area;
proposed
community asset transfers in the Local Committee’s area
any other matter affecting the Local Committee’s area.

Agree, monitor and review the Local Committee’s budget, subject to
any ring-fencing directions issued by Cabinet.

5.1.2 Decision Making Functions
Town Fund, Levelling-Up Fund and Future High Street Fund
Determine the Council’s position in respect of any proposal or business plan
submitted by any other body under the Town Fund, Levelling-Up Fund (other
than a bid submitted by the Council under its power to submit a transport bid
under the Levelling-Up Fund), Future High Street Fund or any other similar
government programme that provides funding for local schemes which relates
entirely to the Local Committee’s area, as determined in writing by the Leader.

26

Business Improvement Districts
(a)

Determine the Council’s position in respect of a proposal to establish a
Business Improvement District in the Local Committee’s area.

(b)

Authorise an officer to exercise the Council’s vote in accordance with
the approved position, in the ballot relating to the proposal.

Community Investment Grants
(a)

Adopt and keep under review a policy for the award of grants from the
Local Committee’s budget, in line with any guidance issued by Cabinet
or the s151 Officer.

(b)

Approve applications for grants from the Local Committee’s budgets for
amounts exceeding £5,000 in line with the policy.

(c)

Review and evaluate grants awarded from the Local Committee’s
budget.

Highways Transport and Parking
(a)

Agree and keep under review the implementation of, the highways
revenue budget and capital programme for the local committee’s area
to support the Council to carry out its statutory duty to maintain the
highway in a safe condition as far as reasonably practicable.

(b)

Approve the making of traffic regulation orders in accordance with
powers under Parts I, II and IV of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984,
except for the making of Traffic Regulation Orders which involve the
introduction of charging for on-street residents permits, which are
delegated to the Executive Director – Economy and Infrastructure
subject to a decision of the appropriate member body to introduce such
charges.

Miscellaneous
(a)

Commission technical assessments to ascertain the need for school
crossing patrols in the Local Committee area and establish or
disestablish patrols in accordance with Council Policy.

(b)

Appoint members to outside bodies where the power to appoint to the
body has been delegated to the Local Committee.

(c)

Exercise the Council’s functions as trustee where the Council is the
sole trustee of a trust based in the Local Committee’s area.

27

5.2

Referrals to Cabinet
Local Committees may refer to Cabinet specific issues that the committee
considers to be of significant concern in their area, which fall within the remit
of the Cabinet.

28

Carlisle Local Committee
Library Update - November 2021

29

Agenda Item 7

Serving the people of Cumbria

Overview of 2020 – 2021 for Carlisle

30

• Covid related closures and re-opening
• Introduction of enhanced online offer and
select and collect
• Increased joint work with HAWCs and Adult
Learning
• Relocation of Carlisle West
• Announcement of Towns Deal Funding
• Full service restructure

Serving the people of Cumbria

Delivery highlights for Carlisle

31

Serving the people of Cumbria

Changes to the local team

32

• Library and Customer Manager – Bernadette Main
• 2 x Senior Library and Customer Assistants – Julie Bamber & Sophie
Connelly
• Library and Customer Assistants assimilations
• Countywide Culture, Outreach and Partnership Team providing bespoke
local support
• Countywide Library Development Team offering expert, professional
advice to the local network
• Significant number of vacancies at present being recruited into

Serving the people of Cumbria

Looking forward - new projects and collaborations

33

• Development of the Digital Hub – involvement of customers, partners
and Members
• Business and Intellectual Property Centre Hub
• Partnership working with DWP, Tullie House, University of Cumbria
• Local Studies & the Jackson collection
• Wi-fi printing due by the end of the year
• Increase to resources that reflect equality and diversity
• Early intervention literacy initiatives – Baby Bounce & Rhyme
sessions, Toddler story-times

Serving the people of Cumbria

Questions?
34

Serving the people of Cumbria

Agenda Item 8
COUNTY COUNCIL LOCAL COMMITTEE FOR
CARLISLE
Meeting date:
From:

9 November 2021

Executive Director – Corporate, Customer and
Community Services

AREA PLANNING REPORT
1.0

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

This report provides local committee with recommendations and
matters to note relating to:




Budget commitments
Grant allocations from the recommendations of its Strategic Grants
Panel
Other relevant matters relating to Area Planning.

2.0

STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

2.1

The items covered by this report support the council to achieve the
outcomes stated in the Council Plan 2018-2022:




2.2

The items covered by this report support Carlisle Local Committee to
achieve its agreed priorities of:





2.3

People in Cumbria are healthy and safe
Places in Cumbria are well-connected and thriving
The economy in Cumbria is growing and benefits everyone

Developing our economy and infrastructure
Improving health and wellbeing
Improving outcomes for children and young people
Developing thriving communities

Improved locality working is one of the ways the council is delivering
on its priorities. The county council vision, included in the Council Plan
2018-2022, sets out that it will be ‘A Council that works with residents,
businesses, communities and other organisations to deliver the best
services possible within the available resources.’ The approach and
work of the Local Committee directly contributes to this vision.

35

2.4

Locally devolved funding is available for Carlisle Local Committee to
allocate within the area to support positive outcomes, targeted and
mainstream, designed to improve outcomes for the communities of
Carlisle. This funding can be targeted to initiate new activity or to
enhance/complement existing provision according to locally
determined need.

2.5

A separate Equality Impact Assessment is not required for this report
since equality issues are dealt with at a project level for each of the
applications to funding within the course of the year.

3.0

RECOMMENDATION

3.1

That the Committee notes the commitments made and the remaining
balances within delegated budgets and notes the grants detailed in
Appendix 1.

3.2

That the Committee notes grants made from the Area Planning Fund as
listed below and summarised in Appendix 2.


3.3

That the Committee notes grants made from its 0-19 Funding as listed
below and summarised in Appendix 3.


3.4

£1,500 to Upperby Elderly Activities Group

£5,000 to Great Orton Parish Council towards new play equipment

That the Committee notes the following grants from its Contain
Outbreak Management Fund as listed below and summarised in
Appendix 4:
£4,285 to CADAS towards the cost of extra staff for face-to-face
support from office base and virtual outreach.
£5,000 to ParkPlay to set up Parkplay within Heysham Park. A free
weekly event similar to parkrun every Saturday, but with play activities
for children.
£3,000 to Carlisle Matters for a new online booking system, freeing up
administration time to support other community activities.
£1,000 to Cumbria Gateway to support vulnerable women and children
with emergency toiletries, laundry & cleaning products.
£4,000 to Pennine Way Primary School PTA to make the campus covid
safe with new hard-wearing flooring in Harraby Community Campus
communal area to determine clear boundaries as to where the different
areas start / finish.
£2,819 to Cumbria Police to support Carlisle to host the ‘knife angel’ as
a National Monument Against Violence & Aggression.

36

£3,000 to Carlisle Matters towards the cost of Winter Resilience events
in Botcherby, Brampton and Longtown;
3.5

4.0

nominations are sought from Local Committee in respect of the
following:
(i)

Carlisle Educational Charity Fund - a nomination previously held
by Councillor Bowditch which has expired;

(ii)

Carlisle Joint Member Advisory Group - a vacancy exists
alongside Councillors Weber and McGuckin;

(iii)

Carlisle Local Committee Strategic Grants Panel to replace the
nomination held by Councillor W Graham.

BACKGROUND
Community Budget

4.1

A summary of spending against Local Committee discretionary/ budgets is
provided at Appendix 1. Further details can be provided to councillors on
request. Monitoring reports will be provided to local committee members at
each committee meeting, to summarise the most up to date position with
regard to the Communities Budget, taking account of decisions taken by the
Local Committee. Further information concerning spending against the
spending from the discretionary grants budget lines is available from the
Carlisle Community Development Team and reported to the grants panel as
required.
Local Committee Strategic Grants Panel

4.2

Attached at Appendix 2 is a summary of the Area Planning Fund Grants, at
Appendix 3 a summary of 0-19 grants and at Appendix 4 a summary of the
Contain Outbreak Management Fund grant applications. There are no grant
applications over £5,000 requiring approval by Local Committee
Further information can be made available to any councillor on request.
Nominations to Outside Bodies

4.3

Due to expiry, nominations are sought from Local Committee in respect of
the following:
Carlisle Educational Charity Fund - a nomination previously held by
Cllr Bowditch but the term of office has expired.
Carlisle Joint Member Advisory Group. A vacancy exists alongside
Cllrs Weber and McGuckin.
Carlisle Local Committee Strategic Grants Panel to replace the
nomination held by Cllr W Graham.

5.0

OPTIONS

5.1

Members may review and evaluate the recommendations. Members may
choose to approve, vary or reject the recommendations. Members may wish
to comment on other aspects contained within the report.

37

6.0

RESOURCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS

6.1

The Local Committee’s Communities budget position at 20 October is
summarised in Appendix 1 to this report.

6.2

There are currently unallocated resources of £46,368 in the Area Planning
budget. The commitment of £1,500 to note in recommendation 3.2 will
reduce the available resources in this budget to £44,868.

6.3

The 0-19 Services budget currently has unallocated resources of £86,417.
The commitment of £5,000 to note in recommendation 3.3 will reduce the
available resources within this budget to £81,417.

6.4

The Contain Outbreak Management Fund grants listed in recommendation
3.4 are all funded from grant funding so do not impact available resources
within the Local Committee’s budget.

7.0

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1

Recommendations 3.1, 3.2, 3.3 and 3.4 are all items for members to note.
There are, therefore, no direct legal implications.

8.0

CONCLUSION

8.1

This report provides Local Committee with an update on its budget position,
its grant allocations and other related Area Planning issues.

Dawn Roberts
Executive Director - Corporate, Customer and Community Services
18 October 2021

APPENDICES
Appendix 1: Summary Financial Statement
Appendix 2: Area Planning Grant Summary
Appendix 3: 0-19 Grant Summary
Appendix 4: COMF Grant Summary
Electoral Divisions:

All

Executive Decision

No

Key Decision

No

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan?
Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency?
If exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant
Overview and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained?

38

N/A
No
N/A

Has this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny?
If so, give details below.

No

Has an environmental or sustainability impact assessment been
undertaken?

N/A

Has an equality impact assessment been undertaken?

N/A

N.B.

If an executive decision is made, then a decision cannot be implemented until the
expiry of the eighth working day after the date of the meeting – unless the decision is
urgent and exempt from call-in and necessary approvals have been obtained.

PREVIOUS RELEVANT COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS
No previous relevant decisions.

CONSIDERATION BY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
Not considered by Overview and Scrutiny.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
No background papers.

REPORT AUTHOR
Contact: Paul Musgrave, Area Manager, Carlisle
paul.musgrave@cumbria.gov.uk
Tel 07900 662658

39

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 1
CARLISLE LOCAL COMMITTEE 2021/22
SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENT : OCTOBER 2021

Discretionary budgets total allocation
Allocated by Local Committee 2021/22:
General Provision
Area Plan Projects
Community Grants
School Crossing Patrols
0-19 Services
Local Member Revenue Schemes

Appendix Budget Sector

239,556
Allocate

Reallocate

Total
Original

86,391
0
0
21,613
131,552
0

-86,391
60,743
72,200
0
-46,552

0
60,743
72,200
21,613
85,000
0

239,556

0

239,556

41

2021/22
Original
Budget

Balance
B/Fwd

Virement
In

Virement
Out

Revised
Budget

Other
Contribs

£

£

£

£

£

£

2021/22
Remaining
Actual
Spending Commitments Expenditure
Limit
to Date
£

£

Expenditure
and
Commitments

£

£

Unallocated
Resources
or
Variance
£

Revenue Budgets:

B
C
D
E
F

Discretionary Budgets
General Provision
Area Plan Projects
Community Grants
School Crossing Patrols
0-19 Services
Other Revenue Budgets
Area Support Team
Money Advice Contract - CAB

G

Environment Fund

H

Contain Outbreak Management Fund
LOCAL COMMITTEE TOTAL

0
60,743
72,200
21,613
85,000
239,556

1,000
49,716
79,410
3,300
39,127
172,553

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0

1,000
110,459
151,610
24,913
124,127
412,109

0
0
0
0
0
0

1,000
110,459
151,610
24,913
124,127
412,109

1,000
17,744
8,165
15,947
4,500
47,356

0
46,347
16,394
7,098
33,210
103,049

1,000
64,091
24,559
23,045
37,710
150,405

0
46,368
127,051
1,868
86,417
261,704

129,772
53,890

0
0

0
0

0
0

129,772
53,890

0
0

129,772
53,890

0
0

129,772
53,890

129,772
53,890

0
0

183,662

0

0

0

183,662

0

183,662

0

183,662

183,662

0

200,000

0

0

0

200,000

0

200,000

200,000

0

200,000

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

148,457

-148,457

0

0

623,218

172,553

0

0

795,771

0

795,771

395,813

138,254

534,067

261,704

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 2

CARLISLE LOCAL COMMITTEE AREA PLANNING GRANT FUNDING
Summary of Area Planning Grant Applications for
Grants Panel – 12th October 2021
Current Balance 2021-22 (reducing) = £14,697.00
Amount of grants recommended below: £1,500.00
Remaining balance if all awarded as recommended: £13,197

Area

Grant application

Total
Project
Cost

Amount
Requested

43
Upperby

CGA/718-21- Upperby
Elderly Activities Group

£3,000

£3,000

Officer Recommendation

Grant Panel
Recommendation

Total £1825.00
£325.00 from Upperby Allocation
(Agreed with Cllr Stewart Young)
£1500.00 from area with the
recommendation that residents
contribute to each event

Agreed £1,500 with the
recommendation that
residents contribute to each
event

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 3

CARLISLE LOCAL COMMITTEE 0-19 GRANT FUNDING
Summary of 0-19 Grant Applications for
Grants Panel – 12th October 2021
Current Balance 0-19 General budget 2021-22 (reducing) = £88,546.00
Amount of grants requested below: £6,000
Remaining balance if all awarded as recommended: £83,546.00

45

Area

Dalston
and Burgh

Grant application

CGA/742-21 - Orton Parish Council –
new play equipment

Total Project
Cost

£40,000

Amount
Requested

£8,000

Officer
Recommendation

Grant Panel Recommendation

£2,000 from Dalston
and Burgh allocation
(agreed by Cllr T
Allison)
Agreed £5,000 from 0-19 funding
Contribution upto
£6,000 from 0-19 to
complete the work

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 4

CARLISLE LOCAL COMMITTEE COMF GRANT FUNDING
Summary of COMF Grant Applications for
Grants Panel – 15th October 2021
Current Balance COMF £100K budget 2021-22 (reducing): £20,104
Amount of grants requested below: £20,104
Recommended amount: £20,104
Remaining balance if all awarded as recommended: £0

47

Area

Area-Wide

Belle Vue

Area-Wide

Grant application
CADAS
Towards the cost of extra staff for faceto-face support from office base and
virtual outreach.
(WHO Healthy City)
ParkPlay
To set up parkplay within Heysham Park.
A free weekly event similar to parkrun
every saturday, but with play activities
for children.
(WHO Healthy City and Children &
Families)
Carlisle Matters
For a new online booking system,
freeing up administration time to support
other community activities.
(CV19 Communities Group)

Total Project
Cost

Amount
Requested

Officer
Recommendation

£4,285

£4,285

£4,285

CGA/766-21
approved

£5,000

£5,000

£5,000

CGA/762-21
approved

£3,000

£3,000

£3,000

CGA/759-21
approved

Grant Panel Recommendation

Area-Wide

Harraby
North

Area-wide

Cumbria Gateway
Application to support vulnerable women
and children with emergency toiletries,
laundry & cleaning products.
(Welfare Reform Board)
Pennine Way Primary School PTA
To make the campus covid safe with
new hard-wearing flooring in Harraby
Community Campus communal area to
determine clear boundaries as to where
the different areas start / finish.
(CV19 Community Group)
Cumbria Police
To support Carlisle to host the ‘knife
angel’ as a National Monument Against
Violence & Aggression.
(WHO Healthy City)

£1,000

£1,000

£1,000

CGA/751-21
approved

£5,000

£4,000

£4,000

CGA/750-21
approved

£2,819

Not yet on system
(earmarked)
Would like further information on
how long and where the
education programme will go.

£5,000

n/a

48

CARLISLE LOCAL COMMITTEE COMF GRANT FUNDING
Summary of COMF EVENTS Grant Applications for
Grants Panel – 15th October 2021
Current Balance COMF £3K budget 2021-22 (reducing): £3,000
Amount of grants requested below: £3,000
Recommended amount: £3,000
Remaining balance if all awarded as recommended: £0

Area

49
Area-Wide

Grant application
Carlisle Matters
Towards the cost of Winter Resilience
events in Botcherby, Brampton and
Longtown.
(Carlisle Community Resilience Group)

Total Project
Cost

Amount
Requested

Officer
Recommendation

£3,861

£3,000

£3,000

Grant Panel Recommendation

CGA/752-21
approved

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9
COUNTY COUNCIL LOCAL COMMITTEE FOR CARLISLE
Meeting date:
From:

9 November 2021

Executive Director – Economy and Infrastructure

2021/22 HIGHWAYS BUDGET / PROGRAMME PROGRESS REPORT
1.0

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

This report presents the Highways Revenue, Devolved Capital and
Non-Devolved Capital Budget finance reports, combined with the
highways programme progress information, as detailed in the attached
appendices.

2.0

STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

2.1

Carlisle Committee’s devolved 2021/22 Cash Limited Budget was
determined by the County Council on 18 February 2021. The Local
Committee can vire funding between budget lines during the financial
year, subject to Corporate Policy and Service Standards. The
Committee is not able to vire funding from capital budgets into revenue
budgets.

2.2

The allocated Highways Revenue budget for 2021/22 is £1,438,010.

2.3

The allocated Devolved Highways Capital budget for 2021/22 is
£2,465,000.

2.4

The Non-devolved Highways CAPITAL budget for 2021/22 is £1,809,000.

3.0

RECOMMENDATION

3.1

That Local Committee note the Highways programme progress
information shown in Appendices 4 and 5.

3.2

That Local Committee note the various Highways Revenue budget
allocations and headings shown in Appendix 1.

3.3

That Local Committee note the various Highways Capital budget
allocations and headings shown in Appendix 2.

51

4.0

BACKGROUND

4.1

The available highways REVENUE budget for 2021/22 is £1,438,010.

4.2

Works ordered against the highways revenue budget are delivered through a
combination of the in-house workforce for Highway Maintenance, Lighting
Maintenance and Drainage Maintenance and external contractors for Traffic
Signals Maintenance, Verge Maintenance and Road Marking Maintenance.

4.3

The available devolved highways CAPITAL budget for 2021/22 is
£2,465,000. Forecast outturn figures and comments on programme progress
are shown in Appendix 5.
Works ordered against the devolved highways capital budget are delivered
through a combination of in-house construction teams and external
framework contractors, notably for machine-laid road surfacing work and
surface dressing.

4.4

The NON-DEVOLVED highways capital programme for 21/22 is £1,809,000.

5.0

OPTIONS

5.1

That Local Committee may vire revenue funding between revenue funded
budget headings.

5.2

The Local Committee may vire devolved capital funding between devolved
capital funded budget headings.

5.3

The Local Committee may not vire funding between revenue, devolved
capital or (additional) devolved capital budgets.

6.0

RESOURCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS

6.1

The Local Committee Highways budgets as indicated in Appendices 1 and 2
were approved by Council in February 2021.

6.2

The 2021/22 Highways Revenue budget is forecasting on budget.

6.3

The 2021/22 Devolved Highways Capital budget is forecasting on budget.

7.0

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The recommendations in this report do not contain any legal implications
however Local Committee could take decisions that could have future legal
implications.

7.2

When allocating and moving money between budgets, Local Committee
must follow the rules set by the Council following its consideration of the
“Draft Revenue Budget 2021/22 and Medium Term Financial Plan
(2021-2026) and Draft Capital Programme (2021–2026)” report (“the
Report”) on 18 February 2021 and any such additional restrictions set by
Cabinet and or Council regulating the use of such funds.

52

7.3

Local Committees may, pursuant to Part 2D, paragraph 5.1.2 (f), of the
Constitution, agree and keep under review the implementation of, the
highways revenue budget and capital programme for the local committee’s
area to support the Council to carry out its statutory duty to maintain the
highway in a safe condition as far as reasonably practicable.

8.0

CONCLUSION

8.1

The 2021/22 Highways Revenue Budget is forecasting on budget.

8.2

The 2021/22 Highways Devolved Capital budget is forecasting on budget.

8.3

The 2021/22 Highways Non-Devolved Capital Budget is forecasting £29,000
over budget.

Angela Jones
Executive Director – Economy and Infrastructure
November 2021

APPENDICES
Appendix 1
Appendix 2
Appendix 3
Appendix 4
Appendix 5

–
–
–
–
–

21/22 Highways Revenue Allocation
21/22 Highways Devolved Capital Allocation
21/22 Highways Capital Works Programme
21/22 Highways Revenue Works Progress
21/22 Highways Devolved Capital Works Progress

Electoral Divisions: All
Executive Decision

Yes

Key Decision

No

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan?
Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency?
If exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant Overview
and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained?
Has this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny?
If so, give details below.

N/A
No
N/A
No

Has an environmental or sustainability impact assessment been undertaken?

No

Has an equality impact assessment been undertaken?

No

N.B.

If an executive decision is made, then a decision cannot be implemented until the
expiry of the eighth working day after the date of the meeting – unless the decision is
urgent and exempt from call-in and necessary approvals have been obtained.

53

PREVIOUS RELEVANT COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS
No previous relevant decisions.

CONSIDERATION BY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
Not considered by Overview and Scrutiny.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
No background papers.
REPORT AUTHOR
Contact: Amy Hutson– Highways Network Manager
E-mail
amy.hutson@cumbria.gov.uk

54

Appendix 1 - 2021/2022 Highways REVENUE budget
2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

Variance

55

Carriageway Maintenance

£

732,694 £

732,694

£

677,694 -£

55,000

Drainage Maintenance

£

180,000 £

180,000

£

306,316 £

126,316

Lighting Maintenance

£

230,000 £

230,000

£

230,000 £

-

Traffic Signals Maintenance

£

100,000 £

100,000

£

100,000 £

-

Verge Maintenance

£

95,000 £

95,000

£

95,000 £

-

Road Marking Maintenance

£

29,000 £

29,000

£

29,000 £

-

Other

£

-

£

HIGHWAYS REVENUE BUDGET TOTAL

£ 1,366,694 £ 1,366,694

7%
16%
Chart showing the proposed
REVENUE Budget allocation split

21%

-

7%

£

2%

-

£

£ 1,438,010 £

47%

-

71,316

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 2 - 2021/2022 Highways Devolved CAPITAL Programme Budget Headings

Previous

Previous

2019/2020

2020/2021

2021/2022

Variance

Identifed Defects Planned Works Programme

£

665,000 £

450,000

£

280,000

-£

170,000

Structural Carriageway Works Programme

£

300,000 £

630,000

£

349,346

-£

280,654

Pre-surface Treatment Works Programme

£

450,000 £

465,000

£

398,653

-£

66,347

Surface Treatment Works Programme

£

700,000 £

700,000

£

550,735

-£

149,265

Surface Sealing Works Programme

£

120,000 £

120,000

£

92,958

-£

27,042

Footway Maintenance Works Programme

£

380,000 £

400,000

£

287,161

-£

112,839

Drainage Maintenance Works Programme

£

230,000 £

280,000

£

263,000

-£

17,000

Street Lighting Works Programme

£

125,000 £

125,000

£

125,500

£

500

Minor Improvements Works Programme

£

120,000 £

120,000

£

117,647

-£

2,353

Traffic Signals Works Programme

£

-

£

-

£

-

£

-

Bridges and Structures Works Programme

£

-

£

-

£

-

£

-

HIGHWAYS CAPITAL BUDGET TOTAL

£

3,090,000 £

3,290,000

£

2,465,000

-£

825,000

Previous and proposed Devolved Highways Capital Budgets (BASIC)

Identifed Defects Planned Works Programme
Structural Carriageway Works Programme
Pre-surface Treatment Works Programme
Surface Treatment Works Programme
Surface Sealing Works Programme
Footway Maintenance Works Programme

2021/2022

Drainage Maintenance Works Programme
Street Lighting Works Programme

2020/2021

Minor Improvements Works Programme

2019/2020

Traffic Signals Works Programme
Bridges and Structures Works Programme
£-

£200,000

57

£400,000

£600,000

£800,000

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 3 - 2021/2022 Indicative Highways Devolved CAPITAL Programme [FOR INFORMATION ONLY]

DfT budget

NPRN Carlisle

Identified Defects Planned Works Programme

UID

Electoral Division

Various

Road Number Scheme Name - Location

Various

HCSI Works Programme 2021/2022

Work Type

Works identified by the HCSI and programmed by WWP

Total Costs (£)

£

280,000

21/22

✓

Structural Carriageway Works Programme

UID

Electoral Division

Road Number Scheme Name - Location

Work Type

Total Costs (£)

21/22

59

£

30,000

✓

Grearshill Road, Carlisle - between the junction with Kingstown Broadway
Inlay (South)
HRA 35/14
and &
Subway
Kerbs PH1

£

85,500

✓

U170

Pennine Way - Arnside Road to Tindale Drive

Resurface

£

77,463

✓

Wetheral

B6263

Exelby Services to Cumwhinton

Inlay

£

98,078

✓

Longtown

U1034

Murray holme to Jct of Myre

100mm overlay (60mm binder AC20 dense & 40mm thin surface course) with drainage and civils work included

£

28,750

✓

Dalston and Burgh

U1133

Cardewlees - outside Quarry entrance

Inlay

£

29,555

✓

£

349,346

Various

Various

Investigation and Testing 2021/2022

Belah

U1363

Harraby North

Testing

Botcherby\ Harraby

C1045

Eastern Way - between junction with London Road and Railway BridgeInlay

£

144,112

✓

Harraby South

U167

Petteril Bank Road - 3rd Phase between shops and Aldi Roundabout Inlay

£

31,500

✓

Castle

U136

Scotch Street - speed ramp repairs and turning head area near Costa Coffee
Lift and relay block paving - approximately 80% of blocks to replace like for like or similar approved.

£

28,662

✓

Houghton and Irthington

C1012

Houghton Village - between the A689 and Motorway Bridge / outsideInlay
the village green

£

79,944

✓

Longtown

U1014

Oakshaw Hill and Laws Hall, Easton

Overlay

£

64,000

✓

Stanwix Urban

B6264

Brampton Road - Longlands Road (East) junction to the Near Boot

Resurface - ripple effect in carriageway due to settlement around foam concrete sub layers

£

81,000

✓

Brampton

C1034

Tarn Lodge

100mm overlay (60mm binder AC20 dense & 40mm thin surface course) with drainage and civils work included

£

82,624

✓

Brampton

C1023

Upper Denton Railway Crossing

Inlay

£

19,436

✓

Longtown

U1034

Crookgate to Wellington

Overlay

£

67,290

✓

Botcherby

U150

Victoria Road, Wood Street to Warwick Road A69

Plane off 100mm of existing blacktop and resurface with 100mm (50mm binder AC20 hdm & 50mm HRA) some kerbs and iron work to
replace.

£

86,838

✓

£

685,406

Pre Surface Treatment Works Programme

UID

Electoral Division

Various

Road Number Scheme Name - Location

Various

Pre Surface Treatment Works 2020-2021

Work Type

Patching

Total Costs (£)

£

398,653

21/22

✓

60

Surface Treatment Works Programme

UID

Electoral Division

Road Number Scheme Name - Location

Work Type

Total Costs (£)

21/22

Longtown

C1008

Penton Station

Surface Dressing

✓

Longtown

C1007

Warwicksland Crossroads towards Kershopefoot

Surface Dressing

✓

Longtown

C1007

Warwicksland Crossroads towards Easton

Surface Dressing

✓

Houghton and Irthington

C1005

Kirklinton Hall

Surface Dressing

✓

Brampton

C1025

Banks to Bewcastle

Surface Dressing

✓

C1023/B63
Gilsland School to RAF Spadeadam
18/U1241

Surface Dressing

✓

Surface Dressing

✓

Brampton

Brampton

C1046

Carlisle Road, Brampton - A689 to Ped Xing

61

Brampton

C1046

Carlisle Road to A69 Roundabout

Surface Dressing

✓

Brampton

U1107

Tree Road, Brampton

Surface Dressing

✓

Houghton and Irthington

U1095

Laversdale - Oldwall to A6071

Surface Dressing

✓

Houghton and Irthington

C1013

Newby East to A689

Surface Dressing

✓

Wetheral

B6263

Cumwhinton to Wetheral

Surface Dressing

✓

Botcherby

C1019

Durranhill Road - Alexandra Drive to mini Roundabout

Surface Dressing

✓

Botcherby

U175

Wingate Road - Montgomery Way to Geltsdale Avenue

Surface Dressing

✓

Dalston and Burgh

U1115

Cargo Village

Surface Dressing

✓

Dalston and Burgh

U1113

Dalston - Station Road to Cardewlees

Surface Dressing

✓

Longtown

C1007

A6071 to Wellknowerigg Xrds Phase 1

Surface Dressing

✓

Houghton and Irthington

C1012

Lyneholmeford to Cays House

Surface Dressing

✓

Wetheral

C1038

Wetheral Shields to Froddle Crook

Surface Dressing

✓

Dalston and Burgh

B5299

Dalston Bridge Junction to Nether Welton

Surface Dressing

✓

£

550,735

Surface Sealing Works Programme

UID

Electoral Division

Various

Footway Maintenance Works Programme

Road Number Scheme Name - Location

Various

Permanent Carriageway Repairs 2020/2021

Work Type

Small Scale Surface Sealing

Total Costs (£)

£

92,958

21/22

✓

UID

Electoral Division

Road Number Scheme Name - Location

Work Type

Total Costs (£)

21/22

62

Various

Various

Minor Footway Repairs 2021/2022

Small scale repairs and patching

£

60,000

✓

Various

Various

Tree Pits 2021/2022

Tree pit improvements

£

26,399

✓

Various

Various

Minor Tree Works 2021/2022

Priority tree works

£

30,000

✓

Various

Various

Hardening of Grass Verges 2021/2022

Defects caused by overriding of verges

£

40,000

✓

Castle

U137

St Cuthberts Lane Phase 2

Sandstone flags to relay and replace

£

30,000

✓

Belah

U101

Lowry Hill-St Peter drive-Kingstown rd

Removal of existing paving slabs to resurface with 50mm thick binder course and 30mm thick surface course

£

24,236

✓

Stanwix Urban

U109

Knowfield Avenue Ph 2

Remove paving flags and replace with flexible surface

£

42,153

✓

Upperby

U160

Oaklands Drive

Remove old Carlisle kerbs and replace with half battered kerbs up to paved footway and reinstate carriageway

£

12,000

✓

Dalston and Burgh

B5299

Carlisle Rd Dalston by Junior School

plane off 30mm and relay footway by school

£

10,000

✓

Upperby

C1041

Upperby Road - Ulldale St to Lamb St

Remove paving flags and replace with flexible surface

£

12,373

✓

£

287,161

Longtown

U1370

Briar Lea Court, Longtown

Reconstruct footway with AC20 binder and 30mm Surface course

£

29,652

✓

Belle Vue

U114

High Meadow

Remove old Carlisle kerbs and replace with half battered kerbs, remove flags and replace with blacktop.

£

16,000

✓

Botcherby

U150

Wood Street to Eastern Way

Install pin kerbs edge of footway and overlay

£

11,000

✓

Stanwix Urban

B6264

Brampton Rd ph2

Removal of existing paving slabs to resurface with 50mm thick binder course and 30mm thick surface course, even side 46 to 108

£

50,000

✓

Belah

U101

Kingmoor Junior School Phase 3

Remove paving flags and replace with flexible surface

£

9,068

✓

Wetheral

C1020

Scotby, Broomfallen Road

Resurface footway outside vehicle accesses to Broomhouse and High Acres

£

16,000

✓

Harraby North

U169

Mayfield Avenue - Church

Replace flags with bitmac - resurface

£

18,000

✓

Belah

U101

Lowry Hill, Kingstown rd -Liddle cls

Remove paving flags and replace with flexible surface

£

49,800

✓

Yewdale

U115

Chesterholme

Removal of existing paving slabs to resurface with 50mm thick binder course and 30mm thick surface course

£

27,538

✓

Belah

U101

Lowry hill -Sark Cls - Teasdale rd

Remove paving flags and replace with flexible surface

£

52,124

✓

Upperby

U156

Currock Park Ave Ph1

Reconstruction

£

52,124

✓

Various

Trees and verges

£

70,000

✓

Various

Minor footway repairs

£

20,408

✓

£

421,714

Drainage Maintenance Works Programme

63

UID

Electoral Division

Road Number Scheme Name - Location

Work Type

Total Costs (£)

21/22

Various

Various

Reactive Drainage works at various locations 2021/2022

Various

£

45,000

✓

Various

Various

Replacement of Integral Gullies 2021/2022

Various

£

30,000

✓

Various

Various

Ditching works to alleviate flooding 2021/2022

Various

£

20,000

✓

Houghton & Irthington

U1099

Cambeck Hill

Riverbanck reinforcement

£

30,000

✓

Longtown

U1063

Brisco Hill, Old Road, Longtown Phase 2

Bank Reinforcement - Rock Armour

£

40,000

✓

Dalston and Burgh

U1148

Buckabank House towards White Bridge

Investigate/repair drainage down the hill icy in winter

£

18,000

✓

Longtown

U1012

High Plains

Reconstruct embankment and drainage system (ea and natural england)

£

80,000

✓

£

263,000

£

10,557

Corby and Hayton

U1231

Cairn Crescent, Little Corby

New chamber, pipe repairs, lift kerbs

✓

U1231

Cairn Bridge, Heads Nook

New chamber, pipe repairs, lift kerbs

£

200,000

✓

U1091

Barlane, Scaleby

Renew drain between Barlane Cottage and corner towards Scaleby approx 150m

£

20,000

✓

Brampton

U1901

Stoneybrook Farm, Askerton

Install new filter drain in ditch at Fell Hill junction side and near Crossroads

£

25,000

✓

Dalston and Burgh

U102

Stainton

New draiange system to install - check levels for new gullies to connect into Pow Beck

£

12,000

✓

Dalston and Burgh

C1036

Woodhayes

drain in field to prevent flooding in woodhayes

£

14,000

✓

Various Drainage works

Inhouse

£

35,000

✓

£

316,557

Corby and Hayton

Various

Street Lighting Works Programme

UID

Electoral Division

Road Number Scheme Name - Location

Work Type

Total Costs (£)

21/22

64

Various

Various

Structural Test Various Locations 2021/2022

Non-Destructive Testing

£

5,500

✓

Various

Various

Illuminated Signs Refurbishment 2021/2022

Sign Refurbishment

£

5,500

✓

Various

Various

Local Area Improvement Various Locations 2021/2022

Area Improvement

£

22,000

✓

Various

Various

4 locations

Lighting improvements to be identified

£

92,500

✓

£

125,500

Minor Improvements Works Programme

UID

Electoral Division

Road Number Scheme Name - Location

Work Type

Total Costs (£)

21/22

Various

Various

Annual Review of Signs, Lines and TROs 2021/2022

Zone [?] Implementation Zone [?] Reporting,Informal/Formal Consultation Miscellaneous TRO Changes (Mopping Up 2020/21
Consultation & Design) Miscellaneous TRO Changes (Mopping Up 2019/20 Implementation)

£

50,000

✓

Various

Various

Cycling and Walking Initiatives 2021/2022

Improvements identified through Community Street audits, user groups and Members- improved access measures dropped Kerbs etc

£

10,000

✓

Various

Various

Minor Local Safety Schemes 2021/2022

Minor safety improvements at sites identified by CRASH Group User Groups and Members etc

£

23,647

✓

Various

Various

Improvements to / upgrade of Infrastructure at Bus Stops
2021/2022

Upgrade of bus stops flags, timetable cases, clearways to provide consistency. Addition of raised bus boarders where suitable.

£

4,000

✓

Various

Various

Speed Speed Limit Reviews 2021/2022

Sites identified from local requests and through CRASH speeding complaints

£

5,000

✓

Various

Various

Rural Sign Review 2021/2022

Carry out survey of roads based on road hierarchy to identify and assess and remove / replace or combine signs where appropriate.

£

15,000

✓

Various

Various

Minor improvements to be identified

£

10,000

✓

£

117,647

Traffic Signals Works Programme

UID

Electoral Division

Various

Road Number Scheme Name - Location

Various

Various Traffic Signals Works 2021/2022

Work Type

Structures Work

Total Costs (£)

£

21/22

-

✓

65

Bridges and Structures Works Programme

UID

Electoral Division

Various

Road Number Scheme Name - Location

Various

Various Strucutures Works 2021/2022

Work Type

Structures Work

Total Costs (£)

£

Pot Hole Funding

21/22

-

✓

Annual Budget ->

UID

Road Number Scheme Name - Location

Various

Various

Pothole funding 2021/2022

Work Type

Patching

Total Costs (£)

£

373,855

21/22

✓

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 4 - 2021/22 Highways REVENUE Report
Revenue
Budget

Committed
Budget

Spend
Forecast

3

4

8

9

Carriageway Maintenance

677,694

677,694

677,694

0

ONGOING

Drainage Maintenance

306,316

306,316

306,316

0

ONGOING

Lighting Maintenance

230,000

230,000

230,000

0

ONGOING

Traffic Signal Maintenance

100,000

100,000

100,000

0

ONGOING

Verge Maintenance

95,000

95,000

95,000

0

ONGOING

Road Marking Maintenance

29,000

29,000

29,000

0

ONGOING

Variance

RAG

0

67

HIGHWAYS REVENUE BUDGET TOTAL

1,438,010

1,438,010

1,438,010

0

Comments

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 5 - 2021/22 Highways Devolved CAPITAL Report
Electoral
Division
5

Capital Budget

Spend
Forecast

7

17

Variance
£

RAG
10

Comments
12

69

HCSI Repair Teams - Footways

Various

135,000

135,000

0

ONGOING

HCSI Repair Teams - Carriageway

Various

125,000

125,000

0

ONGOING

HCSI Repair Teams - Drainage

Various

20,000

20,000

0

ONGOING

Indentified Defects Planned Works Programme (NPRN)

280,000

280,000

0

Investigation and Testing

Various

30,000

30,000

0

ONGOING

Grearshill Road, Carlisle

Belah

85,500

85,500

0

ONGOING

Pennine Way - Arnside Road to Tindale Drive
Harraby North

77,463

77,463

0

ONGOING

Exelby Services to Cumwhinton

Wetheral

98,078

98,078

0

ONGOING

Murray holme to Jct of Myre

Longtown

28,750

32,897

4,147

Cardewlees - outside Quarry entrance Dalston & Burgh

29,555

29,555

0

Structural carriageway

349,346

353,493

4,147

398,653

398,653

0

Pre-surface Treatment Works Programme

398,653

398,653

0

Surface Treatment

550,735

550,735

0

550,735

550,735

0

Pre Surface Treatment Patching

Surface Treatment Works Programme

Various

Various

✓

COMPLETE
ONGOING

ONGOING

✓

COMPLETE

Appendix 5 - 2021/22 Highways Devolved CAPITAL Report
Electoral
Division
5
Surface Sealing

Various

Surface Sealing Work Programme

Capital Budget

Spend
Forecast

7

17

92,958

92,958

0

92,958

92,958

0

Variance
£

RAG
10

Comments
12
ONGOING

70

Minor Footway Repairs

Various

£60,000

£60,000

0

ONGOING

Tree Pits

Various

£26,399

£26,399

0

ONGOING

Minor Tree Works

Various

£30,000

£30,000

0

ONGOING

Hardening of Grass Verges

Various

£40,000

£40,000

0

ONGOING

St Cuthberts Lane Phase 2

Castle

£30,000

£30,000

0

Lowry Hill-St Peter drive-Kingstown rd Belah

£24,236

£24,236

0

ONGOING

Knowfield Avenue Ph 2

Stanwix Urban

£42,153

£42,153

0

ONGOING

Oaklands Drive

Upperby

£12,000

£12,000

0

ONGOING

Carlisle Rd Dalston by Junior School

Dalston and Burgh £10,000

£10,000

0

Upperby Road - Ulldale St to Lamb St

Upperby

£12,373

£12,373

0

Footway Maintenance Works Programme

287,161

287,161

0

Reactive Drainage works at various
locations

Various

£45,000

£45,000

0

Replacement of Integral Gullies

Various

£30,000

£30,000

0

Ditching works to alleviate flooding

Various

£20,000

£20,000

0

ONGOING

Cambeck Hill

Houghton and
Irthington

£30,000

£30,000

0

ONGOING

✓

✓

COMPLETE

COMPLETE
ONGOING

ONGOING

✓

COMPLETE

Appendix 5 - 2021/22 Highways Devolved CAPITAL Report
Electoral
Division

Capital Budget

Spend
Forecast

7

17

£40,000

£37,000

-3,000

Dalston and Burgh £18,000

£12,500

-5,500

Longtown

£80,000

£80,000

0

Drainage Maintenance Works Programme

263,000

254,500

-8,500

Local Area Improvement

Various

22,000

22,000

0

ONGOING

Illuminated Signs Refurbishment

Various

5,500

5,500

0

ONGOING

Structural Testing

Various

5,500

5,500

0

ONGOING

Esk Road Carlisle

Various

18,100

18,100

0

ONGOING

Newfield Park Carlisle

Various

38,000

38,000

0

ONGOING

Lyne Close Carlisle

Various

9,100

9,100

0

ONGOING

Knowepark Avenue Carlisle

Various

27,300

27,300

0

ONGOING

Street Lighting Maintenance Works Programme

125,500

125,500

0

Annual Review of Signs, Lines and TRO's Various

50,000

50,000

0

ONGOING

Cycling and Walking Initiatives

Various

10,000

10,000

0

ONGOING

Minor Local Safety Schemes

Various

23,647

23,647

0

ONGOING

Speed Limit Reviews

Various

5,000

5,000

0

ONGOING

10,000

10,000

0

ONGOING

5
Brisco Hill, Old Road, Longtown Phase
2
Buckabank House towards White
Bridge
High Plains

Longtown

71

Minor Improvements Lingmoor Way Carlisle
Various

Variance
£

RAG
10

Comments
12

✓
✓

COMPLETE
COMPLETE
ONGOING

Appendix 5 - 2021/22 Highways Devolved CAPITAL Report
Electoral
Division

Capital Budget

Spend
Forecast

7

17

15,000

15,000

0

ONGOING

Improvements to / upgrade of Infrastructure
Various
at Bus Stops 2021/2022
4,000

4,000

0

ONGOING

Minor Improvements Works Programme

117,647

0

5
Rural Sign Review

Various

117,647

Variance
£

10

Wreay School Drainage
Horse Holme Farm Drainage
Slippage 20/21

72

2,465,000

2,460,647

-4,353

Comments
12

✓
✓
✓

Madam Banks Road Footway

DEVOLVED HIGHWAYS CAPITAL BUDGET TOTAL

RAG

COMPLETE
COMPLETE
COMPLETE

Agenda Item 10
COUNTY
COUNCIL
CARLISLE
Meeting date:
From:

LOCAL

COMMITTEE

FOR

9 November 2021

Executive Director – Economy and
Infrastructure

HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORT WORKING GROUP
FOLLOWING MEETING HELD – 7 OCTOBER 2021

REPORT

1.0

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

This report gives details of the meeting of the Highways and Transport
Working Group (HTWG) held on 07 October 2021 and presents HTWG
recommendations to the Local Committee for approval.

1.2

The Local Committee is also asked to consider additional
recommendations related to the matters considered by the HTWG.

2.0

STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

2.1

The recommendations within this report relate to budgets and
programmes that are devolved to this Local Committee for
determination and delivery.

2.2

The policy position, links to corporate strategy, and the budgetary
implications are set out in the individual HTWG reports previously
circulated to Members.

3.0

RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1

Carlisle Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan
The HTWG recommends that Local Committee note the following:
(1)

for the purpose of the LCWIP public consultation both the
Botchergate cycling route and the Lancaster Street/Carlisle
Station car park cycling route be included on the Cycling Plan
and a question be included about this to gauge opinion on both
route options;

(2)

engagement be undertaken with user groups on both options;

(3)

officers continue to develop designs for both options to support
the Southern Gateway Business Case;

73

3.2

(4)

a preference for the route via The Crescent be used rather than
Citadel Row when linking onwards from Botchergate/Crescent
junction;

(5)

Local Committee consider whether to proceed with the
Botchergate cycling route or the Lancaster Street/Carlisle Station
car park route at their next meeting on 9 November 2021.

2021/22 Flood and Development Management Update
The HTWG recommends that Local Committee note the report.

3.3

2021/22 Flood and Development Management Update Report Regarding
Environment Agency Phase 1 Flood Work Changes to Laundry Culvert
Works
The HTWG recommends that Local Committee note the report.

3.4

2021/22 Flood and Development Management Update Report Regarding
Environment Agency Phase 1 Flood Work Changes to Tesco Entrance
The HTWG recommends that Local Committee note the report.

3.5

Warwick Road, Lidl Access
The HTWG recommends that Local Committee note the update.

3.6

Cumbria House and Cecil Street Off-Street Car Parks – Electric
Charging Facilities and Addition of Annual Permit Charge.
The HTWG recommends that Local Committee agree:
(1)

to proceed to statutory consultation and advertisement of
changes to:(a)

The County of Cumbria (Cecil Street, Carlisle) (Off Street
Parking Places) Order 2016; and
The County of Cumbria (Council’s Office Car Park,) (Off
Street Parking Places) Order 2016;
“the Orders”, to include spaces for electric charging points
and an annual permit charge for all car park users; and to
extend Cecil Street car park to include land adjacent to
Stanley Hall;

3.7

(2)

that in the event that no objections are received, the changes
and Orders be brought into operation;

(3)

that any unresolved objections to the changes (as detailed in
paragraph 1) above), will be brought back to the Local
Committee for consideration.

Traffic Regulation Orders Review 2021/2021: Variation Order 62
The HTWG recommends that Local Committee agree:
that having considered the representations received during the
statutory advertisement and consultation, (referred to in paragraph 4.2
of the report to HTWG), and having taken into consideration the
matters contained in section 122(2) of the Road Traffic Regulation Act
1984 (more specifically referred to in paragraph 7.2 of the report to
HTWG), recommend that The County of Cumbria (Various Roads,

74

Carlisle Urban and Rural Area) (Consolidation and Minor Amendment
of Traffic Regulations) (Order 2001) Variation Order (No. 62) 20><, (“the
Order”) be brought into operation, as advertised, SAVE FOR the
following: -

3.8

(a)

Old Raffles Parade – recommend to Local Committee that the
proposals are not introduced;

(b)

Craw Hall, Brampton – recommend to Local Committee that the
proposals are not introduced.

Speed Limit Consolidation Order No.8, Various Roads 2020/2021.
The HTWG recommends that Local Committee agree:
that the objection (as detailed at paragraph 4.5 of the report to HTWG)
is overruled and The County of Cumbria (Various Roads, Carlisle City &
District) (Consolidation and Provision Speed Limits) (No.8) Order 20><
(“the Order”) be brought into operation, as advertised having taken
into consideration the matters contained in section 122(2) of the Road
Traffic Regulation Act 1984 (more specifically referred to in paragraph
7.2 of the report to HTWG).

3.9

2021/22 Highways Budget/Programme Progress Report
The HTWG recommends that Local Committee note the following:
(1)

the Programme progress information (as shown in appendices 4
and 5 of the report to the HTWG;

(2)

the various Highways Revenue budget allocations and headings
(detailed in appendix 1 of the report to the HTWG);

(3)

the various Highways Capital budget allocations and headings
(detailed in appendix 2 of the report to the HTWG);

(4)

there are no comments in the Appendices to bring to the
attention of Local Members. Any significant comments, changes
and/or amendments will be highlighted here in subsequent and
future reports to the HTWG.

4.0

BACKGROUND

4.1

The minutes of the HTWG held on the 07 October 2021 are attached as
Appendix 1 of this report, together with the recommendations from the
HTWG which are summarised in Section 3 of this report.

4.2

The relevant HTWG reports have previously been circulated to members.

5.0

OPTIONS

5.1

The options in respect of each of the recommendations are set out in the
original reports to the HTWG previously circulated to members.

75

6.0

RESOURCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS

6.1

The resource and value for money implications in respect each of the
recommendations are set out in the original reports to the Working Group
previously circulated to members.

7.0

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The legal implications in respect to each of the recommendations at
paragraphs 3.2–3.4 and 3.6 to 3.9 inclusive are set out in the original reports
to the HTWG previously circulated to members.

8.0

CONCLUSION

8.1

The Local Committee is asked to note, and agree where applicable, the
recommendations made by the HTWG and the supplementary information
set out in the report.

Angela Jones
Executive Director – Economy and Infrastructure
November 2021

APPENDICES
Appendix 1 - Minutes of Highways
7 October 2021

and

Transport

Working

Group

–

Appendix 2 - 2021/22 Flood and Development Management Update
Appendix 3 - 2021/22 Flood and Development Management Update Report
Regarding Environment Agency Phase 1 Flood Work Changes to
Laundry Culvert Works
Appendix 4 - 2021/22 Flood and Development Management Update Report
Regarding Environment Agency Phase 1 Flood Work Changes to
Tesco Entrance
Appendix 5 - Warwick Road, Lidl Access
Appendix 6 - Cumbria House and Cecil Street Off-Street Car Parks – Electric
Charging Facilities and Addition of Annual Permit Charge
Appendix 7 - Traffic Regulation Orders Review 2021/2021: Variation Order 62
Appendix 8 - Speed Limit Consolidation Order No.8, Various Roads 2020/2021
Appendix 9 - 2021/22 Highways Budget/Programme Progress Report

76

Electoral Divisions:

All

Executive Decision

Yes

Key Decision

No

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan?
Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency?
If exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant Overview
and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained?
Has this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny?
If so, give details below.

N/A
No
N/A
No

Has an environmental or sustainability impact assessment been undertaken?

No

Has an equality impact assessment been undertaken?

No

N.B.

If an executive decision is made, then a decision cannot be implemented until the
expiry of the eighth working day after the date of the meeting – unless the decision is
urgent and exempt from call-in and necessary approvals have been obtained.

PREVIOUS RELEVANT COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS
No previous relevant decisions.

CONSIDERATION BY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
Not considered by Overview and Scrutiny.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
No background papers.

REPORT AUTHOR
Contact: Amy Hutson – Highways Network Manager
E-mail
amy.hutson@cumbria.gov.uk

77

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 1
CARLISLE HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORT WORKING GROUP
Minutes of a Meeting of the Carlisle Highways and Transport Working Group held
on Thursday, 7 October 2021 at 10.00 am at Conference Room A/B, Cumbria
House, Carlisle. CA1 1RD

PRESENT:
Mr R Watson (Chair)
Mr J Bell
Mr N Christian
Mr S Higgs

Mr J Mallinson (Vice-Chair)
Mrs V Tarbitt
Mr C Weber

Also in Attendance:Mr P Allan
Ms A Dodds
Mr D Coyle
Mrs L Harker
Ms A Hutson
Mrs V Kelsall
Mr P Musgrave
Ms S Nicholson
Ms N Parker
Mr K Poole
8

-

Development Management Officer
Traffic Management Team Leader
Manager of Flood & Development Management
Senior Democratic Services Officer
Local Area Highways Network Manager - Carlisle
Senior Programme Manager - Capital Programme
Area Manager - Carlisle
Traffic Management Senior Technician
Infrastructure Planning Manager
City Engineer (Carlisle City Council)

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Mr R Betton and Dr S Haraldsen.
9

MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting of the Working Group held on 15 June 2021 were
confirmed as circulated.
10

CARLISLE LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN

Members received an update from the Infrastructure Planning Manager and Senior
Programme Manager which detailed future options for the Carlisle Local Cycling and
Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP) following a workshop on Carlisle City Centre
Projects and cycling and walking.

79

The Working Group was informed that the Carlisle LCWIP public consultation was
planned to commence on 5 November 2021. Officers explained the Southern
Gateway and Carlisle Station projects would need to have agreed routes for cyclists
to enable those to be taken forward in the design work required to support the
Business Case for the Southern Gateway being developed by December 2021.
Officers presented a number of options for cycling routes from the south of the city
to link into the railway station area which included:





bi-directional cycle route on Botchergate;
uni-directional cycle lanes on Botchergate;
no provision for cyclists on Botchergate;
alternative provision for cyclists on Lancaster Street,
Crown Street to Collier Lane/existing Station Car Park.

across

Members were presented with information which detailed the advantages and
disadvantages of each option. The Working Group noted there were challenges
and compromises within each option and the balance of risk and allocation of space
between cyclists, pedestrians and traffic should be considered. During the course of
discussion it was acknowledged there were concerns regarding both options
highlighting the challenges encompassed when trying to implement an infrastructure
retrospectively.
The Working Group was requested to give a steer and consider on balance what
they wanted to take forward through the LCWIP consultation and to inform the
designs for the Southern Gateway scheme.
Members were informed that more option development may be required on both
routes as part of the Business Case development and to assist in informing a final
decision. Officers advised that a decision was required soon to inform the design
work for the Southern Gateway project to ensure that Business Case deadlines
were achieved.
The Working Group was also presented with options for onward connections from
Botchergate through the City Centre. The following options were considered as an
alternative to Devonshire Street, previously considered challenging, particularly
given the one-way nature of the Street:



The Crescent (Bi-directional)
Citadel Row (Bi-directional).

Following discussion the preferred option was via The Crescent.
RECOMMENDED, that
(1)

for the purpose of the LCWIP public consultation both
the Botchergate cycling route and the Lancaster
Street/Carlisle Station car park cycling route be included
on the Cycling Plan and a question be included about
this to gauge opinion on both route options;

80

11

(2)

engagement be undertaken with user groups on both
options;

(3)

officers continue to develop designs for both options to
support the Southern Gateway Business Case;

(4)

a preference for the route via The Crescent be used
rather than Citadel Row when linking onwards from
Botchergate/Crescent junction;

(5)

Local Committee consider whether to proceed with the
Botchergate
cycling
route
or the
Lancaster
Street/Carlisle Station car park route at their next
meeting on 9 November 2021.

2021/22 FLOOD AND DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT UPDATE

The Working Group considered a report from the Executive Director – Economy and
Infrastructure which presented an overview of Flood and Development Management
activities in the Carlisle area.
The Carlisle City Council Member for the Wetheral and Corby Ward referred to the
application for the land to the west of Steeles Bank, Wetheral, Carlisle and officers
confirmed that currently there were no proposals for a new pipeline to the river Eden
with outfall onto the river bank.
The local Member for Houghton and Irthington referred to the application for the
change of use of part of Eden Golf Course to allow for the stationing of up to 100
caravans and raised his concerns regarding egress from the site. It was agreed that
officers would investigate this concern and discuss the matter further with the
planning officers.
The local Member for Longtown referred to the proposal for the creation of a lorry
park in her Division and asked why a cross-border consultation had not taken place
on this matter. Officers confirmed that the impact of the application was solely on
one side of the border, therefore, there was no requirement for a cross-border
consultation.
RECOMMENDED, that
(1)

the report be noted;

(2)

it be noted there are no additional comments in the
appendices to bring to the attention of Local Members.
Any significant comments, changes and/or amendments
will be highlighted here in subsequent and future reports
to the Highways and Transport Working Group.

81

12

2021/22 FLOOD AND DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT UPDATE REPORT
REGARDING ENVIRONMENT AGENCY PHASE 1 FLOOD WORK
CHANGES TO LAUNDRY CULVERT WORKS

Members received a report from the Executive Director – Economy and
Infrastructure which detailed an overview of the work carried out by the Environment
Agency (EA) within the Carlisle Phase 1 Flood Works at Laundry Culvert, Riverside
off Warwick Road.
The Working Group was informed that the Flood and Development Management
Team and Highways had been working alongside the Environment Agency who
were constructing Phase 1 flood defence works in Carlisle. It was explained that
whilst the EA were constructing Phase 1 the Scheme had suffered flooding due to
an unknown Laundry culvert allowing the river Petteril to seep back and onto
Warwick Road. Members noted that during flood investigations the EA discovered
that a flap valve on the existing piped outfall to the Laundry culvert had become
jammed open allowing river water to recirculate back onto Warwick Road.
Members were informed that to remedy the problem the EA agreed with the Lead
Local Flood Authority to renew the last section of the culvert and discharge the
outfall to a location further down the river to ensure that the flap valve remained free
from silting. Officers explained that EA would commence works in the next month.
The Working Group was informed there were still some concerns for the improved
culvert regarding the discharges that could be carried out by UU, therefore, the
LLFA had asked UU for their monitoring and contingency regime for the station to
understand if this still represented a risk of flooding for Warwick Road. It was
agreed that following receipt of additional details a report would be made to a future
meeting of the Highways and Transport Working Group.
RECOMMENDED, that

13

(1)

the report be noted;

(2)

it be noted there are no additional comments in the
appendices to bring to the attention of Local Members.
Any significant comments, changes and/or amendments
will be highlighted here in subsequent and future reports
to the Highways and Transport Working Group.

2021/22 FLOOD AND DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT UPDATE REPORT
REGARDING ENVIRONMENT AGENCY PHASE 1 FLOODWORK
CHANGES TO TESCO ENTRANCE

Members considered a report from the Executive Director – Economy and
Infrastructure which presented an overview of the work carried out by the
Environment Agency within the Carlisle Phase 1 Flood Works at Tesco Supermarket
road junction on Warwick Road.

82

The Working Group was informed that as part of the works there would be an
additional flood gate defence at the Tesco supermarket main entrance at the
junction of Warwick Road and Montgomery Way. It was explained this was on the
alignment of the previous unofficial crossing point occasionally used in place of the
official pedestrian crossing points via the main traffic lights.
Members were informed that the resulting changes required the Environment
Agency to carry out a safety audit for the construction changes they had made to
the Tesco access and their main recommendations included:•
•

Appropriate ‘Look Left’ and ‘Look Right’ road markings be installed at
each crossing point;
Correction to tactile paving on eastern side.

During the course of discussion officers confirmed all subsequent recommendations
from the stage 3 audit had been implemented.
RECOMMENDED, that

14

(1)

the report be noted;

(2)

it be noted there are no additional comments in the
appendices to bring to the attention of Local Members.
Any significant comments, changes and/or amendments
will be highlighted here in subsequent and future reports
to the Highways and Transport Working Group.

WARWICK ROAD, LIDL ACCESS

The Working Group received a verbal update from the Manager of Flood and
Development Management regarding the future resurfacing locations on Warwick
Road, Carlisle in relation to the Lidl store.
Members were informed there was no proposal to resurface the area in front of the
proposed Lidl store locations at the present time as traffic signals, pedestrian refuge
and pedestrian crossing would need to be installed as part of the scheme. Officers
confirmed that in due course a small section to the west of Lidl would be resurfaced
along with a larger section to the east up to Eastern Way.
RECOMMENDED, that the update be noted.

83

15

CUMBRIA HOUSE AND CECIL STREET OFF-STREET CAR PARKS ELECTRIC CHARGING FACILITIES AND ADDITION OF ANNUAL PERMIT
CHARGE

Members considered a report from the Executive Director – Economy and
Infrastructure which updated the Working Group on plans to install electric charge
points at the Cumbria House and Cecil Street off-street car parks and the necessary
changes to the off-street parking orders.
The Working Group was informed that an annual permit charge would be included in
the orders for all car park users and the extent of the Cecil Street off-street car park
would be increased to allow enforcement of the land adjacent to Stanley Hall.
During the course of discussion members suggested that suitable signs be located
on the sites displaying the appropriate charges.
RECOMMENDED, that Local Committee agree:(1)

to proceed to statutory consultation and advertisement
of changes to:(a)

The County of Cumbria (Cecil Street, Carlisle) (Off
Street Parking Places) Order 2016; and
The County of Cumbria (Council’s Office Car
Park,) (Off Street Parking Places) Order 2016;

“the Orders”, to include spaces for electric charging
points and an annual permit charge for all car park
users; and to extend Cecil Street car park to include
land adjacent to Stanley Hall;

16

(2)

that in the event that no objections are received, the
changes and Orders be brought into operation;

(3)

that any unresolved objections to the changes (as
detailed in paragraph (1) above), will be brought back to
the Local Committee for consideration.

TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS REVIEW 2020/2021: VARIATION
ORDER 62

The Working Group considered a report from the Executive Director – Economy and
Infrastructure which advised of the outcome of the statutory advertisement and
consultation of additions, amendments and variations to the Traffic Regulation
Orders Review 2020/21: Variation Order 62.

84

RECOMMENDED,

17

that having considered the representations received during the
statutory advertisement and consultation, (referred to in
paragraph 4.2 of the report), and having taken into
consideration the matters contained in section 122(2) of the
Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 (more specifically referred to
in paragraph 7.2 of the report), recommend that The County of
Cumbria (Various Roads, Carlisle Urban and Rural Area)
(Consolidation and Minor Amendment of Traffic Regulations)
(Order 2001) Variation Order (No. 62) 20><, (“the Order”) be
brought into operation, as advertised, SAVE FOR the
following: (a)

Old Raffles Parade – recommend to Local Committee
that the proposals are not introduced;

(b)

Craw Hall, Brampton – recommend to Local Committee
that the proposals are not introduced.

SPEED LIMIT CONSOLIDATION ORDER NO 8, VARIOUS ROADS
2020/2021

Members considered a report from the Executive Director – Economy and
Infrastructure which detailed the outcome of the statutory consultation in relation to
the proposal to introduce a 30mph speed limit at Aglionby, Plains Road, Wetheral,
Lanercost, Wetheral Pasture; and 40 mph speed limit on Lanercost C1025,
Wetheral Pasture, section of both C1038 and B6263.
RECOMMENDED, that Carlisle Local Committee agree that the objection (as
detailed at paragraph 4.5 of the report) is overruled and The
County of Cumbria (Various Roads, Carlisle City & District)
(Consolidation and Provision Speed Limits) (No.8) Order 20><
(“the Order”) be brought into operation, as advertised.
18

2021/22 HIGHWAYS BUDGET/PROGRAMME PROGRESS REPORT

The Working Group considered a report by the Executive Director – Economy and
Infrastructure which detailed the Highways Revenue, Devolved Capital and NonDevolved Capital budget finance reports, combined with the Highways Programme
progress information.
Members noted the allocated budgets for 2021/22 were Highways Revenue budget
£1,438,010, Devolved Highways Capital budget £2,465,000 and the Non-Devolved
Highways Capital budget of £1,809,000.
RECOMMENDED, that the following be noted:(1)

the programme progress information (as shown in
Appendices 4 and 5 of the report);

85

19

(2)

the various Highways Revenue budget allocations and
headings (detailed in Appendix 1 of the report);

(3)

the various Highways Capital budget allocations and
headings (shown in Appendix 2 of the report);

(4)

there are no comments in the appendices to bring to the
attention of local members. Any significant comments,
changes and/or amendments will be highlighted here in
subsequent and future reports to the Working Group.

REVIEW OF FORWARD PLAN

The Forward Plan was noted.
20

DATE OF NEXT MEETING

To note that the next meeting of the Working Group will be held on Wednesday 15
December 2021 at 10.00 am in Conference Room A/B, Cumbria House, Carlisle.

The meeting ended at 11.20 am

86

APPENDIX 2

CARLISLE HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORT WORKING GROUP
Meeting date:

7 October 2021

Executive Director – Economy and Infrastructure

From:

2021/22 FLOOD AND DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT UPDATE
REPORT
1.0

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

This report presents an overview of Flood and Development
Management activities in the Carlisle area.

1.2

Details are in the attached appendices.

2.0

STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

2.1

There are no direct strategic planning or equality implications in the
report as the report is for information only.

3.0

RECOMMENDATION

3.1

That the HTWG recommend that the Local Committee note the details
provided.in appendix 1, 2 and 3.

3.2

That the HTWG recommend that the Local Committee note the
following:
There are no additional comments in the Appendices to bring to
the attention of Local Members. Any significant comments,
changes and/or amendments will be highlighted here in
subsequent and future reports to the HTWG.

4.0

BACKGROUND
Flood and Development Management Team

4.1

The Flood and Development Management Team responds on behalf of the
County Council as a consultee to the Local / County Planning Authorities
planning applications as the:o
o
o

Local Highway Authority
Lead Local Flood Authority
Education Authority

87

The Team deals with Small, Minor and Major/Strategic planning applications
4.2

Details are provided in the following appendices for

4.2.1 Appendix 1 – Major & Strategic Planning applications in the Carlisle Area.
4.2.2 Appendix 2 - Section 106 contributions update.
4.2.3 Appendix 3 – Flooding investigations in the Carlisle Area.
5.0

OPTIONS

5.1

Members can recommend that Local Committee note the report.

6.0

RESOURCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS

6.1

There are no direct resource or value for money implications.

7.0

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The recommendations in this report do not contain any legal implications
however Local Committee could take decisions that could have future legal
implications.

8.0

CONCLUSION

8.1

This report is to note.

Angela Jones
Executive Director – Economy and Infrastructure
7 October 2021

APPENDICES
Appendix 1 – Planning applications in the Carlisle Area
Appendix 2 – Section 106 contributions update
Appendix 3 – Flooding investigations in the Carlisle Area
Electoral Divisions: All
Executive Decision

No

Key Decision

No

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan?
Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency?
If exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant Overview
and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained?
Has this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny?

88

N/A
No
N/A
No

If so, give details below.
Has an environmental or sustainability impact assessment been undertaken?

No

Has an equality impact assessment been undertaken?

No

N.B.

If an executive decision is made, then a decision cannot be implemented until the
expiry of the eighth working day after the date of the meeting – unless the decision is
urgent and exempt from call-in and necessary approvals have been obtained.

PREVIOUS RELEVANT COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS
No previous relevant decisions.

CONSIDERATION BY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
Not considered by Overview and Scrutiny.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
No background papers.
REPORT AUTHOR
Contact: Doug Coyle – Flood & Development Manager
Tel.
07966111875
E-mail
Doug.coyle@cumbria.gov.uk

NOTES for Appendix
▼ = this column indicates the Member engagement for the project
1 – County Council
2 – Cabinet
3 – Local Committee
4 – Local Highways and Transport Working Group
5 – Local Member(s)

89

Appendix 1 –

Flood & Development Management update on Planning Applications in Carlisle Area

Current Major or Strategic applications being dealt with across the Carlisle area since Last meeting
Application

Location

Proposal

Category

Engineer

Status

21/0744

Land off Currock
Yard, South
Western Terrace,
Carlisle.

Residential development of 92 dwellings

Strategic

PA

Response yet to be
submitted

90

21/0314

Land off Orton
Road, Carlisle

Residential development of 156 dwellings

Strategic

PA

21/0313

Land off Warwick
Road, Carlisle

Erection Of Discount Foodstore With Car Parking
And Landscaping (Reserved Matters Application
Pursuant To Outline Permission 19/0840)

Strategic

PA

21/0855

Land at Deer
Park, Carlisle

Discharge Of Conditions 6 (SuDS Ponds Detail);
8 (Surface Water Drainage Scheme); 9
(Sustainable Drainage Management &
Maintenance Plan); 19 (Remediation Scheme) &
29 (Construction Management Plan)

Major

PA

21/0111

Eden Golf Centre
Ltd, Eden Golf
Club, Access
Road To Eden
Golf Club, Crosby
On Eden,
Carlisle, CA6 4RA

Change Of Use Of Part Of Golf Course To Allow
For Stationing Of Up To 100 Caravans

Major

PA

Initial response
submitted; further
information required to
be submitted by the
applicant.
Response submitted
to LPA. No objections
with conditions.

Response yet to be
submitted

Response submitted
to LPA. No objections
with conditions.

21/0655

Land to the West
of Steeles Bank,
Wetheral, Carlisle

Residential Development (Outline) for 70
dwellings

Major

PA

No objections with
conditions

20/0586

Richardson
House, C141A
From Cumbria
Boundary To
B7076 At
Headless Cross,
Headless Cross,
Gretna, DG16
5HU

Creation Of A Lorry Park Upto 40no. Spaces
Including Conversion
Of Existing Buildings To Provide Welfare
Facilities & Storage Unit;
Erection Of Commercial Vehicles Maintenance
Building &
Associated Preparation Yard

Strategic

PA

No objections with
conditions

91

Appendix 2 –

Flood & Development Management update on S106 changes in the Carlisle Area

Below are details of the sec 106 funding recorded from Applications by the F&DM since last meeting
September 2021
Agreed

Received

Carlisle
Education
Contribution
£4,275,706.82 £2,929,622.08
Highway
Contribution
£589,000.00
£739,579.86
School Transport
£190,000.00
£125,121.57
Travel Plan Admin
£52,800.00
£68,504.48
Grand Total £5,107,506.82 £3,862,827.99

Difference Since June
2021
0
+£282,000
0
0

92

As can be seen from the table above, the s106 funding received from June to October 2021 includes an increase of
£282,000 for an off site cycle and pedestrian improvements at California Road, Carlisle. The education contributions,
school transport and travel plan admin contributions have all remained the same.

Appendix 3 –

Flood & Development Management update on Flooding concerns in Carlisle Area

The following table provides details of flood events in 2021
No Flood Incidents to report since our meeting in June 2021; however please find listed below the previous flooding
instances that the F&DM team are working on in the Carlisle district.

93







Dalston
Crosby Moor
Hayton
Crosby-on-Eden
Mill Hill, Gretna

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 3

CARLISLE HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORT WORKING GROUP
Meeting date:
From:

7 October 2021

Executive Director – Economy and Infrastructure

2021/22 FLOOD AND DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT UPDATE
REPORT REGARDING ENVIRONMENT AGENCY PHASE 1 FLOOD
WORK CHANGES TO LAUNDRY CULVERT WORKS
1.0

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

This report presents an overview of the work carried out by the
Environment Agency (EA) within the Carlisle Phase 1 Flood Works at
Laundry Culvert, Riverside off Warwick Road.

1.2

Details of the new Laundry Culvert replacement to remove the risk of
flooding to Warwick road.

2.0

STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

2.1

There are no direct strategic planning or equality implications in the
report as the report is for information only.

3.0

RECOMMENDATION

3.1

That the HTWG recommend that the Local Committee note the details
provided in Appendix 1.

3.2

That the HTWG recommend that the Local Committee note the
following:
There are no additional comments in the Appendices to bring to the
attention of Local Members. Any significant comments, changes
and/or amendments will be highlighted here in subsequent and
future reports to the HTWG.

95

4.0

BACKGROUND
Flood and Development Management Team and Highways working with
Environment Agency on Carlisle Phase 1 flood protection works

4.1

The Flood and Development Management Team and Highways have been
working alongside the Environment Agency who are constructing Phase 1
flood defence works in Carlisle. Whilst the EA were constructing phase 1 the
scheme suffered flooding due to an unknown Laundry culvert allowing the
river Petteril to seep back and onto Warwick road. During flood
investigations the EA discovered that a flap valve on the existing piped
outfall to the Laundry culvert had become jammed open allowing river water
to recirculate back onto Warwick road.

4.2

To remedy the problem the EA agreed with LLFA to renew the last section of
the culvert and discharge the outfall to a location further down the river to
ensure that the flap valve remains free from silting. It was agreed to do a like
for like replacement so that there is no change in the capacity of the existing
system. See appendix 1. The EA will be commencing works in the next
month to realign the outfall for the old culvert. (materials have been ordered
ahead of time and the work may now start this month)

4.3

There are still some concerns for the improved culvert regarding the
discharges that can be carried out by United Utilities (UU). As seen in
Appendix 1 UU have a connection to the old Laundry Culvert from the
existing nearby pumping station as an emergency spillage facility. The
Combined Sewer Overflow (CSO) is a regulated permitted facility that UU
can undertake when the pump fails or the system becomes over whelmed.
The LLFA is asking UU for their monitoring and contingency regime for the
station to understand if this CSO still represents a risk of flooding for
Warwick road. Once the LLFA has additional details it will report them back
to HTWG.

5.0

OPTIONS

5.1

Members can recommend that Local Committee note the report.

6.0

RESOURCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS

6.1

There are no direct resource or value for money implications.

7.0

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The recommendations in this report do not contain any legal implications
however Local Committee could take decisions that could have future legal
implications.

96

8.0

CONCLUSION

8.1

This report is to note.

Angela Jones
Executive Director – Economy and Infrastructure
7 October 2021

APPENDICES
Appendix 1 – Realigned outfall for old Laundry Culvert
Electoral Divisions: All
Executive Decision

No

Key Decision

No

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan?
Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency?
If exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant Overview
and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained?
Has this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny?
If so, give details below.

N/A
No
N/A
No

Has an environmental or sustainability impact assessment been undertaken?

No

Has an equality impact assessment been undertaken?

No

N.B.

If an executive decision is made, then a decision cannot be implemented until the
expiry of the eighth working day after the date of the meeting – unless the decision is
urgent and exempt from call-in and necessary approvals have been obtained.

PREVIOUS RELEVANT COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS
No previous relevant decisions.

CONSIDERATION BY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
Not considered by Overview and Scrutiny.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
No background papers.

97

REPORT AUTHOR
Contact: Doug Coyle – Flood & Development Manager
Tel.
07966111875
E-mail
Doug.coyle@cumbria.gov.uk

NOTES for Appendix
▼ = this column indicates the Member engagement for the project
1 – County Council
2 – Cabinet
3 – Local Committee
4 – Local Highways and Transport Working Group
5 – Local Member(s)

98

Appendix 1 – Realigned outfall for old Laundry Culvert.

99
UU Pumping Station

Drainage system leading away
from Warwick road known as
Laundry Culvert

This page is intentionally left blank

101

Laundry Culvert
Renewals instigated because of Investigations to flooding during Storm
Ciara and Dennis Feb 2020

Survey of existing system
New Pipes and
concrete culvert

0.7 pipe
20m
1.9 x 0.7 culvert 65m

102
1.9 x 0.7 culvert 65m

1.9 x 0.7 culvert 50m

Outfall Changes

103

Details

104

UU concerns

105

This page is intentionally left blank

CARLISLE HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORT WORKING GROUP
Meeting date:
From:

7 October 2021

Executive Director – Economy and Infrastructure

2021/22 FLOOD AND DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT UPDATE
REPORT REGARDING ENVIRONMENT AGENCY PHASE 1
FLOODWORK CHANGES TO TESCO ENTRANCE
1.0

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

This report presents an overview of the work carried out by the
Environment Agency (EA) within the Carlisle Phase 1 Flood works at
Tesco Supermarket road junction on Warwick Road.

1.2

Details of the new flood gate arrangements and subsequent Stage 3
Safety Audit Report are provided in appendix 1 and 2.

2.0

STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

2.1

There are no direct strategic planning or equality implications in the
report as the report is for information only.

3.0

RECOMMENDATION

3.1

That the HTWG recommend that the Local Committee note the details
provided in appendix 1 and 2.

3.2

That the HTWG recommend that the Local Committee note the
following:
There are no additional comments in the Appendices to bring to the attention
of Local Members. Any significant comments, changes and/or amendments
will be highlighted here in subsequent and future reports to the HTWG.

4.0

BACKGROUND
Flood and Development Management Team and Highways working with
Environment Agency on Carlisle Phase 1 flood protection works

4.1

The Flood and Development Management Team and Highways have been
working alongside the Environment Agency who are constructing Phase 1
flood defence works in Carlisle. Part of the works included an additional
flood gate defence at Tesco’s supermarket main entrance at the junction of
Warwick Road and Montgomery Way.

107

4.2

The location of the new flood gate defence is on the alignment of the
previous unofficial crossing point used sometimes in place of the official
pedestrian crossing points via the main traffic lights. See Appendix 1 for
details of the new flood gate location and alteration to the access into the
Tesco store.

4.3

The resulting changes required the EA to carryout a safety audit for the
construction changes they have made to the Tesco access. See Appendix 2
Stage 3 Safety Audit. They main recommendations within the report were
the following:
•

Appropriate ‘Look left’ and ‘Look right’ is installed at each crossing point.
o

•

Reason for signing is to improve safety of pedestrians across the
4 no uncontrolled crossing points.

Correction to tactile paving on eastern side
o Reason to prevent confusion for cyclists and pedestrians.
All subsequent recommendations from the stage 3 audit have now been
implemented

5.0

OPTIONS

5.1

Members can recommend that Local Committee note the report.

6.0

RESOURCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS

6.1

There are no direct resource or value for money implications.

7.0

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The recommendations in this report do not contain any legal implications
however Local Committee could take decisions that could have future legal
implications.

8.0

CONCLUSION

8.1

This report is to note.

Angela Jones
Executive Director – Economy and Infrastructure
7 October 2021

APPENDICES
Appendix 1 – Road Layout changes for new Flood Gate at Tesco Supermarket.
Appendix 2 – Environment Agency Stage 3 Safety Audit

108

Electoral Divisions: All
Executive Decision

No

Key Decision

No

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan?
Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency?
If exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant Overview
and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained?
Has this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny?
If so, give details below.

N/A
No
N/A
No

Has an environmental or sustainability impact assessment been undertaken?

No

Has an equality impact assessment been undertaken?

No

N.B.

If an executive decision is made, then a decision cannot be implemented until the
expiry of the eighth working day after the date of the meeting – unless the decision is
urgent and exempt from call-in and necessary approvals have been obtained.

PREVIOUS RELEVANT COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS
No previous relevant decisions.

CONSIDERATION BY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
Not considered by Overview and Scrutiny.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
No background papers.
REPORT AUTHOR
Contact: Doug Coyle – Flood & Development Manager
Tel.
07966111875
E-mail
Doug.coyle@cumbria.gov.uk

109

NOTES for Appendix
▼ = this column indicates the Member engagement for the project
1 – County Council
2 – Cabinet
3 – Local Committee
4 – Local Highways and Transport Working Group
5 – Local Member(s)

110

Appendix 1 – Road Layout changes for new Flood Gate at
Tesco Supermarket.

111

112

Appendix 2 –

Environment Agency Stage 3 Safety Audit

113

Carlisle FRM Scheme
Tesco Entrance
Road Safety Audit
Stage 3
22 June 2021

114

115

Mott MacDonald
10 Temple Back
Bristol BS1 6FL
United Kingdom
T +44 (0)117 906 9500
mottmac.com

Environment Agency

Carlisle FRM Scheme
Tesco Entrance
Road Safety Audit
Stage 3
22 June 2021

Mott MacDonald Limited. Registered in
England and Wales no. 1243967.
Registered office: Mott MacDonald House,
8-10 Sydenham Road, Croydon CR0 2EE,
United Kingdom

116

117

Mott MacDonald | Carlisle FRM Scheme Tesco Entrance
Road Safety Audit Stage 3

Issue and Revision Record
Revision

Date

Originator

Checker

Approver

Description

A

22/06/2021

T J Blaney

R J Collins

J T Pearson

First Issue

Document reference: ENV0000495C-MMD-XX-XX-AU-RD-0215128
Information class: Standard
This document is issued for the party which commissioned it and for specific purposes connected with the abovecaptioned project only. It should not be relied upon by any other party or used for any other purpose.
We accept no responsibility for the consequences of this document being relied upon by any other party, or being
used for any other purpose, or containing any error or omission which is due to an error or omission in data supplied
to us by other parties.
This document contains confidential information and proprietary intellectual property. It should not be shown to other
parties without consent from us and from the party which commissioned it.
This report has been pr epared sol ely for us e by the party whic h c ommissi oned it (the ‘Client’) i n c onnecti on with the capti oned proj ect. It should not be used for any other purp os e. N o person other than the Client or any party who has ex pressly agreed term s of r eliance with us (the ‘Reci pient(s)’) may rely on the c ontent, i nformati on or any vi ews ex press ed i n the repor t. W e acc ept no duty of c are, res ponsi bility or liability to any other r eci pient of thi s doc ument. T his r eport is confi denti al and c ont ains pr opri etary intell ectual property.
No representati on, w arranty or under taki ng, expr ess or im plied, is made and no res ponsi bility or liability is acc epted by us to any party other than the Cli ent or any Reci pient(s), as to the acc uracy or com pleteness of the i nformati on c ontai ned i n this r eport. For the av oidance of doubt this r eport does not in any w ay purport to i nclude any legal , insur anc e or fi nanci al advic e or opi nion.
We dis claim all and any liability w hether arising i n tort or c ontrac t or otherwise whic h it might otherwise have to any party other than the Cli ent or the Reci pient(s), in r es pect of this report, or any information attri buted to i t.
We accept no r esponsibility for any error or omission i n the r eport w hich is due to an error or omis sion i n d ata, information or statem ents s upplied to us by other par ties incl udi ng the client (‘D ata’). We hav e not i ndependently v erified suc h D ata and hav e assum ed it to be acc urate, com plete, reli abl e and current as of the date of s uch inform ation.
Forec asts pres ented i n this docum ent w ere pr epared usi ng Data and the report is dependent or bas ed on D ata. Inevitably, s om e of the ass umptions us ed to dev elop the for ecasts will not be realised and unantici pated ev ents and circumstances m ay occ ur. C ons equently M ott MacDonal d does not guarantee or warr ant the c oncl usi ons contained i n the repor t as there are likely to be differ enc es betw een th e for ecas ts and the ac tual results and those di ffer ences may be m aterial. Whil e w e c onsi der that the inform ation and opini ons given i n this r eport are sound all parti es m ust rely on their ow n skill and j udgement when m aking us e of it.
Under no circums tanc es m ay this report or any extr act or s ummary ther eof be us ed in c onnection wi th any public or private sec urities offering i ncluding any rel ated mem orandum or pros pectus for any s ec urities offering or stock exc hange listing or announc ement.

| | | ENV0000495C-MMD-XX-XX-AU-RD-0215128 | 22 June 2021

118

Mott MacDonald | Carlisle FRM Scheme Tesco Entrance
Road Safety Audit Stage 3

Contents
1

Introduction

1

2

Items Raised at First Stage 1/2 Audit

3

2.1

3

Problem 1.01

3

Items Raised at Second Stage 1/2 Audit

4

4

Items Raised at this Stage 3 Audit

5

4.1
4.2

Problem 3.01
Problem 3.02

5
6

Audit Team Statement

7

5

Appendices

8

A.

List of Drawings & Documents Examined

9

B.

Location Plan – Carlisle FRM Scheme – Tesco Entrance

| | | ENV0000495C-MMD-XX-XX-AU-RD-0215128 | 22 June 2021

119

10

Mott MacDonald | Carlisle FRM Scheme Tesco Entrance
Road Safety Audit Stage 3

1

1 Introduction

This report describes a Stage 3 Road Safety Audit carried out on modifications to the Tesco arm
of the A69 Warwick Road junction with Montgomery Way as part of a flood alleviation scheme.
The audit was carried out at the request of Stuart Smith of Mott MacDonald on behalf of the
Project Sponsor, the Environment Agency.
The audit took place at the Manchester office of Mott MacDonald and consisted of a detailed
examination of the submitted documentation and drawings listed in Appendix A.
It is confirmed that this is a Stage 3 Road Safety Audit and that the audit was undertaken upon
completion of the majority of the construction works.
The Road Safety Audit Team as approved by the Project Sponsor, consisted of:
Tim Blaney

BSc (Hons), CMILT, MCIHT, MSoRSA
(Certificate of Competency in Road Safety Audit, July 2012)
Audit Team Leader, Mott MacDonald

Rachael Collins

BA (Hons), MSc , MCIHT
(Certificate of Competency in Road Safety Audit, July 2016)
Audit Team Member, Mott MacDonald

The Road Safety Audit Team undertook a visit to the site on Wednesday 26th May 2021 at
16.30hrs. During this visit the weather was overcast, but immediately prior, there had been heavy
rain showers; as such, the road surface was wet. Traffic conditions were moderate and free
flowing. Some pedestrian activity was observed mainly towards the Tesco store, but no cycle
activity was observed.
A second visit to site during the hours of darkness was undertaken on the same day at 22:30 hrs
during which time the weather was rain showers and the road surface wet. Traffic flows were
light, and no pedestrian / cyclist activity was observed.
During the daytime site visit only, the Audit Team was accompanied by Sarah Steel and Kevin
Crawley of Cumbria County Council. Norman Black of Cumbria Constabulary was invited to
attend but was unable to do so.
This Road Safety Audit was carried out in accordance with Highways England’s Departmental
Standard GG119. The Road Safety Audit Team has examined and reported only on the road
safety implications of the scheme as presented and has not examined or verified the compliance
of the designs to any other criteria.
The comments and suggestions for road safety improvements made in this report seek to
address matters that might have an adverse effect on road safety in the context of the chosen
design. No attempt has been made to comment on the justification of the scheme.
Consequently, the auditors accept no responsibility for the design or construction of the
scheme.
All the issues raised in this report are considered to be required for action. The comments
contained in the report are based on safety related concerns and, as such, the design engineer

| | | ENV0000495C-MMD-XX-XX-AU-RD-0215128 | 22 June 2021

120

Mott MacDonald | Carlisle FRM Scheme Tesco Entrance
Road Safety Audit Stage 3

2

will need to consider carefully how to respond to each of the issues. The Audit Response
Report should be completed by the Design Team and kept on file for future reference.
Two previous Combined Stage 1/2 Road Safety Audits (Doc ref: 287864/TPN/ITD/446/A and
287864/TPN/ITD/517/A) were undertaken in March 2019 and February 2020 respectively. The
first Combined Stage 1/2 was undertaken on an alternative scheme.
A Key Plan indicating the location of any identified safety related issues is provided in Appendix
B.
At the time of the site visit, elements of the 1.5m wide footway into the Tesco store were yet to
be completed and the handrail due to be installed along the ramped sections was not in situ. It
has been agreed that the Audit Team will be provided with photographs of the completed ramps
once the handrail has been installed.
Scheme Description
The scheme includes new flood embankments either side of the access to the Tesco
Superstore. A retractable flood gate can be closed across the Tesco access in times of flood.
The position of the new flood gates is across the location of a former uncontrolled pedestrian
crossing point. As such, pedestrians are now required to cross via the existing crossing points
at the signalised junction, and a new section of 1.5m wide pedestrian footway has been
installed over the eastern flood embankment via two pedestrian ramps with approximately 1:20
gradients. The footways on the western and eastern side of the Tesco access leading to the
former crossing point have been removed to encourage correct use of the new route.

| | | ENV0000495C-MMD-XX-XX-AU-RD-0215128 | 22 June 2021

121

Mott MacDonald | Carlisle FRM Scheme Tesco Entrance
Road Safety Audit Stage 3

3

2 Items Raised at First Stage 1/2 Audit

This section describes road safety related issues identified by the Audit Team during the first
Stage 1/2 Road Safety Audit (Doc ref: 287864/TPN/ITD/446/A).

2.1

Problem 1.01

Location: Tesco access arm.
Summary: The layout is not standard and could be confusing to pedestrians who may believe
they have priority, potentially resulting in conflict.
Although it is proposed to re-install the existing layout, with zebra crossing type markings on the
entry arm and solid white lines with Keep Clear Markings on the exit arm, this is not to standard.
The layout is potentially misleading to pedestrians as they may believe it is a controlled crossing
for which they have priority. This could result in collisions between pedestrians and motorists.
Figure 2.1: Misleading layout.

Source: Mott MacDonald

Recommendation
It is recommended that the zebra crossing type stripes and the Keep Clear Box markings are
omitted from the scheme.
Comments made at this Stage 3 Road Safety Audit
This crossing has been removed; therefore, this issue is no longer considered applicable.

| | | ENV0000495C-MMD-XX-XX-AU-RD-0215128 | 22 June 2021

122

Mott MacDonald | Carlisle FRM Scheme Tesco Entrance
Road Safety Audit Stage 3

4

3 Items Raised at Second Stage 1/2 Audit

This section describes road safety related issues identified by the Audit Team during the second
Stage 1/2 Road Safety Audit (Doc ref: 287864/TPN/ITD/517/A).
The Audit Team did not identify any road safety related issues associated with the scheme.

| | | ENV0000495C-MMD-XX-XX-AU-RD-0215128 | 22 June 2021

123

Mott MacDonald | Carlisle FRM Scheme Tesco Entrance
Road Safety Audit Stage 3

5

4 Items Raised at this Stage 3 Audit

This section describes road safety related issues identified by the Audit Team during this Stage
3 Road Safety Audit.

4.1

Problem 3.01

Location: Tesco access arm.
Summary: Convoluted crossing arrangement increases pedestrians’ vulnerability to being struck
by passing vehicles.
In order to accommodate the new flood gates, a two-phase uncontrolled pedestrian crossing
point on the Tesco access road has been removed. Pedestrians are now required to cross the
carriageway via the existing facilities at the signalised junction. This route involves four uncontrolled crossing phases. There is concern that ambiguity relating to the direction from which
vehicles will approach on each arm combined with increased footfall due to the removal of the
alternative crossing point may lead to an increased risk of collisions involving crossing
pedestrians.
Figure 4.1: Four-phase uncontrolled crossing point.

Source: Mott MacDonald

Recommendation
It is recommended that appropriately positioned ‘Look left’ and ‘Look right’ carriageway text is
installed at each crossing point to highlight the direction of approaching traffic for crossing
pedestrians.

| | | ENV0000495C-MMD-XX-XX-AU-RD-0215128 | 22 June 2021

124

Mott MacDonald | Carlisle FRM Scheme Tesco Entrance
Road Safety Audit Stage 3

4.2

6

Problem 3.02

Location: Tesco access arm.
Summary: Inappropriately positioned corduroy tactile paving may lead to conflicts between
pedestrians and cyclists.
There is existing corduroy tactile paving located on the eastern side of the Tesco access road
between the uncontrolled pedestrian crossing and the new 1.5m wide footway link. According
to the design drawings, the corduroy tactile paving should have been relocated to the east of
the new footway link indicating to users that the footway is not a cycle route. The current
position of the corduroy tactile paving may lead to cyclists attempting to use the 1.5m wide
footway increasing the risk of collisions with pedestrians. Alternatively, pedestrians joining the
footway from the Tesco footway link may be unaware of the likely presence of cyclists
increasing the risk of conflicts between the two user groups: this is of particular concern for
pedestrians with visibility impediments.
Figure 4.2: Inappropriately located corduroy tactile paving.

Source: Mott MacDonald

Recommendation
It is recommended that the corduroy tactile paving is correctly relocated to the eastern side of
the Tesco footway link.

| | | ENV0000495C-MMD-XX-XX-AU-RD-0215128 | 22 June 2021

125

Mott MacDonald | Carlisle FRM Scheme Tesco Entrance
Road Safety Audit Stage 3

7

5 Audit Team Statement

We certify that this audit has been carried out in accordance with Highways England’s
Departmental Standard GG119.
Road Safety Audit Team Leader
T J Blaney BSc (Hons), CMILT, MCIHT, MSoRSA
(Certificate of Competency in Road Safety Audit, July 2012)
Signed:

Date: 22nd June 2021
Principal Road Safety Engineer
Mott MacDonald
10 Temple Back
Bristol
BS1 6FL
Road Safety Audit Team Member
R J Collins BA (Hons), MSc, MCIHT
(Certificate of Competency in Road Safety Audit, July 2016)
Signed:

Date: 22nd June 2021
Senior Road Safety Engineer
Mott MacDonald
9 Portland Street
Manchester
M1 3BE

Other Attendees:
–

Cumbria County Council

Kevin Crawley –

Cumbria County Council

Sarah Steel

| | | ENV0000495C-MMD-XX-XX-AU-RD-0215128 | 22 June 2021

126

Mott MacDonald | Carlisle FRM Scheme Tesco Entrance
Road Safety Audit Stage 3

8

Appendices
A.
B.

List of Drawings & Documents Examined
Location Plan – Carlisle FRM Scheme – Tesco Entrance

| | | ENV0000495C-MMD-XX-XX-AU-RD-0215128 | 22 June 2021

127

9
10

Mott MacDonald | Carlisle FRM Scheme Tesco Entrance
Road Safety Audit Stage 3

9

A. List of Drawings & Documents Examined
Table 5.1: Drawings
Drawing Number

Revision

Drawing Title

ENV0000495C-MMD-DZ-TR-DR-C-0213270

P01

General Location Plan

ENV0000495C-MMD-DZ-TR-DR-C-0213271

P01

Site Clearance

ENV0000495C-MMD-DZ-TR-DR-C-0213272

P01

Proposed Layout

ENV0000495C-MMD-DZ-TR-DR-C-0213273

P01

Embankment: Plan, Profile and Sections

ENV0000495C-MMD-DZ-TR-DR-C-0213274

P01

Carriageway: Plan, Profile and Sections

ENV0000495C-MMD-DZ-TR-DR-C-0213275

P01

Existing Utilities

ENV0000495C-MMD-DZ-TR-DR-C-0213279

P01.1

Construction Details

ENV0000495C-MMD-DZ-TR-DR-S-0213277

P01

Flood Gate and Ground Beam Details

Source: Mott MacDonald

Table 5.2: Documents
Document Number

Revision

Document Title

287864/TPN/ITD/446

A

Combined Stage 1/2 RSA (2019)

287864/TPN/ITD/517

A

Combined Stage 1/2 RSA (2020)

Source: Mott MacDonald

| | | ENV0000495C-MMD-XX-XX-AU-RD-0215128 | 22 June 2021

128

Mott MacDonald | Carlisle FRM Scheme Tesco Entrance
Road Safety Audit Stage 3

10

B. Location Plan – Carlisle FRM Scheme – Tesco Entrance

129
Problem 3.01
Problem 3.02

Not to Scale
| | | ENV0000495C-MMD-XX-XX-AU-RD-0215128 | 22 June 2021

Mott MacDonald | Carlisle FRM Scheme Tesco Entrance
Road Safety Audit Stage 3

11

mottmac.com
| | | ENV0000495C-MMD-XX-XX-AU-RD-0215128 | 22 June 2021

130

131

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 6

CARLISLE HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORTATION
WORKING GROUP
Meeting date:
From:

7 October 2021

Executive Director – Economy and
Infrastructure

CUMBRIA HOUSE AND CECIL STREET OFF-STREET CAR
PARKS – ELECTRIC CHARGING FACILITIES AND ADDITION
OF ANNUAL PERMIT CHARGE
1.0

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

This report updates the Highways and Transport Working Group (the
Working Group) on plans to install electric charge points at the
Cumbria House and Cecil Street off street car parks and the necessary
changes to the off street parking orders.

1.2

An annual permit charge will also be included in the orders for all car
park users; and

1.3

the extent of the Cecil Street off-street car park will be increased to
allow enforcement of the land adjacent to Stanley Hall. (see Appendix
1)

1.4

The Working Group is asked to recommend that the Carlisle Local
Committee on 9th November 2021 agree to proceed to statutory
consultation and advertisement of the amended car park traffic orders
and subject there being no objections they authorise the bringing into
force of the orders. Any objections to the orders will be brought to a
future Local Committee meeting to resolve the issues.

2.0

STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

2.1

The provision of electric charging points within the Cumbria House and
Cecil Street off street car parks and within other County Council
premises has the following benefits;


To enable communities to live safely and shape services locally



To protect and enhance Cumbria’s world class environment



To provide safe and well maintained roads and an effective
transport network

133



To promote sustainable economic growth, and create jobs



To be a modern and efficient council

2.2

There are no equality implications contained in this report.

3.0

RECOMMENDATION

3.1

That the Working Group recommends that Local Committee agree to
proceed to statutory consultation and advertisement of changes to: (i)

The County of Cumbria (Cecil Street, Carlisle) (Off Street Parking
Places) Order 2016; and
The County of Cumbria (Council’s Office Car Park,) (Off Street
Parking Places) Order 2016’

“the Orders”, to include spaces for electric charging points and an
annual permit charge for all car park users; and to extend Cecil Street
car park to include land adjacent to Stanley Hall
3.2

That the Working Group recommends that Local Committee agree that
in the event that no objections are received, the changes and Orders be
brought into operation.

3.3

That the Working Group recommends that Local Committee agree that
any unresolved objections to the changes detailed in paragraph 3.1
above, will be brought back to the Local Committee for consideration.

4.0

BACKGROUND

4.1

On the 11th September 2019 Council Members unanimously supported a
motion “to become a ‘carbon neutral’ county and to mitigate the likely impact
of existing climate change".

4.2

The Council has a long history of working to minimise and mitigate its carbon
emissions. The Council’s first Carbon Reduction Plan was published in
2009. This led to the development of the county's first Climate Change
Strategy in 2012. Subsequent Carbon reduction initiatives implemented by
the Council include:
•

The Council’s LED replacement programme led to a four-fold reduction
in carbon emissions arising from street lighting over the period between
2013 and 2018.

•

Energy use in Council buildings has fallen by 10% since 2009, with
opportunities to make further improvements under review on an
ongoing basis.

•

The amount of household waste that goes to landfill had been reduced
through investment in mechanical and biological treatment plants.

•

Chairing the Cumbria Climate Change Working Group (CCWG) that
brings together partners across the public, private and third sectors.

•

Commissioned a baseline study to assess county-wide carbon
emissions from all sectors. Establishing this baseline will be essential to
the Council and to partners across all sectors in developing plans to
reduce carbon emissions arising from the Cumbrian economy.

134

4.3

Road traffic generates around 20% of the UK’s total greenhouse gas
emissions. The Council continues to make a concerted effort to reduce
emissions in this regard. As the Council and wider society transitions
towards a greater use of electric vehicles (‘EV’s) it is necessary to invest in
physical charging infrastructure.

4.4

In 2019 the Council engaged with PodPoint to commission a feasibility
study, to assess the business case for installing EVCPs at five Councilowned sites in strategic locations across the County:
•
•
•
•
•

Cumbria House Car Park, Carlisle
Cecil Street Car Park, Carlisle
County Hall Car Park, Kendal
Maryport Transport Hub
Workington Transport Hub

The preferred option in the study was to install of six new 7kW EVCPs at
each site with associated upgrades to the power supply. New power supplies
at all sites will create future expansion potential for up to a further 162
EVCP’s in total. One hour of charging at 7kW will provide up to 30 miles of
vehicle range, which exceeds the UK average daily commuting distance.
4.5

This project will contribute to the facilitation of the anticipated societal move
away from vehicles powered by fossil fuels to vehicles using renewable
sources of energy.
This trend will have positive effects on local
environments and specifically air quality, by reducing vehicle emissions,
leading to public health benefits.

4.6

It will provide physical infrastructure that will be required as motor vehicle
manufacturers move towards the production of vehicles powered by
renewable sources of energy. The resultant electric charging physical
infrastructure will be required for both public use and to meet an anticipated
service requirement in respect of the Council’s service vehicle fleet.

4.7

This project will provide physical infrastructure that will become increasingly
expected and required by local businesses, visitors and the wider public.

4.8

The Council will pay 12.3p per kWh for the cost of electricity used to supply
the EVCPs and users of the EVCPs will pay 30p per kWh for the cost of
electricity used. There will be no additional charge for parking as long as the
vehicle is receiving a charge.

4.9

The Cecil Street car park was formerly a City Council owned car park for
many years and was transferred to the County Council in 2012 and has 205
spaces. The need for the change in the traffic order is to ensure that non
electric charging vehicles do not park in these 6 spaces, shown in Appendix
1, and so they are kept available for drivers who wish to use the charge
points. The extent of the Cecil Street off-street car park will be increased to
allow enforcement of the land adjacent to Stanley Hall. (see Appendix 1)

4.10

The Cumbria House car park (named the Council’s Office car park in the
order) was opened in 2016 and has 96 spaces. The need for the change in
the traffic order is to ensure that non electric charging vehicles do not park in
these 6 spaces, shown in Appendix 1, and so they are kept available for
drivers who wish to use the charge points. It already has some electric
charging facilities but these are for County Council vehicles only.

135

4.11

In addition to the changes in the Orders to incorporate the electric vehicle
charge points it is also suggested to introduce an annual permit charge of
£350 to allow drivers to pay up front to park in the car parks all year. Carlisle
City Council also has the facility to buy an annual permit and their charges
range from £325 to £938 depending on the type and location of the car
parks.

5.0

OPTIONS

5.1

Approve the recommendations in paragraphs 3.1 to 3.3 above.

5.2

Not approve or approve in part the recommendations in paragraphs 3.1 to
3.3.

6.0

RESOURCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS

6.1

There are no direct resource implications for Local Committee arising from
the recommendation to proceed to statutory consultation and if subsequently
agreed adoption of the proposed TRO.

6.2

All implementation costs for the EVCPs and TRO would be met from the non
devolved capital budget for this scheme.

6.3

The non devolved revenue income and running costs for the EVCPs would
be held within the Property budget. The unit income is set to generate a
surplus after electricity and maintenance costs (paragraph 4.8) which once
confirmed may be considered to use to either meet existing savings or
further enterprise activity.

7.0

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1

Section 32(1) of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 (“the 1984 Act”)
provides that “Where for the purpose of relieving or preventing congestion of
traffic it appears to a local authority to be necessary to provide within their
area suitable parking places for vehicles, the local authority, subject to Parts
I to III of Schedule 9 to the 1984 Act:(a)

7.2

may provide off-street parking places (whether above or below ground
and whether or not consisting of or including buildings) together with
means of entrance to and egress from them…” by means of an offstreet Order.

Section 35(1) of the 1984 Act provides that as respects any parking place
provided under section 32 (above), the off-street Order may make provision
as to the use of the parking place, and in particular the vehicles or class of
vehicles which may be entitled to use it; the conditions on which it may be
used; the charges to be paid in connection with its use (where it is an offstreet one), and the removal from it of a vehicle left there in contravention of
the order and the safe custody of the vehicle. and the power to make
provision as to the payment of charges shall include power to make
provision requiring those charges, or any part of them, to be paid by means
of the hire or purchase in advance, or the use, of parking devices in
accordance with the order.

136

7.3

An order under subsection 35 (1) above may provide for a specified
apparatus or device to be used as a means to indicate the time at which a
vehicle arrived at, and the time at which it ought to leave, a parking place, or
one or other of those times, or the charges paid or payable in respect of a
vehicle in an off-street parking place; or as a means to collect any such
charges, and may make provision regulating the use of any such apparatus
or device […].

7.4

An order under section 35 (1) above may also provide for regulating the
issue, use and surrender of parking devices; for requiring vehicles to display
parking devices when left in any parking place in respect of which the
parking devices may be used; without prejudice to the generality of
paragraph (b) above, for regulating the manner in which parking devices are
to be displayed or operated; for prescribing the use, and the manner of use,
of apparatus designed to be used in connection with parking devices; for
treating the indications given by a parking device, or the display or the failure
to display a parking device on or in any vehicle left in any parking place, as
evidence (and, in Scotland, as sufficient evidence) of such facts as may be
provided by the order; for the refund, in such circumstances and in such
manner as may be prescribed in the order, of the whole or part of the
amount of any charge paid in advance in respect of a parking device; for the
payment of a deposit in respect of the issue of a parking device (and for the
repayment of the whole or any part of any such deposit.

7.5

In Section 35 “parking device” means either a card, disc, token, meter,
permit, stamp or other similar device, whether used in a vehicle or not, […]
which, being used either by itself, or in conjunction with any such apparatus
as is referred to above indicates, or causes to be indicated, the payment of a
charge, and the period in respect of which it has been paid and the time of
the beginning or end of the period, or whether or not the period for which it
has been paid or any further period has elapsed, or the period for which the
vehicle in relation to which the parking device is used is permitted to park in
the parking place, and the time of the beginning or end of the period, or
whether or not the period for which the vehicle in relation to which the
parking device is used is permitted to park in the parking place or any further
period has elapsed; or operates apparatus controlling the entry of vehicles to
or their exit from the parking place, or enables that apparatus to be operated;
or any other device of any such description as may from time to time be
prescribed for the purposes of this section or section 35A below, namely a
“credit card” being a card or similar thing issued by any person, use of which
enables the holder to defer the payment by him of the charge for parking a
vehicle; and “debit card” being a card or similar thing issued by any person,
use of which by the holder causes the charge for parking a vehicle to be paid
by the electronic transfer of funds from any current account of his at a bank
or other institution providing banking services.].

7.6

The Local Committee has the power, as set out at paragraph 5.1.2 (g) of
Part 2D of the Constitution, to approve the making of traffic regulation orders
in accordance with powers under Parts I, II and IV of the 1984 Act, except for
the making of traffic regulation orders which involve the introduction of
charging for on-street residents permits, which are delegated to the
Executive Director – Economy and Infrastructure subject to a decision of the
appropriate member body to introduce such charges.

137

8.0

CONCLUSION

8.1

Members are asked to introduce changes to the existing off street parking
orders for both the Cecil Street and Cumbria House car parks to allow the
introduction and enforcement of electric charge spaces and the introduction
of an annual permit charge for all car park users and in the case of the Cecil
Street car park to increase the extent of the car park to include land adjacent
to Stanley Hall

Angela Jones
Executive Director – Economy and Infrastructure

June 2021

APPENDICES
Appendix 1

Car Park Plan

Electoral Divisions:

All Carlisle

Executive Decision

Yes

Key Decision

No

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan?
Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency?

N/A
No

If exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant
Overview and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained?
Has this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny?
If so, give details below.

N/A

No

Has an environmental or sustainability impact assessment been
undertaken?

N/A

Has an equality impact assessment been undertaken?

N/A

138

PREVIOUS RELEVANT COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS
[including Local Committees]
None
CONSIDERATION BY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
Not considered by Overview and Scrutiny.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
No background papers.

REPORT AUTHOR
Contact: Rob Lewis
Tel: 07876 020316
Email: rob.lewis@cumbria.gov.uk

139

This page is intentionally left blank

Cecil Street Car Park, Carlisle
Approx Location of GRP Housing
Approx Location of Twin 7kW Charging Unit

Parkhouse Building, Kingmoor Business Park
CARLISLE, Cumbria, CA6 4SJ, Tel. 01228 226662

Reproduced from, or based on, Ordnance survey map material
with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery
Office. (c) Crown Copyright 2006. Licence number 100019596

Location Plan

CCC Car Park Boundary
Drawn by DF

141

Scale: 1/1000 @ A4

OS Ref No: NY4055

Date: 17/06/2021

This page is intentionally left blank

Cumbria House Car Park, Carlisle
Approx Location of GRP Housing
Approx Location of Twin 7kW Charging Unit

Parkhouse Building, Kingmoor Business Park
CARLISLE, Cumbria, CA6 4SJ, Tel. 01228 226662

Reproduced from, or based on, Ordnance survey map material
with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery
Office. (c) Crown Copyright 2006. Licence number 100019596

Location Plan

CCC Car Park Boundary
Drawn by DF

143

Scale: 1/1000 @ A4

OS Ref No: NY4055

Date: 17/06/2021

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 7

CARLISLE HIGHWAYS & TRANSPORT WORKING
GROUP
Meeting date:
From:

7 October 2021

Executive Director – Economy & Infrastructure

TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS REVIEW 2020/2021:
VARIATION ORDER 62
1.0

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

This report advises Members of the Highways and Transport Working
Group (“the Working Group”) of the outcome of the statutory
advertisement and consultation of additions, amendments and
variations to the Order referred to at paragraph 3.1 of this report.

1.2

A copy of the Notice which summarises the restrictions which are
proposed to be introduced under the Order, is attached as Appendix 1
and shown on the plans attached as Appendix 2.

1.3

A copy of the responses to the statutory consultation and officer
comments and recommendations, is attached as Appendix 3.

1.4

A copy of the Council’s Statement of Reasons for proposing to make
the Order is attached as Appendix 4.

1.5

This report seeks a recommendation from the Working Group that the
Local Committee agree to introduce the Order to the extent specified at
paragraph 3.1 of this report.

2.0

STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

2.1

In considering any implications, members must consider if the
proposals impact on the Council Plan, including supporting delivery of
Community Strategy and Council Plan priorities, specifically


To safeguard children, and ensure that Cumbria is a great place to
be a child and grow up



To enable communities to live safely and shape services locally



To provide safe and well-maintained roads and an effective
transport network

145

2.2

No significant equality implications have been identified at this stage,
and the statutory processes provide the mechanisms for any Equality
Issues to be raised and aired.

3.0

RECOMMENDATION

3.1

That the Working Group, having considered the representations
received during the statutory advertisement and consultation, referred
to at paragraph 4.2 of this report , and having taken into consideration
the matters contained in section 122(2) of the Road Traffic Regulation
Act 1984 which are more specifically referred to at paragraph 7.2 of this
report, recommend that The County of Cumbria (Various Roads,
Carlisle Urban and Rural Area) (Consolidation and Minor Amendment
of Traffic Regulations) (Order 2001) Variation Order (No. 62) 20><, (“the
Order”) be brought into operation, as advertised, SAVE FOR the
following: -

3.1.1 Old Raffles Parade – recommend to Local Committee that the
proposals are not introduced.
3.1.2 Craw Hall, Brampton – recommend to Local Committee that the
proposals are not introduced.
4.0

BACKGROUND

4.1

There are ongoing requests for Traffic Regulation Orders which are recorded
and progressed as a package of work. The statutory consultation for the
Order, (Variation Order No. 62) includes the following proposed schemes:


Scalegate and Ridley Road - Introduce a section ‘No Waiting at Any
Time’ (double yellow line) restrictions. This proposal aims to improve
visibility at the junction of Scalegate Road and Ridley Road.



Brampton Industrial Estate - Introduce a section ‘No Waiting at Any
Time’ (double yellow line) restrictions. This proposal aims to improve
visibility at the junction of Carlisle Road, Brampton and Town Foot
Industrial Estate access.



Etterby Road – Introduce a section of ‘No Waiting at Any Time’
(double yellow line) and ‘No Loading or Unloading at Any Time’
restrictions. This proposal aims to prevent further structural damage to
the existing Riverbank.



Wingate Road, Gilsland Road, Hespeck Raise, Talkin Close,
Geltsdale Avenue, and Farlam Drive - Introduce sections of ‘No
Waiting at Any Time’ (double yellow line) restrictions. This proposal
aims to improve visibility and prevent vehicle obstructions at the
junctions.



Warwick Square - Introduce a section ‘No Waiting at Any Time’
(double yellow line) restrictions. This proposal aims to improve visibility
and prevent parking obstructions to the access of Grosvenor House.

146



4.2

Beck Lane & Chandler Lane, Brampton – Introduce ‘Prohibition of
Motor Vehicles, Except for Access’ restriction. To prevent inappropriate
parking.

Following informal consultation, statutory consultation and advertisement
has been undertaken and the following proposals have received comments,
which are included with Officer comments and recommendations as part of
Appendix 3:
4.2.1 Etterby Road
This proposal has brought some concerns from the affected
properties regarding potential delivery issues. This area currently has
temporary traffic signals which prohibits any vehicle parking within the
vicinity. Without the proposed restrictions this would be detrimental to
the safety of the public and road users. The recommendation here is
to implement the proposals as advertised, to prevent further structural
damage to the Riverbank.
4.2.2 Old Raffles Parade This proposal received 4 objections and 1 response in support. The
parking issue experienced 3 years ago is no longer an issue due to a
business vacating one of the units. Due to COVID-19 business
owners are concerned this would push their customers away and they
are doing their best to get back to normal. The recommendation here
is to delete in its entirety.
4.2.3 Wingate Road, Gilsland Road, Hespeck Raise, Talkin Close,
Geltsdale Avenue, and Farlam Drive, Durranhill, Carlisle This proposal received queries regarding the increase of parked
vehicles within the area of Wingate Road, due to a public car park
closing. Inspections have been carried out and it was determining the
biggest issue is visibility and obstruction of the above junctions. As a
result, the recommendation here is to implement the proposal as
advertised.
4.2.4 Warwick Square, Carlisle This proposal received one query and one objection. Concerns
regarding the proposal will result in reduction of ‘on street’ parking
places. The proposed No Waiting at Any Time is replacing the
existing advisory ‘No Parking’, which will run the same length of
existing, the recommendation here is to implement the proposal as
advertised.
4.2.5 Beck Lane & Chandler Lane, Brampton This proposal received one query, asking to include the small part of
the road that runs from Low Cross Street to Main Street, Brampton.
This addition has been entered into our TRO request sheet, for future
investigations. As a result, the recommendation here is to implement
the proposal as advertised.

147

4.2.6 Craw Hall, Brampton This proposal received 2 in support and 4 objections. The proposal of
‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restrictions have not been welcomed and
will have a detrimental impact on surrounding businesses and
residential streets. The road is very narrow and after further
investigations, the proposed ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restrictions
would need to be extended, to accommodate junctions and possibly
either side of the road. This area currently has an ‘Advisory Bar’ for
No Parking, and site visits prior and during the consultation period
and have determine that the issue of Parking issue is minimal. It is
unlikely that the restrictions would be enforced regularly enough to
prevent drivers ignoring the restrictions for short duration parking. It is
recommended this is deleted in its entirety.
5.0

OPTIONS

5.1

The Highways and Transport Working Group could recommend that Local
Committee.


Implement the restrictions as advertised (and so overrule any
objections which may have been received after giving them due
consideration).



Agree to introduce a less onerous restriction that meets the concerns
raised in any objection.



Abandon a specific proposal in its entirety (and so uphold any
objections which may have been received).

6.0

RESOURCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS

6.1

The estimated costs for implementation of the restrictions in this Order are
£3000. The costs of implementation will be met from the Signs, Lines and
TROs element of the 2021/22 Capital Devolved Budget.

7.0

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The County Council, as Traffic Authority, must take into consideration the
matters contained in section 122(2) of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984
(“the 1984 Act”) detailed below, in considering whether it is expedient to
agree to the implementation of the Order detailed in this Report for the
reasons specified at section 1(1)(a), (b), (c), and (d) of the 1984 Act, as set
out further in the attached Statement of Reasons which is attached as
Appendix 4, namely: (a)

for avoiding danger to persons or other traffic using the roads or
any other roads or for preventing the likelihood of any such
danger arising,

(b)

for preventing damage to the roads or to any building on or near
the roads, or

148

7.2

(c)

for facilitating the passage on the roads or any other roads of any
class of traffic (including pedestrians), or

(d)

for preventing the use of the road by vehicular traffic of a kind
which, or its use by vehicular traffic in a manner which, is
unsuitable having regard to the existing character of the roads or
adjoining property.

Under Section 122(2), the matters which must be taken into account in
exercising that duty are: (a)

The desirability of securing and maintaining reasonable access to
premises;

(b)

The effect on amenities of an area;

(c)

The national air quality strategy prepared under section 80 of the
Environment Act 1995;

(d)

The importance of facilitating the passage of public service vehicles
and of securing the safety and convenience of persons using or
desiring to use such vehicles; and

(e)

Any other matters appearing to the authority to be relevant.

7.3

Local Committees may, pursuant to Part 2D, paragraph 5.1.2 g) of the
Constitution, approve the making of traffic regulation orders in accordance
with powers under Parts I, II and IV of the Road Traffic Regulation act 1984,
except for the making of Traffic Regulation Orders which involve the
introduction for on-street residents permits, which are delegated to the
Executive Director – Economy and Infrastructure subject to a decision of the
appropriate member body to introduce such charges.

8.0

CONCLUSION

8.1

This report informs the Working Group of the responses to the statutory
advertisement and consultation of the Order referred to at paragraph 3.1 of
this report.

8.2

Some of the proposals received objections and these are detailed in
paragraph 4.2, together with officer comments and recommendations.

Angela Jones
Executive Director – Economy and Infrastructure
7 October 2021

APPENDICES
Appendix 1
Appendix 2
Appendix 3
Appendix 4

–
-

Legal Notice
Location Plans
Consultation responses
Statement of Reasons

149

Electoral Divisions:

Brampton, Belah, Castle, Belle Vue, Upperby and Botcherby

Executive Decision

No

Key Decision

No

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan?
Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency?

N/A
No

If exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant
Overview and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained?

N/A

Has this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny?
If so, give details below.

No

Has an environmental or sustainability impact assessment been
undertaken?

No

Has an equality impact assessment been undertaken?

No

N.B.

If an executive decision is made, then a decision cannot be implemented until the
expiry of the eighth working day after the date of the meeting – unless the decision is
urgent and exempt from call-in and necessary approvals have been obtained.

PREVIOUS RELEVANT COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS
No previous relevant decisions.

CONSIDERATION BY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
Not considered by Overview and Scrutiny.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
No background papers

REPORT AUTHOR
Contact: Selena Nicholson, Selena.nicholson@cumbria.gov.uk, 078278 40013

150

APPENDIX 1
THE COUNTY OF CUMBRIA (VARIOUS ROADS, CARLISLE URBAN AND RURAL
AREA)(CONSOLIDATION AND MINOR AMENDMENT OF
TRAFFIC REGULATIONS) (ORDER 2001) VARIATION (NO. 62) ORDER 20><
The County Council of Cumbria in exercise of its powers under Sections 1(1), 2(1) to (4), 19, 32,
35, 35A, 38, 45, 46, 47, 49, 51, 53 and 64 and Part IV of Schedule 9 to the Road Traffic Regulation
Act 1984 (“the Act”) and of all other enabling powers and after consultation with the Chief
Constable of Cumbria in accordance with Part III of Schedule 9 to the Act hereby makes the
following Order:1.

This Order shall come into operation on >< and may be cited as The County of Cumbria
(Various Roads, Carlisle Urban and Rural Area) (Consolidation and Minor Amendment of
Traffic Regulations) (Order 2001) Variation (No. 62) Order 20><

2.

For the purposes of this Order the expression “the 2001 Order” shall mean The County of
Cumbria (Various Roads, Carlisle Urban and Rural Area) (Consolidation and Minor
Amendment of Traffic Regulations) Order 2001

3.

The 2001 Order shall have effect as though: (a) The following entries were added to Schedule IX “No Waiting At Any Time CARLISLE”: -

Street Name

Restrictions

Street Side

Restricted Length

Warwick Square
(west)

No Waiting
At any Time

North East

From a point25m of its
junction with Aglionby Street
for a distance of 22m in a north
westerly direction

Scalegate Road

No Waiting
At any Time

West

From its junction with Ridley
Road
for a distance of 10m in a
southerly direction

Scalegate Road

No Waiting
At any Time

East

From its junction with Ridley
Road
for a distance of 10m in a
southerly direction

Ridley Road

No Waiting
At any Time

South

From its junction with
Scalegate Road
for a distance of 10m in a
easterly direction

151

Street Name

Restrictions

Street Side

Restricted Length

Ridley Road

No Waiting
At any Time

South

From its junction with
Scalegate Road
for a distance of 10m in a
westerly direction

Wingate Road

No Waiting
At any Time

South east

From its junction with Wingate
Road (East)
For a distance of 5m in a south
westerly direction.

Wingate Road

No Waiting
At any Time

South east

From its junction with
Geltsdale Avenue
for a distance of 17m in a
westerly direction.

Wingate Road

No Waiting
At any Time

South east

From its junction with
Geltsdale Avenue
for a distance of 16m in a
easterly direction.

Geltsdale Avenue

No Waiting
At any Time

East

From its junction with Wingate
Road
for a distance of 10m in a
southerly direction.

Geltsdale Avenue

No Waiting
At any Time

West

From its junction with Wingate
Road
for a distance of 10m in a
southerly direction.

Geltsdale Avenue

No Waiting
At any Time

West

From its junction with Hespek
Raise
for a distance of 14m in a
southerly direction.

152

Geltsdale Avenue

No Waiting
At any Time

West

From its junction with Hespek
Raise
for a distance of 10m in a
northerly direction.

Geltsdale Avenue

No Waiting
At any Time

East

From its junction with Talkin
Close
for a distance of 14m in a
southerly direction.

Geltsdale Avenue

No Waiting
At any Time

East

From its junction with Talkin
Close
for a distance of 14m in a
norttherly direction.

Talkin Close

No Waiting
At any Time

North

From its junction with
Geltsdale Avenue
for a distance of 8m in a
easterly direction.

Talkin Close

No Waiting
At any Time

South East

From its junction with
Geltsdale Avenue
for a distance of 6m in a
easterly direction.

Hespek Raise

No Waiting
At any Time

North

From its junction with
Geltsdale Avenue
for a distance of 10m in a
westerly direction.

Hespek Raise

No Waiting
At any Time

South

From its junction with
Geltsdale Avenue
for a distance of 14m in a
westerly direction.

153

Farlam Drive

No Waiting
At any Time

North

From its junction with Gilsland
Road
for a distance of 14m in a south
westerly direction.

Farlam Drive

No Waiting
At any Time

North

From its junction with Gilsland
Road
for a distance of 13m in a north
easterly direction.

Gilsland Road

No Waiting
At any Time

East

From its junction with Farlam
Drive
for a distance of 15m in a north
westerly direction.

Gilsland Road

No Waiting
At any Time

West

From its junction with Farlam
Drive
for a distance of 15m in a north
westerly direction.

Old Raffles Parade

No Waiting
At any Time

North West

From its junction with Orton
Road
for a distance of 11m in a north
easterly direction.

Orton Road

No Waiting
At any Time

North

From its junction with Old
Raffles Parade
for a distance of 25m in a north
westerly direction.

154

Carlisle Road,
Brampton

No Waiting
At any Time

North

From its junction with
Townfoot Industrial Estate
for a distance of 30m in a north
easterly direction.

Carlisle Road,
Brampton

No Waiting
At any Time

North

From its junction with
Townfoot Industrial Estate
for a distance of 30m in a south
westerly direction.

Townfoot
Industrial Estate

No Waiting
At any Time

North east

From its junction with Carlisle
Road
for a distance of 26m in a north
westerly direction.

Townfoot
Industrial Estate

No Waiting
At any Time

South west

From its junction with Carlisle
Road
for a distance of 30m in a north
westerly direction.

Craw Hall,
Brampton

No Waiting
At any Time

North

From a point 16m of its
junction with Millfield
for a distance of 59m in a north
westerly direction.

Etterby Road

No Waiting
At any Time

Both sides

From a point 8m east of its
junction with Riverbank Court
for a distance of 86m in a north
westerly direction.

155

(c) The following entries were added to Schedule XVII “No Loading/Unloading At Any Time
– CARLISLE”: Street Name

Restriction

Time

Street
Side

Restricted Length

Etterby Road

Unloading & At any Time Both sides
Loading

From a point 8m east of its
junction with Riverbank Court
for a distance of 86m in a northeasterly direction.

(d) The following entries were added to Part 1 of Schedule XXXIIA “Prohibition of Motor
Vehicles, Except for Access”: -

5.

Street Name

Restriction

Restricted Length

Beck Lane
(back lane)

Prohibition of Motor
Vehicles, Except for
Access.

From its junction with Low Cross
Street for its entire length.

Chandlers Lane
(back lane)

Prohibition of Motor
Vehicles, Except for
Access

From its junction with Main Street
for its entire length.

The Interpretation Act 1978 shall apply for the interpretation of this Order as it applies for
the interpretation of an Act of Parliament.
Dated the >< day of >< 20><

THE COMMON SEAL of )
CUMBRIA COUNTY COUNCIL )
was hereunto affixed in
)
the presence of:)

Authorised Signatory ………………………………

156

APPENDIX 2
KEY Proposed 'Access Only '
Properties to be consulted

157
Parkhouse Building
Kingmoor Business Park
CARLISLE
Cumbria
CA6 4SJ
Tel. 01228 673030

Minor Amendments 2020 - 2021
Rear of Beck Lane and Chandler Lane
Access Only At All Times

Reproduced from, or based on, Ordnance survey map material
with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery
Office. (c) Crown Copyright 2006. Licence number 100019596

Drawing No. QCANPRN07/BL1
Drawn by SDN

Scale NTS

Date April 2021

KEY Proposed No Waiting at Any Time
Properties to be consulted

158
26m
30m

30m

30m

Parkhouse Building
Kingmoor Business Park
CARLISLE
Cumbria
CA6 4SJ
Tel. 01228 673030

Minor Amendments 2020 - 2021
Townfoot Industrial Estate, Brampton
No Waiting at Any Time restriction

Reproduced from, or based on, Ordnance survey map material
with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery
Office. (c) Crown Copyright 2006. Licence number 100019596

Drawing No. QCANPRN07/TID1
Drawn by SDN

Scale NTS

Date May 2021

Proposed Parking Measures No Waiting at Any Time Restriction
Property Boundary
Unit Forecourts

Ol

dB
rew

Un

ery
Ya
rd

159

it 5

Un

it 7
Un
it 1

1

Parkhouse Building
Kingmoor Business Park
CARLISLE
Cumbria
CA6 4SJ
Tel. 01228 673030

Minor Local Amendments 2020 - 2021
Craw Hall, Brampton
No Waiting at Any Time Restriction

Reproduced from, or based on, Ordnance survey map material
with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery
Office. (c) Crown Copyright 2006. Licence number 100019596

Figure No. LMA/20/21
Drawn by SDN

Scale NTS

Date: May 2021

Key
Proposed no waiting and
no loading at any time

160
Parkhouse Building,
Kingmoor Business
Park,
Carlisle,
CA6 4SJ,
Tel: 01228 673030

Etterby Road - Waiting and
loading restriction extents

DRAWING NO::
Scale : NTS
Drawn:

AJ

Date: 14-02-20
Checked: AD

KEY Loading Bay - At all times
Proposal of new - No Waiting At Time
restrictions

Parkhouse Building
Kingmoor Business Park
CARLISLE
Cumbria
CA6 4SJ
Tel. 01228 673030

11

m

161

25m

Minor Amendments 2020 - 2021
Old Raffles Parade
Proposal of NWAAT restrictions

Reproduced from, or based on, Ordnance survey map material
with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery
Office. (c) Crown Copyright 2006. Licence number 100019596

Drawing No. QCANPRN07/RP1
Drawn by SDN

Scale NTS

Date May 2021

KEY Proposed No Waiting at Any Time
Affected properties consultees

10m
10m

10m

10m

162
Parkhouse Building
Kingmoor Business Park
CARLISLE
Cumbria
CA6 4SJ
Tel. 01228 673030

Minor Amendments 2020 - 2021
Scalegate and Ridley Road
No Waiting at Any Time restriction

Reproduced from, or based on, Ordnance survey map material
with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery
Office. (c) Crown Copyright 2006. Licence number 100019596

Drawing No. QCANPRN07/SR1
Drawn by SDN

Scale NTS

Date May 2021

KEY Proposal of new - No Waiting At Time
restrictions
Affected properties for consultation

22

Parkhouse Building, Kingmoor Business Park
CARLISLE, Cumbria, CA6 4SJ, Tel. 01228 673030

Minor Amendments 2020 - 2021
Warwick Square
No Waiting at Any Time restrictions to
replace the existing advisory
163'No Parking'

m

Reproduced from, or based on, Ordnance survey map material
with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery
Office. (c) Crown Copyright 2006. Licence number 100019596

Drawing No. QCANPRN07/WS1
Drawn by SDN

Scale NTS

Date May 2021

KEY Existing No Waiting At Any Time
restriction
Proposal of new - No Waiting At Time
restrictions
Affected properties to be consulted

164
Parkhouse Building
Kingmoor Business Park
CARLISLE
Cumbria
CA6 4SJ
Tel. 01228 673030

Minor Amendments 2020 - 2021
Wingate Road Area
Proposal of NWAAT restrictions

Reproduced from, or based on, Ordnance survey map material
with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery
Office. (c) Crown Copyright 2006. Licence number 100019596

Drawing No. QCANPRN07/WG1
Drawn by SDN

Scale NTS

Date May 2020

APPENDIX 3
Formal consultation correspondence

Beck Lane, Chandler Lane, Brampton
Letters sent to 70 consultees: - 1 responded in writing, full support
Respondent
Resident

165

Comments/ objection
In full support of proposal
as the residents often
experience vehicle
obstruction in the narrow
lane and private accesses.
Asked to include the small
road which runs between
Low Cross Street and Main
Street, Brampton.

Supports yes-no
YES

Officer Comments
The request for the
small road that leads
from Low Cross Street
to Main Street,
Brampton has been
added to the TM
request sheet for
future consideration.
Query over who
maintains this section
of the highway.

Recommendation
To implement the
proposal as advertised.

Officer Comments

Recommendation

Townfoot Industrial Estate, Brampton
Letters sent to 16 consultees: - No responses received from ‘Formal Consultation’
Respondent

Comments/ objection

Supports yes-no

Old Brewery Yard, Crawhall, Brampton

Letters sent to 34 consultees: - 5 responded in writing…
Comments/ objection
Their view is the proposal
will fail in its objective of
visibility and parking
obstructions. The proposed
NWAAT restriction stops
just prior to the road
narrowing, suggest we
extend the proposal to the
junction of Old Brewery
Yard

Supports yes-no
Yes – if additional
measures are
considered

Parish Council

Members of the Parish
Council do not support the
proposal. View that the
restrictions would not be
regularly policed and as a
result, waste of money and
time. Concerns regarding
the effect it may have of
the surrounding residential
streets.

No

166

Respondent
Resident

Officer Comments
Considering comments
made by the public, if
NWAAT restrictions are
to be implemented, they
should run the full length
from its junction with Mill
field to its junction with
The Old Brewery access
on either side of the
carriageway. This would
require a new
consultation. Additional
NWAAT restriction length
would have a detrimental
effect on the surrounding
residential streets.
Parking Services do not
patrol Brampton daily,
we have concerns that a
daily patrol would be
expected by the units for
enforcement of which we
do not have the
resources for.

Recommendation
That the proposal is
not implemented

That the proposal is
not implemented

Resident

Business

167
Business

This proposal would
prevent the units to
function efficiently when it
comes to deliveries and
their customers. These
restrictions will encourage
vehicles to park in the
narrow parts of the road
and surrounding streets,
causing additional visibility
issues.
Concerns that proposal will
have a detrimental effect
to their business of which
is already struggling due to
COVID-19.

No

This proposal will have a
detrimental effect with
the other business units
on Craw Hall, that have
not requested these
restrictions.

That the proposal is
not implemented

No

That the proposal is
not implemented

Business is experiencing
vehicles being blocked in
their forecourt due to
parked cars on the
highway. Experiencing
visibility issues and
obstruction. Road is very

YES

On various site
inspections, there is very
little parking, and of
which is short term. We
do not have the
resources to patrol the
proposed restrictions
daily. Other points raised
were irrelevant to the
traffic proposals and so
were not considered in
any form as the Council
does not know the
factual position behind
them.
Site inspections has
identified cars parked
within the forecourt
overhang onto the public
footway. Parked vehicles
that encroach onto the
highway from the

That the proposal is
not implemented

narrow and has potential
for accidents to occur.
Vehicles being parked in
their forecourt at the same
time of those parked on
the highway, results in
pedestrians having to walk
on the road to get by.
Experience noncustomers
parking within their
forecourt and blocking the
footpath to their entrance.

forecourt may receive a
contravention order, if
the NWAAT restrictions
are to be implemented.

Etterby Road, Etterby, Carlisle

168

Letters sent to 26 consultees: - 1 responded in writing…

Residents discussed their concerns to Civil Engineers who were working on the site at the time, generally from these conversations were
objections to the ‘Informal’ proposal.
Respondent
Resident

Comments/ objection
Enquiry regarding
emergency vehicles, where
will they parked if
attending to one of the
affected properties. No
date of when works may
start in the reinforcement
of the One Lane system in
place, hope this is not a
permanent measure.

Supports yes-no
N/A

Officer Comments
This proposal is on the
back of a Temporary
Traffic Regulation Order
which is currently in
place. The works are to
stabilise the eroding
riverbank. As a result, we
need to prevent the
heavy usage of this part
of the carriage way for

Recommendation
To implement the
proposal as advertised.

both safety and structural
reasons. The consultation
is for NWAAT and NLAAT
restrictions, 2 lane traffic
system will revert once
the remedial works have
been carried out.
Emergency Services are
exempt of these
restrictions.
Old Raffles Parade, Wigton Road, Carlisle
Letters sent to 6 consultees: - 20 responded in writing…

169

Respondent
Business Owner

Comments/ objection
This proposal will have a
detrimental effect on their
business. Would like to
discuss their concerns
should this be
implemented.

Supports yes-no
No

Business Owner

Business operates from
11am – 11pm, with staff
starting from 9am. His staff
use this parking area as an
unofficial staff Car Park.
Implementing these
restrictions would mean
his staff will have to park in
the surrounding streets.

No

Officer Comments
This consultation has not
been welcomed, given
the time of consultation,
businesses were worried
they would struggle to
get back to normal after
COVID-19 lockdowns.
Proposal not welcomed

Recommendation
That the proposal is
not implemented

That the proposal is
not implemented

Unknown

I object to your plans to
the above reference
number, the proposal will
affect the small business in
the area, the car park is
small, and I suggest this
needs to be made bigger
not smaller.

No

Proposal not welcomed

That the proposal is
not implemented

Unknown

I feel as though it is a
struggle to park as it is,
without implementing
restrictions, need a bigger
car park.
Will have a detrimental
affect on the businesses,
loading bays are not
required to be marked out,
as they manged there
deliveries efficiently.
Businesses are struggling
as it is, due to COVID-19
I strongly object to the
proposed parking plans on
4/5 Raffles Parade. As a
customer the parking is
already a struggle with the
tiny amount of car parking
space available, if anything
it needs to be made larger.
I strongly object to the
parking rules in raffles
avenue. I am a regular

No

Proposal not welcomed

That the proposal is
not implemented

No

Proposal not welcomed

That the proposal is
not implemented

No

Proposal not welcomed

That the proposal is
not implemented

No

Proposal not welcomed

That the proposal is
not implemented

Business

170
Customer

Customer

customer and it is already
a huge struggle to get
parked at all times. There
is no other parking close to
the area. Businesses on
this street will be massively
affected and lose alot of
business. The area could
do with more parking
spaces not less.
Unknown

171

I just wanted to express my No
concerns regarding the
councils proposed plans to
change half of the car park
outside Dominoes, coral,
renuccis and Sunkissed
into a loading bay. I park
here regularly and struggle
already to manoeuvre my
car as the space is so small
and is always so full with
cars parked, and cars
coming in and out. I, along
with many others who live
near the area I’m sure, feel
that these plans would
cause a lot of bother and
possible car collisions
considering the amount of
people who use the car
park. You have delivery
drivers for dominoes,

Proposal not welcomed

That the proposal is
not implemented

Unknown x10

172
Unknown

customers from renuccis,
Sunkissed, coral and
bargain booze and staff
who work in these
premises all in one, already
really small, car park. It
would be extremely unfair
to these businesses who
have mostly been closed
for the past year and a
half. I hope myself and
others manage to
terminate your decision to
ruin their businesses
further.
Concerns for the local
businesses, where will
customers park, Car park
needs to be larger.
Restrictions would prevent
visitors using these local
business units, should they
be at risk of receiving a
penalty charge notice
(PCN).
Objection, the car park is
already small and when
using the shops, I struggle
to park. Providing less
spaces will have a negative
impact on small local
businesses, and also
encourage customers to

No

Proposal not welcomed

That the proposal is
not implemented

No

Proposal not welcomed

That the proposal is
not implemented

Customer

173

park on the surrounding
residential streets.
Regarding the car park
outside of sunkissed salon.
Firstly i would like to say as
a customer it is hard
enough already to get
parked outside of the
business’s located here. I
believe it would be safer
and better for the
business’s here to have the
car park extended for
customer parking. in my
opinion This car park
should not be made into
loading bays it needs to
have more parking
facilities, with easier
access/ places to turn
around. After the stress
over the past year
regarding covid that these
business’s have already
been through i think it is
only fair to listen to their
concerns aswell as their
customer’s concerns.

No

Proposal not welcomed

That the proposal is
not implemented

Scalegate Road & Ridley Road, Carlisle
Letters sent to 23 consultees: -1 responded in writing…
Respondent
Resident & business

174

Comments/ objection
The proposed NWAAT
restrictions will encourage
customers to park outside
residential properties.
Resident already
experiences customer
parking outside their
house, majority of these
vehicles are not parked up
properly which is a
nuisance at times.

Supports yes-no
No

Officer Comments
NWAAT proposed
restrictions are to protect
this junction from both
obstruction and visibility
issues, which were
identified when carrying
out ‘safety inspections’
by Traffic Management
Team.

Recommendation
To implement the
proposal as
advertised.

Comments/ objection
Supports yes-no
In regards to the proposed No
new double yellow lines I
would like to object to
them being placed from
the entrance to the surgery
carpark along to the to the
surgery side.
We have never had a
problem with anyone
blocking the entrance the

Officer Comments
The proposal is to protect
the visibility & potential
vehicle obstructions.

Recommendation
To implement the
proposal as advertised.

Warwick Square, Carlisle
Letters sent to 15 consultees: -1 responded in writing…
Respondent
Business

surgery carpark.
We have limited parking
for patients and staff and
the smaller part outside of
the surgery would reduce
the space even further.
Wingate Rd, Talkin Close, Gilsland Road, Geltsdale Avenue Hespeck Raise & Farlam Drive, Carlisle
Letters sent to 56 consultees: -2 responded in writing…
Comments/ objection
Where are all the cars
going to park?Talkin Close
is a private road. House
holders on Talkin Close,
paid for the road to be
resurfaced, so the council
should be supplying
somewhere for the Estate
Workers to park their cars
or there is just going to be
more tension!! The streets
are already full with
residents vehicles!

Resident

This proposal is a waste of No
time and money, as
vehicles should not park
adjacent or within 10m of
a junction. Private access
visibility is restricted due to

175

Respondent
Resident

Supports yes-no
No

Officer Comments
The proposal of NWAAT
restrictions is to prevent
the junctions from
potential visibility and
obstruction issues.

Recommendation
To implement the
proposal as advertised.

Inspections carried out by
the Traffic Management
Team, has provided
evidence of vehicles
parked too close to
junctions. When carrying

To implement the
proposal as advertised.

the increase of parked
cars, road is narrow, half of
the width taken up with
parked cars, this is also a
bus route. The safety of
pedestrians is at risk due to
the density of parked
vehicles. Workers in the
area should be using the
Pay and Display Car Park.

out the survey, albeit a
high density of parked
vehicles, none were
causing
obstruction/visibility
issues to private
accesses. Unfortunately,
we cannot prevent a
vehicle parking on an
unrestricted part of the
Highway. Possible
implementation of
advisory ‘H Bars’ should
this prove to be a
detrimental issue to
residents in the future.

176

APPENDIX 4

THE COUNTY OF CUMBRIA (VARIOUS ROADS, CARLISLE URBAN AND RURAL
AREA)(CONSOLIDATION AND MINOR AMENDMENT OF TRAFFIC REGULATIONS)
(ORDER 2001).

*********
STATEMENT OF REASONS

Wingate Road, Farlam Drive, Gilsland Road, Geltsdale Avenue, Talkin Close and
Hespeck Raise; Proposed Introduction No Waiting At Any Time Restrictions
Following comments from residents regarding parking causing obstruction and
visibility issues we are proposing to introduce new ‘No Waiting At Any Time’
restrictions on the junctions of Wingate Road and surrounding streets, for the
following reasons:(d)

To secure the expeditious, convenient and safe movement of
vehicular and other traffic (including pedestrians) and the provision
of suitable and adequate parking facilities off the highway.

Old Raffles Parade & Orton Road, Carlisle; Introduction No Waiting At Any Time
Restrictions
Following comments from residents regarding parking causing obstruction and
visibility issues we are proposing to introduce new ‘No Waiting At Any Time’
restrictions on the junction of Orton Road & Old Raffles Parade, for the following
reasons:(d)

To secure the expeditious, convenient and safe movement of
vehicular and other traffic (including pedestrians) and the provision
of suitable and adequate parking facilities off the highway.

177

Scalegate Road & Ridley Road,Carlisle; Introduction No Waiting At Any Time
Restrictions
Following comments from residents regarding parking causing obstruction and
visibility issues we are proposing to introduce new ‘No Waiting At Any Time’
restrictions on the junction of Scalegate & Ridley Road, for the following
reasons:(d) To secure the expeditious, convenient and safe movement of
vehicular and other traffic (including pedestrians) and the provision of
suitable and adequate parking facilities off the highway.

Etterby Road, Carlisle; Proposed provision of No Loading or Unloading and No
Waiting At All Time restrictions
Due to nearby flood damage we are proposing to introduce No Loading and
Unloading and No Waiting At Any Time restrictions on Etterby Road due to the
following reasons:(b)

Preventing damage to the road, or to any building on or near the
road.

Warwick Street, Carlisle; No Waiting At Any Time Restrictions
Following the introduction of disc parking bays on Warwick Street we are
proposing to introduce No Waiting At Any Time restriction on a section of
Warwick Street to ensure safe passage of vehicles, for the following reason ;-

(c)

Facilitate the passage of any class of traffic (including pedestrians).

(d)

To secure the expeditious, convenient and safe movement of
vehicular and other traffic (including pedestrians) and the provision
of suitable and adequate parking facilities off the highway.

178

Carlisle Road & Townfoot industrial Estate, Brampton; Introduction No Waiting At
Any Time Restrictions
Following comments from residents regarding parking causing obstruction and
visibility issues we are proposing to introduce new ‘No Waiting At Any Time’
restrictions on the junction of Carlisle Road & Townfoot Ind Est, for the following
reasons:(d) To secure the expeditious, convenient and safe movement of
vehicular and other traffic (including pedestrians) and the provision of
suitable and adequate parking facilities off the highway.

Craw Hall, Brampton; Introduction No Waiting At Any Time Restrictions
Following comments from residents regarding parking causing obstruction and
visibility issues we are proposing to introduce new ‘No Waiting At Any Time’
restrictions on the junction of Craw Hall, for the following reasons:(d) To secure the expeditious, convenient and safe movement of
vehicular and other traffic (including pedestrians) and the provision of
suitable and adequate parking facilities off the highway.

Low Cross Street & Chandler Lane back lanes, Brampton; proposed ‘No Motor
Vehicles except Access’ restrictions
Following from comments regarding vehicles parking in the back lane and
preventing access to properties we are proposing to provide a ‘No Motor Vehicle
except for Access’ restriction for the following reasons;(d)

To secure the expeditious, convenient and safe movement of
vehicular and other traffic (including pedestrians) and the provision
of suitable and adequate parking facilities off the highway.

179

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 8

CARLISLE
HIGHWAYS
WORKING GROUP
Meeting date:
From:

AND

TRANSPORT

7 October 2021

Executive Director – Economy & Infrastructure

SPEED LIMIT CONSOLIDATION ORDER NO 8, VARIOUS
ROADS 2020/2021
1.0

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

This report advises the Highways and Transport Working Group (the
Working Group) of the outcome of the statutory consultation in relation
to the proposal to introduce:
30mph speed limit at Aglionby, Plains Road, Wetheral, Lanercost,
Wetheral Pasture; and 40 mph speed limit on Lanercost C1025,
Wetheral Pasture, section of both C1038 and B6263.

1.2

And seeks a recommendation from the Working Group that the Local
Committee as per the Recommendation at clause 3.1 of this report, to
bring the Order into operation, as advertised.

1.3

A copy of the Notice summarising the proposals is attached as
Appendix 1.

1.4

A copy of the responses to the statutory consultation and
advertisement, together with Officer comments, is attached as
Appendix 2.

1.5

A copy of the plans detailing the proposals is attached as Appendix 3.

1.6

A copy of the Council’s Statement of Reasons for making the Order, is
attached as Appendix 4.

2.0

STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

2.1

In considering any implications, members must consider if the
proposals impact on the Council Plan, including supporting delivery of
Community Strategy and Council Plan priorities, specifically


To enable communities to live safely and shape services locally



To provide safe and well maintained roads and an effective
transport network

181



To support older and vulnerable people to live independent and
healthy lives

2.2

No significant equality implications have been identified at this stage,
and the statutory processes provide the mechanisms for any Equality
Issues to be raised and aired.

3.0

RECOMMENDATION

3.1

That the Working Group recommend that Carlisle Local Committee
agree that the objection detailed at paragraph 4.5 is overruled and The
County of Cumbria (Various Roads, Carlisle City & District)
(Consolidation and Provision Speed Limits) (No.8) Order 20>< (“the
Order”) be brought into operation, as advertised.

4.0

BACKGROUND

4.1

The County Council carried out the statutory consultation and advertisement
in August 2021 regarding the proposal to implement a 30mph speed limit in
the village of Aglionby, a 30mph speed limit on a section of Plains Road,
Wetheral, 40mph and 30mph speed limits at Wetheral Pastures, and a
40mph and a 30mph Speed Limit in Lanercost, as shown on the plans
attached as Appendix 3, which are: -

4.1.1 Aglionby Introduce 30 mph speed limit to –








Rosegate for its entire length
U1331 – Manor Croft For its entire length
U1177 (102) From its junction with the A69 for a distance of approx
630m in a north easterly direction
U1177 (101) From its junction with the A69 for a distance of 300m in a
north easterly direction
Broomy Hill For its entire length
U1426 The Strand For its entire length
Williams Pasture For its entire length

4.1.2 Plains Road, Wetheral, Introduce 30 mph speed limit to 

U1179 – Plains Road From a point approx. 880m south of its junction
with the A69 for a distance of approx. 347m in a south easterly direction.

4.1.3 Wetheral Pasture, Introduce 30 mph speed limit to 

C1038 - From its junction with the B6263 Steeles Bank For a distance of
850m in a south easterly direction.

4.1.4 Wetheral Pasture, Introduce 40 mph speed limit to 

C1038 From a distance 850m south east of its junction with Steeles
Bank for a distance of approx. 585m in a south easterly direction



B6263 From a point approx. 591m of its junction with the C1040 for a
distance of approximately 1226m in a north easterly direction.

182

4.1.5 Lanercost, Introduce 30 mph speed limit to


C1025 From its junction with the C1029 for a distance of approx. 260m
in a south easterly direction.



C1025 From its junction with the C1029 for a distance of approx. 825m
in an easterly direction.

4.1.6 Lanercost, Introduce 40 mph speed limit to


C1025 From a point approximately 643m south of its junction with the
C1029 for a distance of 824m in a southerly direction.

4.2

The proposal for speed limits in Aglionby, Lanercost, Wetheral Pasture and
Plains Road, Wetheral aim to highlight and reinforce that drivers are entering
a village and vehicles should travel at an appropriate speed.

4.3

Lanercost & Aglionby also meets the defined criteria (to be classed as a
village) in regard to frontage and density requirements as detailed in DfT
circular 01/13 Setting Local Speed Limits.

4.4

A statutory consultation has been undertaken which includes consultation
with the relevant Parish Councils, statutory consultees, affected
householders and Division Members, and the proposals have been met
favourably, with only 1 objection received. The statutory consultation
responses, along with officer comments are included in Appendix 2.

4.5

The objector has commented that implementing the 30mph speed limit
restrictions in Aglionby will encourage vehicles to drive at that speed, and
that vehicles should not be driving over 20mph. Please see Appendix 2 for
Officer comments.

5.0

OPTIONS

5.1

That the Working Group Recommends to Carlisle Local Committee To
overrule the objection and bring the order into to operation as advertised.

5.2

That the Working Group Recommends to Carlisle Local Committee that the
objection outlined in Appendix 2 is upheld, and the order is brought into
operation IN PART only, ie. so as to omit the proposals for Aglionby from the
made Order.

6.0

RESOURCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS

6.1

The estimated cost to implement this Order is £8500. This will be covered by
this year’s Capital budget.

7.0

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The County Council, as Traffic Authority, must take into consideration the
matters contained in section 122(2) of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984
(“the 1984 Act”) detailed below at paragraph 7.2, in considering whether it is
expedient to agree to the implementation of the speed limits detailed in this
report, for the reason specified at sections 1(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the 1984
Act, as set out in the Statement of Reasons which is attached as Appendix 4
to this report, namely:

183

7.2

(a)

for avoiding danger to persons or other traffic using the roads or any
other roads or for preventing the likelihood of any such danger arising,

(b)

for preventing damage to the roads or to any building on or near
the roads, or

(c)

for facilitating the passage on the roads or any other roads of any
class of traffic (including pedestrians), or

(f)

for preserving or improving the amenities of the area through
which the roads runs.

Under Section 122(2), the matters which must be taken into account in
exercising that duty are: (a)

The desirability of securing and maintaining reasonable access to
premises;

(b)

The effect on amenities of an area;

(c)

The national air quality strategy prepared under section 80 of the
Environment Act 1995;

(d)

The importance of facilitating the passage of public service vehicles
and of securing the safety and convenience of persons using or
desiring to use such vehicles; and

(e)

Any other matters appearing to the authority to be relevant.

7.3

Local Committees may, pursuant to Part 2D, paragraph 5.1.2 g) of the
Constitution, approve the making of traffic regulation orders in accordance
with powers under Parts I, II and IV of the Road Traffic Regulation act 1984,
except for the making of Traffic Regulation Orders which involve the
introduction for on-street residents permits, which are delegated to the
Executive Director – Economy and Infrastructure subject to a decision of the
appropriate member body to introduce such charges.

8.0

CONCLUSION

8.1

This report advises the Working Group of the proposal to implement The
Order, as advertised, as shown on the plans in Appendix 3.

8.2

In relation to the objection received for Aglionby, Working Group is asked to
recommend to Carlisle Local Committee that the proposed 30mph speed
limit be introduced as advertised.

Angela Jones
Executive Director- Economy and Infrastructure
October 2021

APPENDICES
Appendix 1
Appendix 2
Appendix 3
Appendix 4

-

Legal Notice
Formal consultation correspondence
Location Plans
Statement of reasons

184

Electoral Divisions:

Houghton & Irthington Ward, Wetheral Ward and Brampton

Executive Decision

No

Key Decision

No

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan?
Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency?

N/A
No

If exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant
Overview and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained?
Has this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny?
If so, give details below.

N/A

No

Has an environmental or sustainability impact assessment been
undertaken?

N/A

Has an equality impact assessment been undertaken?

N/A

N.B.

If an executive decision is made, then a decision cannot be implemented until the
expiry of the eighth working day after the date of the meeting – unless the decision is
urgent and exempt from call-in and necessary approvals have been obtained.

PREVIOUS RELEVANT COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS
[including Local Committees]
None
CONSIDERATION BY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
Not considered by Overview and Scrutiny

BACKGROUND PAPERS
No background papers

REPORT AUTHOR
Selena Nicholson, Selena.nicholson@cumbria.gov.uk, 078278 40013

185

This page is intentionally left blank

CUMBRIA COUNTY COUNCIL
THE COUNTY OF CUMBRIA (VARIOUS ROADS, CARLISLE CITY & DISTRICT)
(CONSOLIDATION AND PROVISION OF SPEED LIMITS) (NO. 8) ORDER 20><
1. The Cumbria County Council hereby give notice that it proposes to make the above
Order under Section 84(1) and (2) of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984.
2. The effect of the proposed Order will be to consolidate the provisions of: The County of Cumbria (Various Roads, Carlisle City & District) (Consolidation and
Provision of Speed Limits) (No. 7) Order 2017;
The County of Cumbria (Various Roads, Carlisle City & District) (Consolidation and
Provision of Speed Limits) (No. 7) (Order 2017) Variation (No. 1) Order 2018;
The County of Cumbria (Various Roads, Carlisle City & District) (Consolidation and
Provision of Speed Limits) (No. 7) (Order 2017) Variation (No. 2) Order 2020; and
The County of Cumbria (C1018 and U1145 Stockdalewath) (30 mph Speed Limit)
Order 2020;
and introduce the following proposals, into one concise Order: (i) The introduction of 30 mph speed restrictions on the following roads in Aglionby:
U1306 Rosegate; U1331 Manor Croft, U1177(102), U1177(1010, Broomy Hill,
U1426 the Strand, and Williams Pasture;
(ii) The introduction of 30 mph speed restrictions on the U1179 Plains Road,
Wetheral (as an extension of the existing 30 mph which is in place due to the
presence of street lighting); and on the C1038 Wetheral Pasture.
(iii) The introduction of a 30 mph speed restriction on the C1025 Lanercost;
(iv) The introduction of a 40 mph speed restriction on the C1038 Wetheral
Pasture, the B6263 between Wetheral and Cumwhinton and on the C1025
Lanercost.
3. Full details of the proposed Order, together with plans showing the lengths of road
concerned, a statement of the Council's reasons for proposing to make the Order,
may be viewed on the Council’s website using the following link: https://www.cumbria.gov.uk/roads-transport/highwayspavements/highways/notices.asp; and on deposit at Carlisle Library, The Lanes
Shopping Centre, First Floor, 11 Globe Lane, Carlisle, CA3 8NX;
and may otherwise be obtained by emailing kim.baxter@cumbria.gov.uk.
4. If you wish to object or to make representations in relation to the proposed Order
you should write to the undersigned, or email kim.baxter@cumbria.gov.uk, not later
than 10 September 2021, marking your correspondence with reference
KB/4.4.1062/15.001716
Chief Legal Officer, Cumbria County Council, Cumbria House, 117 Botchergate,
Carlisle, CA1 1RD
Dated 20 August 2021

187

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 2

Speed Limit Review - Formal consultation correspondence
Wetheral Pasture, Wetheral
Letters sent to 66 consultees: - 6 responded in writing…
Address
Wetheral Pasture

Comments/ objection
Strongly supports this
proposal and very much
needed on the grounds of
improving the safety of the
public.

Supports yes-no
YES

Resident

Wetheral Shields

In support of the formal
consultation, suggests we
considered amending the
proposed 40mph stretch to
a 20mph speed limit. If
can’t reduce to 20mph, can
there be some extra
warning signs installed.

YES

Resident

Wetheral Pasture

YES

Resident

Wetheral Pastures

In full support of the
proposal.
Hope these restrictions will
be regular enforced.

189

Occupier
Resident

YES

Officer Comments
The density of this area
has largely increased
over the years and
therefore requires
additional speed limits
to be implemented.
The 40mph buffer zone
is an addition to the
‘informal consultation’
to accommodate
comments made by
the public. Warning
signs – will investigate
this, should there be
safety complaints after
the implementation of
the new 30mph &
40mph speed limits
No additional
comments
Cumbria Constabulary
will be responsible for
the enforcing of the
proposed Speed Limit.

Recommendation
To implement the
proposal as advertised.

To implement the
proposal as advertised.

To implement the
proposal as advertised.
To implement the
proposal as advertised.

Business Occupier

Unknown

Resident

Wetheral Pasture

In full support of the formal
consultation, greatly
welcomes this proposal as
we often experience
vehicles going at high
speeds, which puts their
visitors at risk when
crossing over to the
woodland.
Endorses the formal
proposal and hopes the
speed limit will be observed
by road users.

YES

No additional
comments

To implement the
proposal as advertised

YES

No additional
comments

To implement the
proposal as advertised

Aglionby Village, Carlisle

190

Letters sent to 100 consultees: - 1 responded in writing…
Occupier

Address

Comments/ objection

Supports yes-no

Officer Comments

Recommendation

Unknown

Unknown

It is not safe for vehicles to
exceed 30mph through the
village and surrounding
streets. For this to be
effective, consideration of
20mph speed limit should
be included. Implementing
a 30mph speed limit
through the village, will
encourage vehicles to drive
at that speed, making it
unsafe for both road users
and pedestrians.

No

It is government policy
that a 30 mph speed
limit should be the
norm in villages.
Requirements detailed
in DfT circular 01/13 of
which Aglionby meets
the criteria.

To implement the
proposal as advertised.

Lanercost
Letters sent to 45 consultees: - 0 responded in writing…
Occupier
N/A

Address
N/A

Comments/ objection
N/A

Supports yes-no
N/A

Officer Comments
N/A

Recommendation
To implement the
proposal as advertised.

Supports yes-no
N/A

Officer Comments
N/A

Recommendation
To implement the
proposal as advertised.

Plains Road, Wetheral
Letters sent to 70 consultees: - 0 responded in writing…
Occupier
N/A

Address
N/A

Comments/ objection
N/A

191

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 3
Key
Proposed 30mph speed limit
Sewage
Works

ck

Tra

28.4m
W
ILL
1

'S

M
IA
PA
ST
5

E
UR

Pond

1

Tholt-y-will
Cottage

ro
hc
ec

ft

3

ST

Tholt-y-Will

Be

E
TH

Warwick Moor

ft

RA

cro
dle
Mid

ND

The Croft
ra

m

hi

13

ft

ae

C

31.9m

Re

Ro
w

an
l

cro

dy

d

n
Sa
Ho

us

e

ea

11

Glenside

14

8

10

Y
M

OO

BR

8
7

35.9m

Aglionby

Bewley
House

Hill
House
Barn

HI
LL

6

White
Cottage

6

1
4

Hill
House

Pond

6

7

Stanegate

3

Corner
Stones

5

Dr
ai

n

13

Aglio
Farm nby
hous
e

The
Willows

Beechwood
House

Westgarth

CAorc
ttah
ge

s

Ardneil
1

Long

Rose
Bank

ta

bS

36.5m
Croftlands

Manor
Barn

Manor
House
Th
Stea e
ding
s

El

Su

1

Stone
Bank
Dale
Field

14

Ridge

E
GAT

Hunters Croft

19

c
la t
t
Co

1

Li

Gablege
Cotta

LB

2

Strand
House
Wyker
House

Brimblemere

E
ROS

e
Rostt
Co

Nancy
Croft

k

Trac

Fair-Hurst

5

11

38.6m

10

MA

NO

RC

RO
FT

Croftfield

6

Glastonbury

9

Sunny
Croft

nd
Po

Po

nd

Greenways

le

rda
ve

Fairview

Sil

MS

7

6
5

8

A69

4
1

Lower Whooff

3

ta

2

11

9

S
ub

El S

10

Whooff House

38.0m

Speed Limit Review
Aglionby
Proposed 30mph speed limit
Parkhouse Building, Kingmoor Business Park
CARLISLE, Cumbria, CA6 4SJ, Tel. 01228 673030

193

Reproduced from, or based on, Ordnance survey map material
with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery
Office. (c) Crown Copyright 2006. Licence number 100019596

Figure No.
Drawn by

AJ

Scale

NTS

Date

May 21

Tr

ac

k

Craggle Hill

Woodside
Cottage
Irthing Vale

Track
El Sub

Sta

Lanercost
School
House

Lanercost
C of E
Primary School

Island
Cottages

Priory Corner Cottage

Sinks

4

Village Plate
1

Lanercost

The Forge
The Garth

Pavilion

Priory
Priory
Cottage
Corner

49.4m

51.5m

Playing Field
LB

GP

Pa

Path

th (u
m)

49.4m

St
Mary Magdelene's
Church

Cross of)
(remains
Gateway
LB
Cattle Grid
Tower

DW

Village Plate

Remains ofPriory
Lanercost

GP
DW

The Vicarage

(Augustinian
founded AD 1165)

Path

Howard
De
Greystoke
Brotherton

c
Tra

Dacre

k
De
Vaux

De
Moulton

rcost
Lane

Monks
Cottage

Abbey
Farm

Path (um)

Well
Cottage

The
Carthouse

ck

Pa

th

(um

)

194
Tra

Village Plate

Village Plate

Key
1

Ford

FW

Footbridge

Proposed 30mph speed limit

RH

Path

Parkhouse Building
Kingmoor Business Park
CARLISLE
Cumbria
CA6 4SJ
Tel. 01228 673030

(um

)

Path (um)

Proposed 40mph speed limit

Speed Limit Review
Lanercost
Proposed speed limits

Reproduced from, or based on, Ordnance survey map material
with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery
Office. (c) Crown Copyright 2006. Licence number 100019596

Drawing No. SLLC1
Drawn by : AJ

Scale NTS

Date: June 2021

DW

The Vicarage
Howard
De
Greystoke
Brotherton

Tra

Dacre

ck
De
Vaux

De
Moulton

Well
Cottage

The
Carthouse

Monks
Cottage

Abbey
Farm

rcost

Lane

Issues

Village Plate

Path (um
)

RH

g

thin

er Ir
Riv

CR

Lanercost
Bridge

Posts

Def

Lanercost
New
Bridge

Village Plate

f

De

Posts

Bridge
Abbey

Bridge
End
Cottage

S
Sh and
in an
gle d

Blacksmiths
Barn

Path

Abbey
Mill

Abbey

The
Bridge

58.2m

(Hotel)

th

Pa

Quarry Beck

55.2m

)

(um

Footbridge

65.2m

Boothby Bank

Quarr

Waterfalls
78.6m

ybeck
Wood

Boothby
West
Lodge

)

78.9m

(um

Boothby

th

Pa

Estate House

Chris House

ck

a
Tr
Sawmill

FB

gateROAD
neA
N
Sta
ROM

Key
Pa
t

h

(u
m

)

Proposed 30mph speed limit

94.2m

Proposed 40mph speed limit
)
Mill Leat (dis

Quarrybeck

Speed Limit Review
Lanercost
Proposed speed limits
Parkhouse Building, Kingmoor Business Park
CARLISLE, Cumbria, CA6 4SJ, Tel. 01228 673030

195

Reproduced from, or based on, Ordnance survey map material
with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery
Office. (c) Crown Copyright 2006. Licence number 100019596

Figure No. SLLC2
Drawn by

AJ

Scale

NTS

Date

July 21

59.0m

Harbour
Wood

Sinks

55.2m

len

k

oo

Tr
ac

k

Ing

Po

wM

au

gh

196

an

k
oo
len
Ing age
tt
Co

LB

Quarry
House

GP

y

Path (um)

60.1m
Hope Cottage

y-b

La

Track

Fernbank
Cottages

GP
61.1m
iew

e e
Ros
ttag
Co

V
rth e
No ttag
Co

1

7

2

Sewage Works

6

Fern Bank

5

Fern
ur
Past
e

Tra
ck

Fairfield
Cottage
Gallahill

Orchard House
Fern Field
Garth Cottage

2

54.8m

Key

Oakbank Farm
Wetheral Pasture
71.9m

e

Hildal

Proposed 30mph speed limit

Fenella Cottage

Pinfold

Pond

Proposed 40mph speed limit

Woodlands House

Beck Bridge

Existing 30mph speed limit

53.1m
Oak Howe

Edenbrae

Parkhouse Building
Kingmoor Business Park
CARLISLE
Cumbria
CA6 4SJ
Tel. 01228 673030

Speed Limit Review
Wetheral Pasture
B6263 Proposed 40mph speed limit

Reproduced from, or based on, Ordnance survey map material
with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery
Office. (c) Crown Copyright 2006. Licence number 100019596

Drawing No.
Drawn by : AJ

Scale NTS

Date: June 2021

Inscribed

Tr
ac
k

Inscribed
Rock

k
oo
len
Ing age
tt
Co

LB

Quarry
House

GP

Hope Cottage

Track

Fernbank
Cottages

GP

Path (um)

Key

60.1m

y
y-b
La

61.1m

Proposed 30mph speed limit

e
Ros tage
Cot

w
Vie
rth e
No ttag
Co

2

1

7

5

ure
Past
Fern

Fairfield
Cottage

Proposed 40mph speed limit

6

Fern Bank

Existing 30mph speed limit

Orchard House
Fern Field

Gallahill

Garth Cottage

2

Oakbank Farm
Wetheral Pasture
71.9m
le
Hilda

Fenella Cottage

Pinfold

Pond

Woodlands House

Oak Howe

Edenbrae

Rossandahl

Heathlands

Sycamore
Lodge

Issues

Broome Close

80.9m
Jesmond House

The Oaks

Overdale

Wetheral Pasture

ck
Tra

ice

ck

Slu

Tra

Garden Hill

Little Common

Sludge Tanks

Cumwhinton Water Treatment Plant

Water Tanks
Reservoir
Waterworks
House

(covered)

ub

El S
Sta

Tanks

Path (um)

Reservoir
Tanks

(covered)

Tank

Track

MP 303.75

Acorn
Cottage

Animal
Welfare
Centre
Pond
87.5m

Wetheral Shield

ck
Tra

ck

Tra

Wetheral
Shield

k

Trac

Tank
80.7m

Shieldhead

Track

Speed Limit Review
Wetheral Pastures
Proposed 30mph speed limit
Parkhouse Building, Kingmoor Business Park
CARLISLE, Cumbria, CA6 4SJ, Tel. 01228 673030

197

Reproduced from, or based on, Ordnance survey map material
with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery
Office. (c) Crown Copyright 2006. Licence number 100019596

Figure No.
Drawn by

AJ

Scale

NTS

Date

May 21

Key
Proposed 30mph speed limit extension
Issues

Restricted 30mph road due to
presence of street lighting

47.0m

52.3m

54.1m

Trac

k

Brookfield

The
Oaks

Parklands
Birchwood

The Limes

The Beeches

1
2

Pond
Meadow
View
House

Fox Hollow
Moor Yeat
Foxdale

ck

Tra

El Sub Sta

Highfield

Sandy Lodge

Ashbourne
Treetops

Wandales

Dunelm

1

ck

Tra
Dunkeld

S
EN

3

LD

G

D
AR

IE
WF
LLO

2

FA

ry
ge

ber

Fallowfield

ew

E
CR
NA
EE
GR

d
El D b Lo
Su
Sta

S

Bay Tree
House

14

The Elms
16
18

24
26

Furzebrook

11

Mill Eden

The
Stables

39

28

15

62
40

49

Speed Limit Review
Wetheral Plains
Parkhouse Building, Kingmoor Business Park
CARLISLE, Cumbria, CA6 4SJ, Tel. 01228 673030

Proposed 30mph extension to the
existing restricted road

198

Copper
Beech

Reproduced from, or based on, Ordnance survey map material
with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery
Office. (c) Crown Copyright 2006. Licence number 100019596

Figure No. QCANPRNEXWPL1
Drawn by

AJ

Scale

NTS

Date

July 21

THE COUNTY OF CUMBRIA (VARIOUS ROADS, CARLISLE CITY &
DISTRICT) (CONSOLIDATION AND PROVISION OF SPEED LIMITS) (NO. 8)
ORDER 20><

STATEMENT OF REASONS

Cumbria County Council considers that it is expedient to propose to make the
above Order for the following reasons set out in Section 1(1) of the Road Traffic
Regulation Act 1984 : Lanercost – C1025 - Request from the Parish Council supported by Cumbria
Constabulary following a Fatal Road Traffic Collision in the area.

(a) for avoiding danger to persons or other traffic using the road or any other
road or for preventing the likelihood of any such danger arising, or,
(c) for facilitating the passage on the road or any other road of any class of
traffic (including pedestrians)

Aglionby – U1306 (Rosegate), U1344 (Broomy Hill), U1331 (Manor
Croft),U1177, U1426 (The Strand), Williams Pasture – Speed limit
review requested by residents and the local Parish Council.

(a) for avoiding danger to persons or other traffic using the road or any
other road or for preventing the likelihood of any such danger arising, or
(b) for preventing damage to the road or to any building on or near the
road, or
(f) for preserving or improving the amenities of the area through which the
road runs

199

Wetheral Pasture – C1038 & B6263 - Speed limit introduction requested as part
of S106 agreement due to new developments in the area.

(a) for avoiding danger to persons or other traffic using the road or
any other road or for preventing the likelihood of any such danger
arising, or
(c) for facilitating the passage on the road or any other road of any
class of traffic (including pedestrians), or
(f) for preserving or improving the amenities of the area through which
the road runs

Wetheral Plains, Carlisle – U1179 - (Plains Road) Speed limit extension
requested as part of S106 agreement due to new developments in the area.

(a) for avoiding danger to persons or other traffic using the road or any
other road or for preventing the likelihood of any such danger arising, or
(c) for facilitating the passage on the road or any other road of any class
of traffic (including pedestrians), or

(f) for preserving or improving the amenities of the area through which the
road runs

200

APPENDIX 9

CARLISLE HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORT WORKING GROUP
Meeting date:
From:

7 October 2021

Executive Director – Economy and Infrastructure

2021/22 HIGHWAYS BUDGET / PROGRAMME PROGRESS REPORT
1.0

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

This report presents to the Highways and Transport Working Group
(the HTWG) the Highways Revenue, Devolved Capital and NonDevolved Capital Budget finance reports, combined with the highways
programme progress information, as detailed in the attached
appendices.

2.0

STRATEGIC PLANNING AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

2.1

This Committee’s devolved 2021/22 Cash Limited Budget was
determined by the County Council on 18 February 2021. The Local
Committee can vire funding between budget lines during the financial
year, subject to Corporate Policy and Service Standards. The
Committee is not able to vire funding from capital budgets into revenue
budgets.

2.2

The allocated Highways Revenue budget for 2021/22 is £1,438,010.

2.3

The allocated Devolved Highways Capital budget for 2021/22 is
£2,465,000.

2.4

The Non-devolved Highways CAPITAL budget for 2021/22 is £1,809,000.

3.0

RECOMMENDATION

3.1

That the HTWG recommend that the Local Committee note the
programme progress information shown in Appendices 4 and 5.

3.2

That the HTWG recommend that the Local Committee note the various
Highways Revenue budget allocations and headings shown in
Appendix 1.

3.3

That the HTWG recommend that the Local Committee note the various
Highways Capital budget allocations and headings shown in Appendix
2.

201

3.4

That the HTWG recommend that the Local Committee note the
following:
There are no comments in the Appendices to bring to the
attention of Local Members. Any significant comments, changes
and/or amendments will be highlighted here in subsequent and
future reports to the HTWG.

4.0

BACKGROUND

4.1

The available highways REVENUE budget for 2021/22 is £1,438,010.
Forecast outturn figures and comments on programme progress are shown
in Appendix 4.
Works ordered against the highways revenue budget are delivered through a
combination of the in-house workforce for Highway Maintenance, Lighting
Maintenance and Drainage Maintenance and external contractors for Traffic
Signals Maintenance, Verge Maintenance and Road Marking Maintenance.

4.2

The available devolved highways CAPITAL budget for 2021/22 is
£2,465,000. Forecast outturn figures and comments on programme progress
are shown in Appendix 5.
Works ordered against the devolved highways capital budget are delivered
through a combination of in-house construction teams and external
framework contractors, notably for machine-laid road surfacing work and
surface dressing.

4.3

The NON-DEVOLVED highways capital programme for 21/22 is £1,809,000.

5.0

OPTIONS

5.1

Members can recommend that Local Committee agree and keep under
review the Revenue and Devolved Highways Capital Budgets as shown in
Appendices 1 and 2.

6.0

RESOURCE AND VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS

6.1

The Local Committee Highways budgets as indicated in Appendix 1 and 2
were approved by Council in February 2021.

6.2

The 2021/22 Highways Revenue budget is forecasting on budget.

6.3

The 2021/22 Devolved Highways Capital budget is forecasting on budget.

7.0

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The recommendations in this report do not contain any legal implications
however Local Committee could take decisions that could have future legal
implications.

202

7.2

When allocating and moving money between budgets, Local Committee
must follow the rules set by the Council following its consideration of the
“Draft Revenue Budget 2021/22 and Medium-Term Financial Plan (2020 –
2025) and Draft Capital Programme (2020 – 2025)” report (“the Report”) on
18 February 2021 and any such additional restrictions set by Cabinet and or
Council regulating the use of such funds.

7.3

Local Committees may, pursuant to Part 2D, paragraph 5.1.2 (f), of the
Constitution, agree and keep under review the implementation of, the
highways revenue budget and capital programme for the local committee’s
area to support the Council to carry out its statutory duty to maintain the
highway in a safe condition as far as reasonably practicable.

8.0

CONCLUSION

8.1

The 2021/22 Highways Revenue Budget is forecasting on budget.

8.2

The 2021/22 Highways Devolved Capital budget is forecasting on budget.

8.3

The 2021/22 Highways Non-Devolved Capital Budget is forecasting on
budget.

Angela Jones
Executive Director – Economy and Infrastructure
September 2021

APPENDICES
Appendix 1
Appendix 2
Appendix 3
Appendix 4
Appendix 5

–
–
–
–
–

21/22 Highways Revenue Allocation
21/22 Highways Devolved Capital Allocation
21/22 Capital Works Programme
21/22 Highways Revenue Works Progress
21/22 Highways Capital Works Progress

Electoral Divisions: All
Executive Decision

Yes

Key Decision

No

If a Key Decision, is the proposal published in the current Forward Plan?
Is the decision exempt from call-in on grounds of urgency?
If exempt from call-in, has the agreement of the Chair of the relevant Overview
and Scrutiny Committee been sought or obtained?
Has this matter been considered by Overview and Scrutiny?
If so, give details below.

N/A
No
N/A
No

Has an environmental or sustainability impact assessment been undertaken?

No

Has an equality impact assessment been undertaken?

No

203

N.B.

If an executive decision is made, then a decision cannot be implemented until the
expiry of the eighth working day after the date of the meeting – unless the decision is
urgent and exempt from call-in and necessary approvals have been obtained.

PREVIOUS RELEVANT COUNCIL OR EXECUTIVE DECISIONS
No previous relevant decisions.

CONSIDERATION BY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
Not considered by Overview and Scrutiny.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
No background papers.

REPORT AUTHOR
Contact: Amy Hutson– Highways Network Manager
E-mail
amy.hutson@cumbria.gov.uk

204

Appendix 1 - 2021/2022 Highways REVENUE budget
2019/20

2020/21

2021/22

Variance

205

Carriageway Maintenance

£

732,694 £

732,694

£

677,694 -£

55,000

Drainage Maintenance

£

180,000 £

180,000

£

306,316 £

126,316

Lighting Maintenance

£

230,000 £

230,000

£

230,000 £

-

Traffic Signals Maintenance

£

100,000 £

100,000

£

100,000 £

-

Verge Maintenance

£

95,000 £

95,000

£

95,000 £

-

Road Marking Maintenance

£

29,000 £

29,000

£

29,000 £

-

Other

£

-

£

HIGHWAYS REVENUE BUDGET TOTAL

£ 1,366,694 £ 1,366,694

7%
16%
Chart showing the proposed
REVENUE Budget allocation split

21%

-

7%

£

2%

-

£

£ 1,438,010 £

47%

-

71,316

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 2 - 2021/2022 Highways Devolved CAPITAL Programme Budget Headings

Previous

Previous

2019/2020

2020/2021

2021/2022

Variance

Identifed Defects Planned Works Programme

£

665,000 £

450,000

£

280,000

-£

170,000

Structural Carriageway Works Programme

£

300,000 £

630,000

£

349,346

-£

280,654

Pre-surface Treatment Works Programme

£

450,000 £

465,000

£

398,653

-£

66,347

Surface Treatment Works Programme

£

700,000 £

700,000

£

550,735

-£

149,265

Surface Sealing Works Programme

£

120,000 £

120,000

£

92,958

-£

27,042

Footway Maintenance Works Programme

£

380,000 £

400,000

£

287,161

-£

112,839

Drainage Maintenance Works Programme

£

230,000 £

280,000

£

263,000

-£

17,000

Street Lighting Works Programme

£

125,000 £

125,000

£

125,500

£

500

Minor Improvements Works Programme

£

120,000 £

120,000

£

117,647

-£

2,353

Traffic Signals Works Programme

£

-

£

-

£

-

£

-

Bridges and Structures Works Programme

£

-

£

-

£

-

£

-

HIGHWAYS CAPITAL BUDGET TOTAL

£

3,090,000 £

3,290,000

£

2,465,000

-£

825,000

Previous and proposed Devolved Highways Capital Budgets (BASIC)

Identifed Defects Planned Works Programme
Structural Carriageway Works Programme
Pre-surface Treatment Works Programme
Surface Treatment Works Programme
Surface Sealing Works Programme
Footway Maintenance Works Programme

2021/2022

Drainage Maintenance Works Programme
Street Lighting Works Programme

2020/2021

Minor Improvements Works Programme

2019/2020

Traffic Signals Works Programme
Bridges and Structures Works Programme
£-

£200,000

207

£400,000

£600,000

£800,000

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 3 - 2021/2022 Indicative Highways Devolved CAPITAL Programme [FOR INFORMATION ONLY]

DfT budget

NPRN Carlisle

Identified Defects Planned Works Programme

UID

Electoral Division

Various

Road Number Scheme Name - Location

Various

HCSI Works Programme 2021/2022

Work Type

Works identified by the HCSI and programmed by WWP

Total Costs (£)

£

280,000

21/22

✓

Structural Carriageway Works Programme

UID

Electoral Division

Road Number Scheme Name - Location

Work Type

Total Costs (£)

21/22

209

£

30,000

✓

Grearshill Road, Carlisle - between the junction with Kingstown Broadway
Inlay (South)
HRA 35/14
and &
Subway
Kerbs PH1

£

85,500

✓

U170

Pennine Way - Arnside Road to Tindale Drive

Resurface

£

77,463

✓

Wetheral

B6263

Exelby Services to Cumwhinton

Inlay

£

98,078

✓

Longtown

U1034

Murray holme to Jct of Myre

100mm overlay (60mm binder AC20 dense & 40mm thin surface course) with drainage and civils work included

£

28,750

✓

Dalston and Burgh

U1133

Cardewlees - outside Quarry entrance

Inlay

£

29,555

✓

£

349,346

Various

Various

Investigation and Testing 2021/2022

Belah

U1363

Harraby North

Testing

Botcherby\ Harraby

C1045

Eastern Way - between junction with London Road and Railway BridgeInlay

£

144,112

✓

Harraby South

U167

Petteril Bank Road - 3rd Phase between shops and Aldi Roundabout Inlay

£

31,500

✓

Castle

U136

Scotch Street - speed ramp repairs and turning head area near Costa Coffee
Lift and relay block paving - approximately 80% of blocks to replace like for like or similar approved.

£

28,662

✓

Houghton and Irthington

C1012

Houghton Village - between the A689 and Motorway Bridge / outsideInlay
the village green

£

79,944

✓

Longtown

U1014

Oakshaw Hill and Laws Hall, Easton

Overlay

£

64,000

✓

Stanwix Urban

B6264

Brampton Road - Longlands Road (East) junction to the Near Boot

Resurface - ripple effect in carriageway due to settlement around foam concrete sub layers

£

81,000

✓

Brampton

C1034

Tarn Lodge

100mm overlay (60mm binder AC20 dense & 40mm thin surface course) with drainage and civils work included

£

82,624

✓

Brampton

C1023

Upper Denton Railway Crossing

Inlay

£

19,436

✓

Longtown

U1034

Crookgate to Wellington

Overlay

£

67,290

✓

Botcherby

U150

Victoria Road, Wood Street to Warwick Road A69

Plane off 100mm of existing blacktop and resurface with 100mm (50mm binder AC20 hdm & 50mm HRA) some kerbs and iron work to
replace.

£

86,838

✓

£

685,406

Pre Surface Treatment Works Programme

UID

Electoral Division

Various

Road Number Scheme Name - Location

Various

Pre Surface Treatment Works 2020-2021

Work Type

Patching

Total Costs (£)

£

398,653

21/22

✓

210

Surface Treatment Works Programme

UID

Electoral Division

Road Number Scheme Name - Location

Work Type

Total Costs (£)

21/22

Longtown

C1008

Penton Station

Surface Dressing

✓

Longtown

C1007

Warwicksland Crossroads towards Kershopefoot

Surface Dressing

✓

Longtown

C1007

Warwicksland Crossroads towards Easton

Surface Dressing

✓

Houghton and Irthington

C1005

Kirklinton Hall

Surface Dressing

✓

Brampton

C1025

Banks to Bewcastle

Surface Dressing

✓

C1023/B63
Gilsland School to RAF Spadeadam
18/U1241

Surface Dressing

✓

Surface Dressing

✓

Brampton

Brampton

C1046

Carlisle Road, Brampton - A689 to Ped Xing

211

Brampton

C1046

Carlisle Road to A69 Roundabout

Surface Dressing

✓

Brampton

U1107

Tree Road, Brampton

Surface Dressing

✓

Houghton and Irthington

U1095

Laversdale - Oldwall to A6071

Surface Dressing

✓

Houghton and Irthington

C1013

Newby East to A689

Surface Dressing

✓

Wetheral

B6263

Cumwhinton to Wetheral

Surface Dressing

✓

Botcherby

C1019

Durranhill Road - Alexandra Drive to mini Roundabout

Surface Dressing

✓

Botcherby

U175

Wingate Road - Montgomery Way to Geltsdale Avenue

Surface Dressing

✓

Dalston and Burgh

U1115

Cargo Village

Surface Dressing

✓

Dalston and Burgh

U1113

Dalston - Station Road to Cardewlees

Surface Dressing

✓

Longtown

C1007

A6071 to Wellknowerigg Xrds Phase 1

Surface Dressing

✓

Houghton and Irthington

C1012

Lyneholmeford to Cays House

Surface Dressing

✓

Wetheral

C1038

Wetheral Shields to Froddle Crook

Surface Dressing

✓

Dalston and Burgh

B5299

Dalston Bridge Junction to Nether Welton

Surface Dressing

✓

£

550,735

Surface Sealing Works Programme

UID

Electoral Division

Various

Footway Maintenance Works Programme

Road Number Scheme Name - Location

Various

Permanent Carriageway Repairs 2020/2021

Work Type

Small Scale Surface Sealing

Total Costs (£)

£

92,958

21/22

✓

UID

Electoral Division

Road Number Scheme Name - Location

Work Type

Total Costs (£)

21/22

212

Various

Various

Minor Footway Repairs 2021/2022

Small scale repairs and patching

£

60,000

✓

Various

Various

Tree Pits 2021/2022

Tree pit improvements

£

26,399

✓

Various

Various

Minor Tree Works 2021/2022

Priority tree works

£

30,000

✓

Various

Various

Hardening of Grass Verges 2021/2022

Defects caused by overriding of verges

£

40,000

✓

Castle

U137

St Cuthberts Lane Phase 2

Sandstone flags to relay and replace

£

30,000

✓

Belah

U101

Lowry Hill-St Peter drive-Kingstown rd

Removal of existing paving slabs to resurface with 50mm thick binder course and 30mm thick surface course

£

24,236

✓

Stanwix Urban

U109

Knowfield Avenue Ph 2

Remove paving flags and replace with flexible surface

£

42,153

✓

Upperby

U160

Oaklands Drive

Remove old Carlisle kerbs and replace with half battered kerbs up to paved footway and reinstate carriageway

£

12,000

✓

Dalston and Burgh

B5299

Carlisle Rd Dalston by Junior School

plane off 30mm and relay footway by school

£

10,000

✓

Upperby

C1041

Upperby Road - Ulldale St to Lamb St

Remove paving flags and replace with flexible surface

£

12,373

✓

£

287,161

Longtown

U1370

Briar Lea Court, Longtown

Reconstruct footway with AC20 binder and 30mm Surface course

£

29,652

✓

Belle Vue

U114

High Meadow

Remove old Carlisle kerbs and replace with half battered kerbs, remove flags and replace with blacktop.

£

16,000

✓

Botcherby

U150

Wood Street to Eastern Way

Install pin kerbs edge of footway and overlay

£

11,000

✓

Stanwix Urban

B6264

Brampton Rd ph2

Removal of existing paving slabs to resurface with 50mm thick binder course and 30mm thick surface course, even side 46 to 108

£

50,000

✓

Belah

U101

Kingmoor Junior School Phase 3

Remove paving flags and replace with flexible surface

£

9,068

✓

Wetheral

C1020

Scotby, Broomfallen Road

Resurface footway outside vehicle accesses to Broomhouse and High Acres

£

16,000

✓

Harraby North

U169

Mayfield Avenue - Church

Replace flags with bitmac - resurface

£

18,000

✓

Belah

U101

Lowry Hill, Kingstown rd -Liddle cls

Remove paving flags and replace with flexible surface

£

49,800

✓

Yewdale

U115

Chesterholme

Removal of existing paving slabs to resurface with 50mm thick binder course and 30mm thick surface course

£

27,538

✓

Belah

U101

Lowry hill -Sark Cls - Teasdale rd

Remove paving flags and replace with flexible surface

£

52,124

✓

Upperby

U156

Currock Park Ave Ph1

Reconstruction

£

52,124

✓

Various

Trees and verges

£

70,000

✓

Various

Minor footway repairs

£

20,408

✓

£

421,714

Drainage Maintenance Works Programme

213

UID

Electoral Division

Road Number Scheme Name - Location

Work Type

Total Costs (£)

21/22

Various

Various

Reactive Drainage works at various locations 2021/2022

Various

£

45,000

✓

Various

Various

Replacement of Integral Gullies 2021/2022

Various

£

30,000

✓

Various

Various

Ditching works to alleviate flooding 2021/2022

Various

£

20,000

✓

Houghton & Irthington

U1099

Cambeck Hill

Riverbanck reinforcement

£

30,000

✓

Longtown

U1063

Brisco Hill, Old Road, Longtown Phase 2

Bank Reinforcement - Rock Armour

£

40,000

✓

Dalston and Burgh

U1148

Buckabank House towards White Bridge

Investigate/repair drainage down the hill icy in winter

£

18,000

✓

Longtown

U1012

High Plains

Reconstruct embankment and drainage system (ea and natural england)

£

80,000

✓

£

263,000

£

10,557

Corby and Hayton

U1231

Cairn Crescent, Little Corby

New chamber, pipe repairs, lift kerbs

✓

U1231

Cairn Bridge, Heads Nook

New chamber, pipe repairs, lift kerbs

£

200,000

✓

U1091

Barlane, Scaleby

Renew drain between Barlane Cottage and corner towards Scaleby approx 150m

£

20,000

✓

Brampton

U1901

Stoneybrook Farm, Askerton

Install new filter drain in ditch at Fell Hill junction side and near Crossroads

£

25,000

✓

Dalston and Burgh

U102

Stainton

New draiange system to install - check levels for new gullies to connect into Pow Beck

£

12,000

✓

Dalston and Burgh

C1036

Woodhayes

drain in field to prevent flooding in woodhayes

£

14,000

✓

Various Drainage works

Inhouse

£

35,000

✓

£

316,557

Corby and Hayton

Various

Street Lighting Works Programme

UID

Electoral Division

Road Number Scheme Name - Location

Work Type

Total Costs (£)

21/22

214

Various

Various

Structural Test Various Locations 2021/2022

Non-Destructive Testing

£

5,500

✓

Various

Various

Illuminated Signs Refurbishment 2021/2022

Sign Refurbishment

£

5,500

✓

Various

Various

Local Area Improvement Various Locations 2021/2022

Area Improvement

£

22,000

✓

Various

Various

4 locations

Lighting improvements to be identified

£

92,500

✓

£

125,500

Minor Improvements Works Programme

UID

Electoral Division

Road Number Scheme Name - Location

Work Type

Total Costs (£)

21/22

Various

Various

Annual Review of Signs, Lines and TROs 2021/2022

Zone [?] Implementation Zone [?] Reporting,Informal/Formal Consultation Miscellaneous TRO Changes (Mopping Up 2020/21
Consultation & Design) Miscellaneous TRO Changes (Mopping Up 2019/20 Implementation)

£

50,000

✓

Various

Various

Cycling and Walking Initiatives 2021/2022

Improvements identified through Community Street audits, user groups and Members- improved access measures dropped Kerbs etc

£

10,000

✓

Various

Various

Minor Local Safety Schemes 2021/2022

Minor safety improvements at sites identified by CRASH Group User Groups and Members etc

£

23,647

✓

Various

Various

Improvements to / upgrade of Infrastructure at Bus Stops
2021/2022

Upgrade of bus stops flags, timetable cases, clearways to provide consistency. Addition of raised bus boarders where suitable.

£

4,000

✓

Various

Various

Speed Speed Limit Reviews 2021/2022

Sites identified from local requests and through CRASH speeding complaints

£

5,000

✓

Various

Various

Rural Sign Review 2021/2022

Carry out survey of roads based on road hierarchy to identify and assess and remove / replace or combine signs where appropriate.

£

15,000

✓

Various

Various

Minor improvements to be identified

£

10,000

✓

£

117,647

Traffic Signals Works Programme

UID

Electoral Division

Various

Road Number Scheme Name - Location

Various

Various Traffic Signals Works 2021/2022

Work Type

Structures Work

Total Costs (£)

£

21/22

-

✓

215

Bridges and Structures Works Programme

UID

Electoral Division

Various

Road Number Scheme Name - Location

Various

Various Strucutures Works 2021/2022

Work Type

Structures Work

Total Costs (£)

£

Pot Hole Funding

21/22

-

✓

Annual Budget ->

UID

Road Number Scheme Name - Location

Various

Various

Pothole funding 2021/2022

Work Type

Patching

Total Costs (£)

£

373,855

21/22

✓

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 4 - 2021/22 Highways REVENUE Report
Revenue
Budget

Committed
Budget

Spend
Forecast

3

4

8

9

Carriageway Maintenance

677,694

677,694

677,694

0

ONGOING

Drainage Maintenance

306,316

306,316

306,316

0

ONGOING

Lighting Maintenance

230,000

230,000

230,000

0

ONGOING

Traffic Signal Maintenance

100,000

100,000

100,000

0

ONGOING

Verge Maintenance

95,000

95,000

95,000

0

ONGOING

Road Marking Maintenance

29,000

29,000

29,000

0

ONGOING

Variance

RAG

0

217

HIGHWAYS REVENUE BUDGET TOTAL

1,438,010

1,438,010

1,438,010

0

Comments

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 5 - 2021/22 Highways Devolved CAPITAL Report
Electoral
Division
5

Capital Budget

Spend
Forecast

7

17

Variance
£

RAG
10

Comments
12

219

HCSI Repair Teams - Footways

Various

135,000

135,000

0

ONGOING

HCSI Repair Teams - Carriageway

Various

125,000

125,000

0

ONGOING

HCSI Repair Teams - Drainage

Various

20,000

20,000

0

ONGOING

Indentified Defects Planned Works Programme (NPRN)

280,000

280,000

0

Investigation and Testing

Various

30,000

30,000

0

ONGOING

Grearshill Road, Carlisle

Belah

85,500

85,500

0

ONGOING

Pennine Way - Arnside Road to Tindale Drive
Harraby North

77,463

77,463

0

ONGOING

Exelby Services to Cumwhinton

Wetheral

98,078

98,078

0

ONGOING

Murray holme to Jct of Myre

Longtown

28,750

32,897

4,147

Cardewlees - outside Quarry entrance Dalston & Burgh

29,555

29,555

0

Structural carriageway

349,346

353,493

4,147

398,653

398,653

0

Pre-surface Treatment Works Programme

398,653

398,653

0

Surface Treatment

550,735

550,735

0

550,735

550,735

0

Pre Surface Treatment Patching

Surface Treatment Works Programme

Various

Various

✓

COMPLETE
ONGOING

ONGOING

✓

COMPLETE

Appendix 5 - 2021/22 Highways Devolved CAPITAL Report
Electoral
Division
5
Surface Sealing

Various

Surface Sealing Work Programme

Capital Budget

Spend
Forecast

7

17

92,958

92,958

0

92,958

92,958

0

Variance
£

RAG
10

Comments
12
ONGOING

220

Minor Footway Repairs

Various

£60,000

£60,000

0

ONGOING

Tree Pits

Various

£26,399

£26,399

0

ONGOING

Minor Tree Works

Various

£30,000

£30,000

0

ONGOING

Hardening of Grass Verges

Various

£40,000

£40,000

0

ONGOING

St Cuthberts Lane Phase 2

Castle

£30,000

£30,000

0

Lowry Hill-St Peter drive-Kingstown rd Belah

£24,236

£24,236

0

ONGOING

Knowfield Avenue Ph 2

Stanwix Urban

£42,153

£42,153

0

ONGOING

Oaklands Drive

Upperby

£12,000

£12,000

0

ONGOING

Carlisle Rd Dalston by Junior School

Dalston and Burgh £10,000

£10,000

0

Upperby Road - Ulldale St to Lamb St

Upperby

£12,373

£12,373

0

Footway Maintenance Works Programme

287,161

287,161

0

Reactive Drainage works at various
locations

Various

£45,000

£45,000

0

Replacement of Integral Gullies

Various

£30,000

£30,000

0

Ditching works to alleviate flooding

Various

£20,000

£20,000

0

ONGOING

Cambeck Hill

Houghton and
Irthington

£30,000

£30,000

0

ONGOING

✓

✓

COMPLETE

COMPLETE
ONGOING

ONGOING

✓

COMPLETE

Appendix 5 - 2021/22 Highways Devolved CAPITAL Report
Electoral
Division

Capital Budget

Spend
Forecast

7

17

£40,000

£37,000

-3,000

Dalston and Burgh £18,000

£12,500

-5,500

Longtown

£80,000

£80,000

0

Drainage Maintenance Works Programme

263,000

254,500

-8,500

Local Area Improvement

Various

22,000

22,000

0

ONGOING

Illuminated Signs Refurbishment

Various

5,500

5,500

0

ONGOING

Structural Testing

Various

5,500

5,500

0

ONGOING

Esk Road Carlisle

Various

18,100

18,100

0

ONGOING

Newfield Park Carlisle

Various

38,000

38,000

0

ONGOING

Lyne Close Carlisle

Various

9,100

9,100

0

ONGOING

Knowepark Avenue Carlisle

Various

27,300

27,300

0

ONGOING

Street Lighting Maintenance Works Programme

125,500

125,500

0

Annual Review of Signs, Lines and TRO's Various

50,000

50,000

0

ONGOING

Cycling and Walking Initiatives

Various

10,000

10,000

0

ONGOING

Minor Local Safety Schemes

Various

23,647

23,647

0

ONGOING

Speed Limit Reviews

Various

5,000

5,000

0

ONGOING

10,000

10,000

0

ONGOING

5
Brisco Hill, Old Road, Longtown Phase
2
Buckabank House towards White
Bridge
High Plains

Longtown

221

Minor Improvements Lingmoor Way Carlisle
Various

Variance
£

RAG
10

Comments
12

✓
✓

COMPLETE
COMPLETE
ONGOING

Appendix 5 - 2021/22 Highways Devolved CAPITAL Report
Electoral
Division

Capital Budget

Spend
Forecast

7

17

15,000

15,000

0

ONGOING

Improvements to / upgrade of Infrastructure
Various
at Bus Stops 2021/2022
4,000

4,000

0

ONGOING

Minor Improvements Works Programme

117,647

0

5
Rural Sign Review

Various

117,647

Variance
£

10

Wreay School Drainage
Horse Holme Farm Drainage
Slippage 20/21

222

2,465,000

2,460,647

-4,353

Comments
12

✓
✓
✓

Madam Banks Road Footway

DEVOLVED HIGHWAYS CAPITAL BUDGET TOTAL

RAG

COMPLETE
COMPLETE
COMPLETE

Agenda Item 11
LOCAL COMMITTEE CHAIRS AND LEADERSHIP
Minutes of a Meeting of the Local Committee Chairs and Leadership held on
Monday, 27 September 2021 at 9.00 am held virtually on Microsoft Teams.

PRESENT:
Mr SF Young (Chair)
Mr AL Barry
Mr N Cotton
Mr P Dew
Mr KR Hamilton
Mr K Hitchen

Mr W McEwan
Mr AJ Markley
Mr P Thornton
Mr C Weber
Mr D Wilson

Also in Attendance:Ms G Elliott
Ms A Hatcher
Ms A Jones
Mrs K Johnson
Mr P Musgrave
Dr D Roberts

-

Ms L Shaw
Mr N Wright

-

70

Area Manager - Copeland
Assistant Director Growth and Infrastructure
Executive Director - Economy and Infrastructure
Area Manager - South Lakeland
Area Manager - Carlisle
Executive Director - Corporate, Customer and
Community Services
Area Manager - Allerdale
Area Manager - Eden

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Mr G Cook and Ms D Earl.
71

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED, that the minutes of the previous meeting held on 5 July 2021 be
agreed as a true and accurate record.
72

UPDATE ON PLACE BASED SCHEMES

The Assistant Director Growth and Infrastructure provided members with an update
on Place Based Schemes specifically in relation to: Future High Street Fund
 Town Deal

223

The Chair of South Lakeland Local Committee commented that there had been a
delay in the response to the first round bids of the Levelling Up Fund and wondered
if any deadlines for the second round bids were known.
The Assistant Director Growth and Infrastructure commented that it was very difficult
to obtain information regarding the second round and speculated that it would be in
the Spending Review at the end of October.
The Chair commented on the progress made on the Borderlands Place Programme.
He remarked that he had offered assistance to Carlisle City Council on their Place
Programme. He asked if the Chair of Carlisle Local Committee and the Area
Manager (Carlisle) could follow this up.
The Chair of Carlisle Local Committee advised that he had a meeting with Carlisle
City Council soon and would raise the matter then.
The Chair thanked the Assistant Director Growth and Infrastructure for her update.
73

BORDERLANDS UPDATE

The Assistant Director Growth and Infrastructure provided members with an update
on the Borderlands Inclusive Growth Deal. She remarked that good progress was
being made. She highlighted the Place Programme and noted that final approval of
the Programme business case had not yet been received from Government. Due to
the recent change in Secretary of State, delays were anticipated. She remarked
that Cumbria was progressing well with all 5 of the Place Plans and noted that they
were still at a high level and have not yet identified specific projects or schemes to
be taken forward. The approach being taken was to understand what each town
needed rather than the alternative approach of asking for existing projects. The
Assistant Director Growth and Infrastructure also highlighted the following areas :




Carlisle Station & Citadel
Destination Borderlands
Energy Masterplan
Borders Railway

The Chair of Allerdale Local Committee remarked on recent supply chain issues
nationally and asked if there was enough contingency built into the costings.
The Assistant Director Growth and Infrastructure commented that each project was
taken on a case by case basis. She assured that risk and contingency were built in
and that flexibility had been factored into design. She noted that the University was
leading on the Citadels project and therefore the risk of cost overrun was with them
and that the Digital Voucher Scheme had been fully delivered.
The Chair remarked that Cumbria County Council would need to tailor projects for
the Place Plans to match available resources.

224

The Chair of South Lakeland Local Committee commented on the energy plan and
queried if the plan was flexible to offer something that had not been previously
available and if nuclear on the West Coast was considered in the plan.
The Assistant Director Growth and Infrastructure commented that the masterplan
was at a high level so there was flexibility and that the plan was focussed on energy
generation across the Borderlands area. Whilst the plan would reflect the nuclear
opportunities, in terms of Borderlands investment this would most likely be focused
on areas where national funding was not available or where there was market
failure.
The Chair hoped that the focus would be on Community Renewables. He noted
that the entire Borderlands area had in common the potential for hydro power.
The Area Manager (Copeland) gave an update on the Town Team meeting in
Copeland. She remarked that the Town Team felt frustrated and that no progress
had been made in 6 months. The frustration was that consultants had only been
seen at 1 meeting and that the Place Programme had not been approved. The
Town Team were not sure what direction they needed.
The Assistant Director Growth and Infrastructure noted that the Place Plan was to
be Town Team led not consultant led and that the Town Teams had to shape what
they wanted for their town.
The Vice Chair of Allerdale Local Committee commented about the Solway Barrage
and asked if any progress had been made.
The Assistant Director Growth and Infrastructure had not heard of any recent
progress on the Solway Barrage.
The Vice Chair remarked about the proposed 2 new unitary authorities and asked if
they would just inherit the Borderlands initiative. He commented on the STEP
fusion proposal and queried if it was a Government or private decision.
The Assistant Director Growth and Infrastructure noted that the Borderlands
programme would continue as is for the time being. However a decision would
need to be made by the proposed new unitary authorities to join the Partnership and
the collaboration agreement would need to be amended to reflect changes in
membership in due course. She expected to hear in the autumn about the STEP
proposal. The STEP siting is a Government decision and it was possible that
Cumbria could be on the shortlist to proceed to the next stage for further
consideration.
The Chair remarked that he hoped that the new unitary authorities would be
Borderlands partners but the decision rested with them. The Chair noted that the
work done on the STEP proposal was a result of a good piece of work by the CLEP.
The Chair thanked the Assistant Director Growth and Infrastructure for her update.

225

74

COMMUNITY OWNERSHIP FUND

The Executive Director - Economy and Infrastructure provided members with an
update on the Community Ownership Fund. The UK Community Ownership Fund
was announced as part of the Chancellor’s Budget in March 2021 and was launched
in July. The Fund would comprise £150 million of investment across the United
Kingdom to help communities take ownership of assets and amenities at risk of
closure. It would run for 4 years. Voluntary and community organisations could bid
for up to £250,000 match funding (or up to £1 million for sporting venues) on a
pound-for-pound basis. Match could be from a range of sources including, public,
private and charitable funds, and certain in-kind match funding could be included
(for example, professional support or a discounted value of a lease). She reiterated
that her team was happy to assist each Local Committee.
The Chair noted that this was for members to be aware of and to point local groups
towards the fund where appropriate.
The Chair of Barrow Local Committee noted that the scheme seemed wonderful but
was concerned about the need for match funding. He commented that Area Teams
are overworked and he was not sure how much they could take on. He also wanted
to congratulate Lesley Graham, Cumbria County Council Health Manager for
Barrow and David Higham from the Well as they had won the National Municipal
Journal Award of the Year for Suicide Prevention in Barrow in Furness.
The Chair commented that the scheme was not aimed at Councils. A problem was
that communities that needed this funding were the least able to obtain the funding.
The Chair acknowledged how much work each Area Team was doing especially
with the Place Programme.
The Executive Director - Economy and Infrastructure noted that Martin Allman was
Social Enterprise Manager to support Local Area Teams. She noted that match
funding could be Lottery Funding, private funding or other charitable funding. The
funding was on a pound for pound basis.
The Chair of South Lakeland Local Committee remarked that this was a good
opportunity to demonstrate best practice. Where a scheme had been successful
Cumbria County Council should bring it forward as a template.
The Chair thanked the Executive Director Economy and Infrastructure for her
update.
75

UPDATE ON ENVIRONMENT FUND AND COMF

The Executive Director Economy and Infrastructure provided members with an
update on the Environment Fund and COMF. This paper highlighted the progress
made. At Full Council on 18 February 2021 Members agreed a £1.2m Environment
Fund to enable further investment in our local environment. Each local committee
area was allocated £200,000 from the Environment Fund. The report stated:

226

“the purpose of this ring-fenced fund will be to support a range of
environmental improvements or enhancements, covering for example:enhanced verge maintenance; tree maintenance and replacement; footpath
maintenance; nature recovery; biodiversity improvements; and improving the
environmental conditions and quality of life ‘on the doorstep’.
A further £200,000 from the Contain Outbreak Management Fund (COMF) was
allocated to each Local Committee to be spent on projects that would lead to
improvements to outside space and facilities, including improvements to cycle ways,
footpaths, parks, open spaces and provide better opportunities for exercise through
active travel. Each Local Committee had a slightly different approach.
A round table discussion then took place where each Local Committee detailed their
on-going projects.
The Chair then noted that the Environment Funding was entirely Cumbria County
Council funds as it was put in the Council budget via Cabinet. He questioned if the
funds could be carried forward into a new financial year.
The Executive Director Economy and Infrastructure and the Vice Chair understood
that the money was to be spent by 31 March 2022. However, as long as the work
was committed that would be acceptable. It was agreed that this would be
confirmed with the Director of Finance.
The Chair asked if the Contain Outbreak Management Fund would need to be spent
by 31 March 2022. The Executive Director Corporate Customer and Community
Services remarked that the deadline would be 31 March 2022 but would confirm
with the Director of Finance.
It was agreed that once clarification had been sought from the Director of Finance
the answers would be circulated before the next meeting of Local Committee Chairs
and Leadership.
The Chair thanked the Executive Director Economy and Infrastructure for her
update.
76

FORWARD PLAN

AGREED, that the following item be added to the agenda for the next meeting:

Borderlands

Any other items for the agenda could be included via CMT or the Chair and Vice
Chair.

227

77

DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

The next meeting will be held virtually on Microsoft Teams on 23 November 2021 at
10am.

The meeting ended at 10.14 am

228

Local Committee Forward Plan – Carlisle
LOCAL COMMITTEE:

DATE: Wednesday 5 January 2022

Forward Planning Meeting

Tuesday 30 November 2021

Reports to Legal & Finance

Tuesday 14 December 2021

Final Reports to Democratic Services

Tuesday 21 December 2021

Chair’s Briefing Meeting

Tuesday 4 January 2022

PRESENTATIONS
Subject

Summary of
Presentation

Cumbria CVS Update

Directorate/Organisation

Presenting Lead

CVS

Niall McNulty

REPORTS

229

Report Name

Directorate

SEND Improvement
Programme

Sian Rees

People

Carlisle Local Cycling
and Walking
Infrastructure Plan

Nicola Parker/
Victoria Kelsall

Economy & Infrastructure

Digital Hub

Michael Barry/
Victoria Kelsall/
Nicola Parker

Economy & Infrastructure

Southern Gateway
Business Case

Michael Barry/
Victoria Kelsall/
Nicola Parker

Economy & Infrastructure

Paul Musgrave

Corporate, Customer &
Community Services

Update report on the
devolved expenditure

Decision/s Required

To approve any budget
virements or
amendments to
allocations and note the
expenditure to date.

Agenda Item 13

Lead Officer

Area Planning Report

Summary of Report

2021/22 Highways
Budget/Programme
Progress Report

Update report on the
devolved expenditure

To approve any budget
virements or
amendments to
allocations and note the
expenditure to date.

Amy Hutson

Economy & Infrastructure

Highways and Transport
WG Minutes (15
December 2021)

Amy Hutson

Economy & Infrastructure

Written Champion
Updates

Elizabeth Mallinson/
Val Tarbitt and
Christine Bowditch

Local Committee Chairs
and Leadership Meeting
(23 November 2021)

Anthony Farrar

Corporate, Customer &
Community Services

Carlisle Local Cttee –
Forward Plan

Lynn Harker

Corporate, Customer &
Community Services

230

Local Committee Forward Plan – Carlisle

LOCAL COMMITTEE:

DATE: Wednesday 9 March 2022

Forward Planning Meeting

Monday 7 February 2022

Reports to Legal & Finance

Friday 18 March 2022

Final Reports to Democratic Services

Friday 25 March 2022

Chair’s Briefing Meeting

Monday 7 March 2022

PRESENTATIONS
Subject

231

Summary of
Presentation

Directorate/Organisation

Summary of Report

Decision/s Required

Presenting Lead

REPORTS
Report Name
Parking Services
Update

Area Planning Report

2021/22 Highways
Budget/Programme
Progress Report
Highways and Transport
WG Minutes
(9 February 2022)

Lead Officer

Directorate

Rob Lewis/
Sean Green

Economy & Infrastructure

Update report on the
devolved expenditure

To approve any budget
virements or
amendments to
allocations and note the
expenditure to date.

Paul Musgrave

Corporate, Customer &
Community Services

Update report on the
devolved expenditure

To approve any budget
virements or
amendments to
allocations and note the
expenditure to date.

Amy Hutson

Economy & Infrastructure

Amy Hutson

Economy & Infrastructure

Infrastructure
Development Plan
Working Group
(1 February 2022)

Paul Musgrave

Verbal Champion
Updates

Elizabeth Mallinson/
Val Tarbitt and
Christine Bowditch

Community
Development Update

Paul Musgrave

Corporate, Customer &
Community Services

Local Committee Chairs
and Leadership Meeting
(21 January 2022)

Anthony Farrar

Corporate, Customer &
Community Services

Carlisle Local Cttee –
Forward Plan

Lynn Harker

Corporate, Customer &
Community Services

Corporate, Customer &
Community Services

232

Local Committee Forward Plan – Carlisle

LOCAL COMMITTEE:

DATE: Tuesday 17 May 2022

Forward Planning Meeting

Monday 11 April 2022

Reports to Legal & Finance

Thursday 28 April 2022

Final Reports to Democratic Services

Thursday 5 May 2022

Chair’s Briefing Meeting

Friday 13 May 2022

PRESENTATIONS
Subject

233

Summary of
Presentation

Directorate/Organisation

Summary of Report

Decision/s Required

Presenting Lead

REPORTS
Report Name

Lead Officer

Directorate

Establishment of
Working Groups

Lynn Harker

Corporate, Customer &
Community Services

Appointment to Outside
Bodies

Lynn Harker

Corporate, Customer &
Community Services

Election of Chair
Election of Vice-Chair
Constitution,
Membership and Terms
of Reference

Area Planning Report

Update report on the
devolved expenditure

To approve any budget
virements or
amendments to
allocations and note the
expenditure to date.

Paul Musgrave

Corporate, Customer &
Community Services

2022/23 Highways
Budget/Programme
Progress Report

Update report on the
devolved expenditure

To approve any budget
virements or
amendments to
allocations and note the
expenditure to date.

Amy Hutson

Economy & Infrastructure

Highways and Transport
WG Minutes
(12 April 2022)

Amy Hutson

Economy & Infrastructure

Verbal Champion
Updates

Elizabeth Mallinson/
Val Tarbitt and
Christine Bowditch

Local Committee Chairs
and Leadership Meeting
(19 April 2022)

Anthony Farrar

Corporate, Customer &
Community Services

Carlisle Local Cttee –
Forward Plan

Lynn Harker

Corporate, Customer &
Community Services

234

